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The Longueville Sporting Club 

 
gm@longuevillesportingclub.com.au 
(02) 9427 2210 
www.longuevillesportingclub.com.au 
 
Lane Cove Cricket Club is proud to make the Longueville 
Sporting Club its social venue of choice.  Various functions are 
held at the LSC during the season and the players can also be 
found there celebrating after each and every match during the 
season. 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Greg Chappell Cricket Centre 

 
gcccsydney@cricketcentre.com.au 
1800 777 023 
www.cricketcentre.com.au 
 
Lane Cove Cricket Club is delighted to continue its partnership 
with the Greg Chappell Cricket Centre in North Sydney.  GCCC 
is Lane Cove’s exclusive supplier of cricket equipment and all 
Lane Cove members are entitled to a discount in the store. 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

Absolute Executive Recruitment 

 
info@axr.com.au 
(02) 8243 1300 
www.axr.com.au 
 
Absolute is a leader in executive recruutment with a profile that 
has been established over 15 years via relationships with the key 
decision makers in major Australian and multinational 
companies.  AXR specialize in the engineering and accounting 
fields so make them your first port of call when looking to fill a 
position in either of those disciplines. 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 
 

 

Holgate First National Real Estate 

 
mail@holgate.com.au 
(02) 9427 4355 
www.holgate.com.au 
 
Holgate First National have been providers of first class 
property services specializing in the sale and management of 
residential and commercial properties within the communities of 
the Lower North Shore since 1964.  If you’re searching for a 
home in the local area, Holgate First National’s fine homes 
division can provide a property to suit your dreams. 
 

 

 

Zoti Sport 

 
sales@zotisports.com 
+ 852 3426 2182 / 83 
www.zotisports.com 
 
Zoti Sports was established in October 2006 offering sports 
clothing in a range of eleven sports.  They have fast become a 
well-established brand through supplying superior quality 
garments and providing a high quality of customer service.   
 
If your club or tournament would like to discuss working in 
partnership with Zoti, please contact them using the details 
above. 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

Proactive Graphics 

 
info@proactivegraphics.com.au 
 (02) 9211 0775 
www.proactivegraphics.com.au 
 
Proactive is a design, print and publishing studio where fast, 
excellent and meticulous service isn’t simply a promise – it 
embodies the spirit of everything they do.  Proactive delivers 
highly creative solutions developed to bring your strategic 
business goals to life. 
 

Storage King 

 
(02) 9420 2220 
www.storagelanecove.com.au 
 
Welcome to the largest self storage facility on Sydney's North 
Shore. We provide safe, clean, secure storage for your personal 
and business needs.  
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PRESIDENT’S REPORT 2013/2014 
 
 
No report received. 
 
 
Damian Naughton 
President 



TREASURER’S REPORT 2013/2014 
 
 
The 2013/14 season was solid from a financial perspective.  There is a continued shortage of senior 
players that has led to a decline in senior subscriptions.  The number of junior teams continues to be 
strong with a consistent level of subscriptions. 
 
For the year ended 30 April 2014 the Club returned a net profit of $ 15,377 consistent with prior 
year financial performance.  Continued growth in junior subscriptions is becoming the cornerstone 
of the club, and a large amount of this has been reinvested into infrastructure within the Lane Cove 
area.  As always, it’s pleasing to see newcomers to the Club and the sport of cricket and the Club 
needs to ensure that a lot of time and effort is invested into the future of the Club being the junior 
teams.  The Club has utilised its investment returns and retained surplus to invest in infrastructure 
projects off the back of the Kingsford Smith nets ($40,000 in 2012/13) with additional 
commitments to the Lane Cove Council for the development of Practice Nets ($50,000) and a 
commitment of $10,000 to upgrade the facilities at Tantallon. 
 
All together the Club has provided in excess of $100,000 of funds to local council infrastructure for 
the benefit of cricket over the past two financial years.  Consideration is also being given to the 
prospect of light at Tantallon and additional development of Kingsford Smith. 
 
Despite a solid profit result, overall revenue has decreased approximately 10%.  Costs have been 
managed well in 2014, with a 10% decrease in expenditure, mostly regarding clothing and 
merchandise to ensure that profit levels can be maintained.  The revenue decline was mainly 
contributed by a reduction in senior subscriptions, as a result of “part time” players being utilised to 
fill teams, and a reduction of advertising.  I note that a large amount of the advertising revenue lost 
in 2013/14 has already been replaced and will be of benefit in the 2014/15 financial year.   
 
I would like to thank our sponsors and supporters for their support. 
 
The Club continues to maintain its financial position and we are well positioned for growth.  As a 
Club we have access to the best training and playing facilities in the community.  I would like to 
thank all those involved from captains, junior representatives, coaches, players, parents and 
generally anyone who has continued to carry on the fine traditions of the Lane Cove Cricket Club. 
  
  
 
Paul Bakker 
Hon. Treasurer  



Lane Cove Cricket Club Incorporated   
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income   
For the year ended 30 April 2014   
 

  
  Note  2014  2013 
    $  $ 
       

The above statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the 
accompanying notes 

1 

Revenue    123,767   138,585  
  
Expenses       
     
Clothing & Merchandise    (16,870) (27,191)
Depreciation expense    (1,461) (2,056)
Equipment & Balls    (22,541) (24,727)
Ground Fees    (26,093) (25,938)
Infrastructure Costs    (10,000) -
Registration Fees    (20,341) (21,702)
Trophies    (4,388) (5,112)
Other    (6,696) (14,036)
  
Surplus before income tax expense    15,377   17,823  
  
Income tax expense    -   -  
  
Surplus after income tax expense for the year attributable to the 
members of the Lane Cove Cricket Club Incorporated 

 
 

 
15,377  

 
17,823  

  
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax    -   -  
  
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to the members 
of the Lane Cove Cricket Club Incorporated 

 
 

 
15,377  

 
17,823  

  



Lane Cove Cricket Club Incorporated   
Statement of financial position   
As at 30 April 2014   
 

  
  Note  2014  2013 
    $  $ 
       

The above statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
2 

Assets       
       
Current assets       
Cash and cash equivalents    95,568   67,620  
Trade and other receivables    11,298   15,200  
Stock    6,907   8,517  
Total current assets    113,772   91,337  
       
Non-current assets       
Property, plant and equipment    59,401   59,401  
Accumulated Depreciation    (59,401)  (57,940) 
Total non-current assets    0   1,461 
       
Total assets    113,772   92,798  
  
Liabilities       
       
Current liabilities       
Trade and other payables    10,112   4,515 
Total current liabilities    10,112   4,515 
       
       
Total liabilities    10,112   4,515 
  
Net assets    103,660   88,283  

  
Equity       
Retained surpluses    103,660   88,283  
       
Total equity    103,660   88,283  

  



Lane Cove Cricket Club Incorporated   
Statement of changes in equity   
For the year ended 30 April 2014   
 

  

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
3 

  Retained  Total 
  surpluses  equity 
  $  $ 
     
Balance at1 May 2013  88,283   88,283  
     
Surplus after income tax expense for the year  15,377   15,377  
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  -  -  
     
Total comprehensive income for the year  15,377   15,377  
     
Balance at 30 April 2014  103,660   103,660  

  



Lane Cove Cricket Club Incorporated   
Notes to the financial statements   
30 April 2014   
 

  

  
4 

Note 1. Significant accounting policies 
  
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. These 
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 
  
New, revised or amending Accounting Standards and Interpretations adopted 
The incorporated association has adopted all of the new, revised or amending Accounting Standards and 
Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board ('AASB') that are mandatory for the current 
reporting period. 
  
Any new, revised or amending Accounting Standards or Interpretations that are not yet mandatory have not been 
early adopted. 
  
Basis of preparation 
In the officers' opinion, the incorporated association is not a reporting entity because there are no users dependent 
on general purpose financial statements. 
  
These are special purpose financial statements that have been prepared for the purposes of complying with the 
New South Wales legislation the Associations Incorporation Act 2009, the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 and 
associated regulations. The officers have determined that the accounting policies adopted are appropriate to meet 
the needs of the members of the Lane Cove Cricket Club Inc. 
  
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement requirements 
specified by the Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting 
Standards Board ('AASB') and the disclosure requirements of AASB 101 'Presentation of Financial Statements', 
AASB 107 'Statement of Cash Flows', AASB 108 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and 
Errors', AASB 1031 'Materiality', AASB 1048 'Interpretation of Standards' and AASB 1054 'Australian Additional 
Disclosures', as appropriate for not-for-profit oriented entities. 
  
Revenue recognition 
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the incorporated association and 
the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or 
receivable. 
  
Sales revenue 
Events, fundraising and raffles are recognised when received or receivable. 
  
Donations 
Donations are recognised at the time the pledge is made. 
  
Grants 
Grants are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and 
all attached conditions will be complied with. 
  
Interest 
Interest revenue is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of 
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using 
the effective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the 
expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. 
  
Other revenue 
Other revenue is recognised when it is received or when the right to receive payment is established. 
  
Income tax 
As the incorporated association is a charitable institution in terms of subsection 50-5 of the Income Tax 
Assessment Act 1997, as amended, it is exempt from paying income tax. 
  
Current and non-current classification 
Assets and liabilities are presented in the statement of financial position based on current and non-current 
classification. 
  



Lane Cove Cricket Club Incorporated   
Notes to the financial statements   
30 April 2014   
 

  
Note 1. Significant accounting policies (continued) 
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An asset is current when: it is expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating 
cycle; it is held primarily for the purpose of trading; it is expected to be realised within twelve months after the 
reporting period; or the asset is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a 
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. All other assets are classified as non-current. 
  
A liability is current when: it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; it is held primarily for the purpose of 
trading; it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or there is no unconditional right to 
defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. All other liabilities are 
classified as non-current.  
  
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are always classified as non-current. 
  
Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, 
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known 
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
  
Trade and other receivables 
Other receivables are recognised at amortised cost, less any provision for impairment. 
  
Property, plant and equipment 
Plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Historical cost 
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. 
  
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to write off the net cost of each item of property, plant and 
equipment (excluding land) over their expected useful lives as follows: 
  
Buildings  40 years 
Freehold improvements  15 years 
Plant and equipment  3-7 years 
Motor vehicles  5-7 years 
Office equipment  3-5 years 
  
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each 
reporting date. 
  
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when there is no future economic 
benefit to the incorporated association. Gains and losses between the carrying amount and the disposal proceeds 
are taken to profit or loss. 
  
Impairment of non-financial assets 
Non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's 
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. 
  
Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use. The value-in-use 
is the present value of the estimated future cash flows relating to the asset using a pre-tax discount rate specific to 
the asset or cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Assets that do not have independent cash flows are 
grouped together to form a cash-generating unit. 
  
Trade and other payables 
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the incorporated association prior to the end 
of the financial year and which are unpaid. Due to their short-term nature they are measured at amortised cost and 
are not discounted. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. 
  



Lane Cove Cricket Club Incorporated   
Notes to the financial statements   
30 April 2014   
 

  
Note 1. Significant accounting policies (continued) 
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Fair value measurement 
When an asset or liability, financial or non-financial, is measured at fair value for recognition or disclosure 
purposes, the fair value is based on the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date; and assumes that the transaction will 
take place either: in the principle market; or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market. 
  
Fair value is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, 
assuming they act in their economic best interest. For non-financial assets, the fair value measurement is based on 
its highest and best use. Valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient 
data are available to measure fair value, are used, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and 
minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 
  
 



Pinnacle Incorporated Association Special Purpose   
Notes to the financial statements   
30 June 2014   
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In the officers' opinion: 
  
●  the incorporated association is not a reporting entity because there are no users dependent on general 

purpose financial statements. Accordingly, as described in note 1 to the financial statements, the attached 
special purpose financial statements have been prepared for the purposes of complying with the New South 
Wales legislation the Associations Incorporation Act 2009, the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 and 
associated regulations; 

  
●  the attached financial statements and notes thereto comply with the Accounting Standards as described in 

note 1 to the financial statements; 
  
●  the attached financial statements and notes thereto give a true and fair view of the incorporated 

association's financial position as at 30 April 2014 and of its performance for the financial year ended on 
that date; and 

  
●  there are reasonable grounds to believe that the incorporated association will be able to pay its debts as 

and when they become due and payable. 
  
On behalf of the officers 
  
  
  
  
________________________________ 
 
President 
  
21 August 2014 
Sydney 
  
 



Pinnacle Incorporated Association Special Purpose   
Notes to the financial statements   
30 June 2014   
 

  
Note 18. Reconciliation of surplus after income tax to net cash from operating activities (continued) 
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of The Lane Cove Cricket Club Inc. 

Report on the financial report 

 

I have audited the accompanying financial report, being a special purpose financial report, of the Lane 
Cove Cricket Club Inc., which comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 April 2014, the 
statement of profit or loss for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information, and the officers’  ssertion statement. 
 
Officers’ responsibility for the financial report  

 

The officers of the Lane Cove Cricket Inc. are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial report, and have determined that the basis of preparation described in Note 1, is appropriate to 
meet the requirements of the Act and is appropriate to meet the needs of the members. The officers’ 
responsibility also includes such internal control as the officers determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation and fair presentation of a financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We have conducted 
our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with 
relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the association’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the association’s 
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the officers, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the financial report. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 

 

In my opinion, the financial report gives a true and fair view of the financial position of the Lane Cove 
Cricket Club Inc. as at 30 April 2014, and its financial performance for the year then ended. 
 
Basis of accounting 

 

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1to the financial report, which describes the 
basis of accounting. The financial report has been prepared to assist the Lane Cove Cricket Club Inc. to 
meet the requirements of the Act.  As a result, the financial report may not be suitable for another purpose  
 
 

CROWE HORWATH 

 
DARREN HILL 

Partner 
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SENIOR CLUB REPORTS  
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First Grade Report: 
 

 
No report received. 
 
 
Damian Naughton 
1st Grade Captain 
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First Grade – 2013/2014 at a glance 
 

RND HOME TEAM AWAY TEAM 

1  

Lane Cove 

188 MA Forster 59 J Rixon 45 NC McCoy 3/20 S Dean 

3/31  

Georges River 

9/270(dec) J Kirkness 85 A Wall 56 N Henriques 

32 L O'Hare 4/43  

2  
Lane Cove 

240 SK Roberts 84 J Rixon 56 L Mannering 3/48  

South Sydney 

158 A Childs 84 J Scarcella 5/51  

and 0/117 G Sharman 62* A Cronin 47*  

3  
Mount Pritchard-Southern Districts 

110 MI Shah 35 J Scarcella 6/57 C Bezer 4/34  

Lane Cove 

198 J Gayleard 59 GV Cornelius 33 N Jalil 3/40  

and 1/43  

4  

Burwood Briars 

212 B Sculley 45 M Squire 34 J Rogers 30 J Scarcella 

3/57  

Lane Cove 

95 M Seymour 7/49  

and 4/219 D Naughton 100* J Camarsh 42*  

5  
Lane Cove 

99 A Boorer 7/47  

Epping 

102 M McKeough 35 J Scarcella 3/21 J Camarsh 

3/27  

6  
Lane Cove 

84 B Patel 3/4 BJ Chappelow 3/20  

Strathfield 

6/85 CP Eve 4/28  

7  
Warringah 

72 SK Roberts 4/13 CP Eve 3/17 J Scarcella 3/22  

Lane Cove 

150 GV Cornelius 43 D Naughton 39 G Davies 5/31 

8  
North West Sydney 

7/135(cc) D Nash 30  

Lane Cove 

39 J Nelson 3/6 A Renfrey 3/14  

9  
Lane Cove 

123 AJ Maxwell 34* B Rogers 5/25 A Renfrey 3/17  

North West Sydney 

192 L Ryanhart 54 D Nash 34 C Bezer 3/46  

10  
Lindfield 

184 S Fox 63 C Bezer 3/29  

Lane Cove 

235 J Baker 62 SK Roberts 37 S Monk 4/43 M 

Lomax 3/34  

11  
Auburn 

136 B Gregory 33 SK Roberts 5/19  

Lane Cove 

7/140 SK Roberts 42  

12  

Roseville 

137 D L'Estrange 65 BD Richardson 4/25  

and 3/79 J Blake 40*  

Lane Cove 

147 CP Eve 46 J Rixon 37 D Lenehan 6/29 T 

Clifford 3/29  

and 67 C Caban 4/18 T Clifford 3/12  

13  

Lane Cove 

8/222(dec) CP Eve 100* GV Cornelius 37 S 

Vasudevan 4/30  

Macquarie University 

3/225 N Castelino 101* UH Metha 47  

14  
Lane Cove 

145 GV Cornelius 50 R Younan 3/32  

Pennant Hills 

96 J Scarcella 3/43  
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First Grade – Batting 
 

  Innings NO 100 50 Ducks H/S Runs Average Catch Stump 

G Cornelius 14 0 0 1 1 50 265 18.93 4 - 

D Naughton 16 1 1 0 4 100* 264 17.60 4 - 

C Eve 11 1 1 0 0 100* 231 23.10 3 - 

J Rixon 14 0 0 1 3 56 224 16.00 4 / 5 wk 0 

S Roberts 8 0 0 1 1 84 198 24.75 1 - 

J Camarsh 14 2 0 0 2 42* 174 14.50 2 - 

G Smith 16 1 0 0 4 24 141 9.40 1 - 

J Gayleard 14 0 0 1 3 59 131 9.36 6 - 

J Scarcella 12 0 0 0 4 26 80 6.67 3 - 

A Maxwell 3 1 0 0 0 34* 75 37.50 3 wk 0 

J Baker 2 0 0 1 0 62 68 34.00 1 - 

J Harpham 8 3 0 0 1 23* 65 13.00 1 / 10 wk 0 

M Forster 1 0 0 1 0 59 59 59.00 0 - 

L O'Hare 7 2 0 0 1 16 45 9.00 1 - 

C Bezer 12 5 0 0 2 10 28 4.00 2 - 

W Daly 2 0 0 0 0 13 23 11.50 0 - 

J Vero 1 0 0 0 0 22 22 22.00 0 - 

A Southcott 3 1 0 0 0 18 22 11.00 2 - 

B Richardson 4 0 0 0 1 7 18 4.50 0 - 

P Mallyon 2 2 0 0 0 14* 16 N/A 0 - 

I Davidson 1 0 0 0 0 11 11 11.00 0 - 

M Rixon 1 0 0 0 0 5 5 5.00 0 - 

S Pope 1 0 0 0 0 5 5 5.00 1 - 

R Gallichan 1 0 0 0 0 2 2 2.00 0 - 

A Cornelius 1 1 0 0 0 0* 0 N/A 1 wk - 
 
 

Best Partnerships  
1  45 v Lindfield J.Baker (62), G.Smith (24) 

2  78 v Lindfield J.Baker (62), S.Roberts (37) 

3  41 v Georges River M.Forster (59), J.Gayleard (18) 

4  71 v Burwood D.Naughton (100*), G.Cornelius (29) 

5  120 v South Sydney S.Roberts (84), J.Rixon (56) 

6  40 v Roseville C.Eve (46), J.Camarsh (17) 

7  36 v Pennant Hills G.Cornelius (50), W.Daly (13) 

8  64 v Macquarie Uni C.Eve (100*), J.Scarcella (26) 

9    
10  38 v Lindfield JN.Harpham (23*), C.Bezer (10) 
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First Grade – Bowling 

 
 

  Overs Maidens Runs Wickets 5 w I 10 w M Average Best Strike Economy 

J Scarcella 151.3 38 511 33 2 0 15.48 6/57 27.55 3.37 

C Eve 101 23 275 20 0 0 13.75 4/28 30.30 2.72 

C Bezer 110 25 304 20 0 0 15.20 4/34 33.00 2.76 

S Roberts 78.5 27 179 15 1 0 11.93 5/19 31.53 2.27 

J Camarsh 64.1 7 285 12 0 0 23.75 3/27 32.08 4.44 

L O'Hare 40 2 170 7 0 0 24.29 4/43 34.29 4.25 

B Richardson 24 3 93 6 0 0 15.50 4/25 24.00 3.88 

G Cornelius 5 0 28 4 0 0 7.00 2/7 7.50 5.60 

R Gallichan 4 0 34 2 0 0 17.00 2/34 12.00 8.50 

S Pope 5 0 16 1 0 0 16.00 1/16 30.00 3.20 

D Naughton 3 0 21 1 0 0 21.00 1/21 18.00 7.00 

W Daly 6 0 27 1 0 0 27.00 1/10 36.00 4.50 

P Mallyon 18 6 53 1 0 0 53.00 1/18 108.00 2.94 

M Forster 10 3 20 0 0 0 N/A 0/20 N/A 2.00 

A Cornelius 2 0 10 0 0 0 N/A 0/10 N/A 5.00 

J Baker 6 1 37 0 0 0 N/A 0/37 N/A 6.17 

J Rixon 3 0 19 0 0 0 N/A 0/19 N/A 6.33 

J Gayleard 3.1 0 29 0 0 0 N/A 0/29 N/A 9.16 
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Second Grade Report: 
 

 

After making the grand final last year and managing to retain most of the core of the squad we were 
confident that this year we could go one better and continue the trend over the last few years. 
However as fate would have it the club would struggle for numbers all year and we lacked the depth 
to really challenge for the finals.  
 
With this mind we embarked on the first round of the season versus our friends at Georges River. 
Struggling for genuine bowling stocks we managed to contain them to 4 for 278 before the 
inevitable declaration came. Not before both Cotty and Fish bowled a thousand overs between them 
with no bowling under their belts for many seasons! Anyway, the batting was poor and we managed 
to scrap to 147 in the first innings with Cotty starring with the bat with a well-made 64 and held off 
the outright in the second innings. Points to GR and the season off to usual slow start. 
 
Game two versus South Sydney was a highlight of the season as we secured the services of a few 
handy cricketers, namely Richardson and a bloke called O’Connor. Due to rain the previous week 
we had to play one of those boobish 120 over days.  
 
Winning the toss apparently you should bat on these days, and we did. We had a really good start 
losing only the 2 wickets for a 100. From there we managed to fall over the line and make 192 all 
out from 62 overs, with some late hitting from Richardson and Mees, yes Mees!! (aka BDK) 
 
We started well with the ball and had them 4 for 57 before bowling options started to get a bit thin 
on a relatively hot and long day. In the end we went for the win when we should have played for the 
draw and won by the captain killing amount of 7 runs.  Again Richardson contributing with the 4 
wickets.  
 
Order was then restored with rounds 3 and 4 versus Southern Districts and Burwood being healthy 
defeats with a 64 from Cotty being the only contribution of note. Round 5 versus Epping saw a 
competitive loss, our third in a row, with both Davo and Hairy managing to get themselves out on 
49. 
 
Round 6 would see us return to the winners circle beating Strathfield by the 5 wickets with Hairy 
belting a Covie ton 69 not out, well supported by Will.i. am with a 30 and 4 poles.  
 
Covie season now 2 and 4 and could go either way from here! 
 
Reality has a nasty way of appearing when you least expect it and before we knew it rounds 7 and 8 
(Warringah and NWS) were gone and our thoughts of the finals not far behind them. However a 
spirited win versus NWS, by the huge total of 5 runs, with the ten players, gave us a slither of hope.  
 
This hope was duly crushed in our round 10 match against Lindfield as we managed to lose it in the 
second last over, not being able to defend a pretty handy 263. The highlights of the match being 
Maxwell’s return to form and Cotty’s legendary status confirmed with being put on the front yard of 
the houses on Epping Road. A fall from grace from the waistline-challenged bowling guru who only 
a week before bowled us to an unlikely win v NWS. Let’s just say he was in no rush to bowl again.  
 
Season now really getting away from us. 
 
 



 

  
15 

Unfortunately rounds 9, 10, 11 followed the same theme as did round 12 versus Roseville which 
saw us record our first and only outright loss of the season, after throwing caution to the win and 
pushing for an outright ourselves.  Some long hitting from Maxy not being enough. 
 
With little more than pride now to play for we managed to hold off an outright loss versus Mac Uni 
(yes, Mac Uni, we are not proud of ourselves) thanks mainly to some dumb captaining by leaving 
the declaration too late and some pretty disciplined batting from this dumb captain. A personal 
slowest innings of 65 not out from about 180 rocks! Cricket really was the winner that day as we 
brought the crowds back.  
 
Finally the last game of the longest season in the world was upon us as we took on the might of 
Pennant Hills in a one-day match. Going out winners was on our mind and particularly on 
Maxwell’s as he proceeded to rob himself of a ton, bowled for 89 in the 50th over chasing quick 
runs and triple figures. 
 
A massive total of 253 saw Penno, have as much as interest as we did, before falling perilously 
close to our score all out for 152. Finally a win for the little guy!  
 
In the end we managed to win a solid 4 games for the season, slightly less then we anticipated 6 
months beforehand. However, at times we had some fun, other times not so much fun and some 
good cricket was watched – mainly by us in the field!  
 
For the guys who showed up each week I thank you for all your efforts on and off the field 
throughout the season. We weren’t good enough for the competition this year as a team but a few of 
us held our own as individuals, something at least to build on for next season. I would also like to 
thank you guys for putting up with my captaincy for the last 3 seasons. It has been a lot of fun and I 
have been proud of the efforts and performances I have had the pleasure of sharing, however it is 
time for some else to take the reins. All the best for next season!    
 
 
Sam Mantarro 
2nd Grade captain 
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Second Grade – 2013/2014 at a glance 
 

RND HOME TEAM AWAY TEAM 

1  
Georges River 

4/276(dec) T Nuske 78 B Worger 66 SM Mantle 60*  

Lane Cove 

147 A Southcott 64 GR Lattouf 4/25  

and 4/126 S Carnaffan 48 M Bedsen 31  

2  

South Sydney 

185 BJ Hudson 73 S Srinivasakannan 55 BD Richardson 

4/48  

Lane Cove 

192 S Mantarro 60 BD Richardson 34 S Carnaffan 30 BJ Hudson 

4/28 CB Finnemore 4/44  

3  
Lane Cove 

167 L O'Hare 43* S Mantarro 30 D Scheinflug 5/39  

Mt Pritchard-Southern Districts 

243 S Bridges 102* C Oliver 45 CG Reed 3/54  

and 3/93 S Bridges 56*  

4  
Lane Cove 

167 A Southcott 64 S Achmar 4/55 G Metcalfe 3/11  

Burwood Briars 

306 D Kennedy 94* B Critchley 55 C O'Connor 46 G Smith 32 A 

Cornelius 4/43 N Absalom 3/77  

5  
Epping 

5/198 M Bruce 80 J Kew 59*  

Lane Cove 

194 I Davidson 49 A Southcott 49 K Dindayal 32 B Morgan 4/21  

6  
Strathfield 

155 P Mallyon 5/42 W Daly 4/20  

Lane Cove 

5/156 L O'Hare 69* W Daly 30 DR Spears 3/46  

7  
Lane Cove 

109 J Crombie 4/12 J Wigney 3/27  

Warringah 

184 B Lloyd-Green 59* C Pecar 33 L O'Hare 3/26 A Cornelius 

3/33  

8  
Lane Cove 

69 B Spice 3/12 S Brenner 3/14  

North West Sydney 

4/142(cc) C Steel 43 T Ward 42 D Wynn 31  

9  

North West Sydney 

221 D Wynn 55 B Seath 39 B Spice 30 A Southcott 3/29 A 

Cornelius 3/30  

Lane Cove 

8/227(cc) S Carnaffan 43 A Southcott 33  

10  

Lane Cove 

9/263(cc) S Willoughby 63* OC Fisher 39 AJ Maxwell 39 S 

Read 3/50  

Lindfield 

6/264 A Kemmis 110 LJ Stewart 46* T Kerr 34 BJ Scott 32  

11  
Lane Cove 

145 K Dindayal 39 W Daly 31 A Marzouk 4/22  

Auburn 

196 S Liyanage 70 T Amirthalingam 30 L O'Hare 3/28 OC Fisher 

3/54  

12  

Lane Cove 

129 AJ Maxwell 48 G Spruce 3/33 S Hetherton 3/49  

and 78 AJ Maxwell 47* B Medway 5/16  

Roseville 

198 L Mead 33 N Stapleton 31 A Cornelius 3/53  

and 7/105(dec) B McLean 31 P Mallyon 4/45 N Absalom 3/8  

13  
Macquarie University 

5/209(dec) H Sankar 104*  

Lane Cove 

109 DC Delaney 34 H Sankar 3/20  

and 2/128 S Mantarro 65* A Southcott 43  

14  
Pennant Hills 

9/152 HS Randhawa 33 P Mallyon 4/41  

Lane Cove 

9/253(cc) AJ Maxwell 89 K Dindayal 30  
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Second Grade – Batting 
 

  Innings NO 100 50 Ducks H/S Runs Average Catch Stump 

S Mantarro 15 1 0 2 0 65* 297 21.21 6 - 

A Maxwell 10 1 0 1 1 89 292 32.44 4 / 1 wk 0 

A Southcott 13 0 0 2 2 64 289 22.23 4 - 

S Carnaffan 13 0 0 0 1 48 237 18.23 4 - 

K Dindayal 15 2 0 0 1 39 228 17.54 5 - 

L O'Hare 6 2 0 1 0 69* 151 37.75 4 - 

I Davidson 9 0 0 0 1 49 139 15.44 1 - 

O Fisher 11 1 0 0 2 39 135 13.50 2 - 

W Daly 9 0 0 0 0 31 111 12.33 2 - 

S Willoughby 3 1 0 1 0 63* 83 41.50 3 / 4 wk 1 

M Bedsen 5 0 0 0 0 31 68 13.60 0 - 

P Mees 10 1 0 0 2 24 57 6.33 2 / 9 wk 5 

A Cornelius 9 3 0 0 3 21* 56 9.33 3 - 

D Delaney 1 0 0 0 0 34 34 34.00 0 - 

B Richardson 1 0 0 0 0 34 34 34.00 0 - 

N Absalom 7 4 0 0 0 12 34 11.33 0 - 

C Reed 4 0 0 0 2 17 32 8.00 0 - 

P Mallyon 8 4 0 0 0 7 25 6.25 0 - 

M Doherty 5 0 0 0 1 9 23 4.60 1 - 

S Cox 2 0 0 0 0 9 18 9.00 0 - 

J Clarke 2 2 0 0 0 14* 15 N/A 2 - 

C Hipkin 1 0 0 0 0 2 2 2.00 0 - 

L O'Connor 1 0 0 0 0 2 2 2.00 1 - 

N Shah 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 1.00 1 wk 0 

A Sidhu 1 1 0 0 0 0* 0 N/A 0 - 

G Lawson 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0.00 1 - 

M Keane 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0.00 0 - 

R Masterson 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0.00 0 - 

A Ostowari 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0.00 0 - 

 
 
Best Partnerships  

1  55 v South Sydney S.Carnaffan (30), S.Mantarro (60) 

2  66 v Macquarie Uni S.Mantarro (65*), A.Southcott (43) 

3  70 v Epping A.Southcott (49), L.O'Hare (26) 

4  34 v Southern Districts S.Mantarro (30), K.Dindayal (23) 

5  69 v Lindfield O.Fisher (39), A.Maxwell (39) 

6  46 v Burwood A.Southcott (64), I.Davidson (29) 

7  66 v Auburn K.Dindayal (39), W.Daly (31) 

8  83 v Lindfield I.Davidson (27), S.Willoughby (63*) 

9    
10    
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Second Grade – Bowling 

  
  Overs Maidens Runs Wickets 5 w I 10 w M Average Best Strike Economy 

P Mallyon 83.1 5 360 20 1 0 18.00 5/42 24.95 4.33 

A Cornelius 105 21 399 16 0 0 24.94 4/43 39.38 3.80 

O Fisher 73 4 330 14 0 0 23.57 3/54 31.29 4.52 

L O'Hare 58.4 7 185 9 0 0 20.56 3/26 39.11 3.15 

N Absalom 63 10 222 9 0 0 24.67 3/8 42.00 3.52 

W Daly 51.5 3 241 9 0 0 26.78 4/20 34.56 4.65 

K Dindayal 66 8 243 7 0 0 34.71 2/16 56.57 3.68 

A Southcott 33.1 1 142 5 0 0 28.40 3/29 39.80 4.28 

B Richardson 15.3 2 48 4 0 0 12.00 4/48 23.25 3.10 

S Cox 15.2 1 70 4 0 0 17.50 2/24 23.00 4.57 

C Reed 39 3 170 4 0 0 42.50 3/54 58.50 4.36 

M Keane 21 0 90 3 0 0 30.00 2/73 42.00 4.29 

I Davidson 34 1 216 3 0 0 72.00 2/77 68.00 6.35 

A Maxwell 8.4 2 17 2 0 0 8.50 2/3 26.00 1.96 

D Delaney 7 0 47 2 0 0 23.50 2/47 21.00 6.71 

G Lawson 11 1 52 2 0 0 26.00 2/29 33.00 4.73 

A Sidhu 24 2 77 2 0 0 38.50 1/33 72.00 3.21 

C Hipkin 8 0 36 1 0 0 36.00 1/36 48.00 4.50 

J Clarke 10 1 45 1 0 0 45.00 1/7 60.00 4.50 

A Ostowari 6 0 19 0 0 0 N/A 0/19 N/A 3.17 

R Masterson 2 0 12 0 0 0 N/A  N/A 6.00 
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Third Grade Report: 
 
 
No report received. 
 
 
Chuck Hipkin 
3rd Grade Captain 
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Third Grade – 2013/2014 at a glance 

 

RND HOME TEAM AWAY TEAM 

1  

Lane Cove 

64 S Woods 6/26 N Robertson 3/25  

and 190 R McElduff 87 S Woods 4/52  

Georges River 

3/131(dec) B Dodd 67*  

and 4/126 J Anthony 89* S Cox 3/27  

2  

Lane Cove 

104 R Sharma 5/32 A Sohag 4/21  

and 9/206(dec) R McElduff 81 B Irwin 3/35  

South Sydney 

93 JT Liddle 40 A Sidhu 4/15 P Sinclair 3/25  

and 9/128 R Sharma 52 A Sohag 33 A Sidhu 

4/35 A Cornelius 3/29  

3  

Mt Pritchard-Southern Districts 

9/312(dec) A Langdon 85 G Sandhu 68 M Baker 66 

D Wegner 41 M Page 3/51  

Lane Cove 

204 GP Read 77 AJ Maxwell 74  

4  

Burwood Briars 

41 JR Clarke 6/17 C Hipkin 4/24  

and 3/93 G Long 32*  

Lane Cove 

48 T Threlkeld 4/13 M Towells 4/22  

and 84 J Gayleard 30 S Khalkho 4/5  

5  

Lane Cove 

55 B Wassell 7/21  

and 110 S Sidhu 55 J Bradley 4/7  

Epping 

230 B Wassell 66 M Boorer 39 D Shaw 32 C 

Hipkin 4/91  

6  
Lane Cove 

124 R Patel 3/32  

Strathfield 

4/126 D Devidas 40*  

7  
Warringah 

184 H Paterick 39 A Sidhu 4/40  

Lane Cove 

9/138 LA Scott 36  

8  
North West Sydney 

3/102 L Woodman 49*  

Lane Cove 

9/100(cc) L Blue 3/10  

9  

Lane Cove 

9/157(cc) GP Read 38 M Schaafsma 36 JS 

Kasthuriarachchi 4/37  

North West Sydney 

8/161 J Fineberg 46 C Hipkin 3/38  

10  
Lindfield 

123 M Chauhan 5/28  

Lane Cove 

8/124 L Hearne 50  

11  
Auburn 

122 C Hipkin 5/26  

Lane Cove 

4/123 L Hearne 55*  

12  

Roseville 

7/212(dec) B Warnes 48 D Maiolo 31 GP Read 3/48  

and 1/15  

Lane Cove 

111 A Craig 56* J Kakkad 5/22  

and 115 J Kakkad 4/9  

13  

Lane Cove 

77 B De Caria 31 S Nagarajan 3/4  

and 89 JR Clarke 39 M Ismail 5/15 G Brown 4/48  

Macquarie University 

3/88(dec) T Grellman 44 S Rose 30  

and 1/79  

14  
Lane Cove 

100 P Sood 4/23 A Arif 3/47  

Pennant Hills 

5/103 M Arif 32  
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Third Grade Statistics 

 
 
Statistics incomplete. 
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Fourth Grade Report: 
 
 
Lane Cove 4th Grade has been a pleasure to captain this 2013/2014 season. While we didn’t register 
a win, nor came close to any, it has still been a load of fun to see all the young blokes participate 
and enjoy the Covie atmosphere that even I have enjoyed upon my first season at the club.  
 
I only began to skipper as of round 6 against Epping. It was a hard fought game, with Covies being 
put in to bat first on an absolute road. We needed to bat all day, however we could only muster 180 
in our first innings.  After getting 2 early wickets, an Epping Bulls partnership took place with their 
side taking in first innings points. It was the start of something great as a lot of youngn’s took stride 
and showed flair in their bowling and fielding against an old Bulls side. Kudos to Christian King 
who took those 3 early wickets with his rippa offiez.  
 
Our next game featured myself and only juniors! Apart from me (21), everyone else was 15 or 
younger. This was against the Strathfield ‘Roy’ Gorillas (I hope everyone gets the reference. If not, 
you shouldn’t be playing cricket). We had them rattling, as they were 5 down for 50, but then a 
partnership broke loose and we finally had them all out for 200. However we had a massive batting 
collapse as we were 7-40. I ran out of partners as we got all out for 102. A big loss but a good test 
of strength. We can only come back stronger next season. Ollie Zannino deserves strong praise as 
I’ve never seen such an agile keeper talk so much behind the stumps. So much energy ought to be 
praised at such a young age.  
 
Our next game against Warringah wasn’t a different kettle of fish to the last few games. We were 
sent into bat on a very damp Longueville Oval. I have never seen so much swing. Never the less the 
pitch got better as the day went on and we posted a total of 184 with Ollie Zannino carrying his bat 
with a halfie. All the others chipped in equally. We knew that Warringah was a batting attack, and 
on a good batting deck we had to be on our game if we wanted to get them all out. Again we had a 
couple of quick wickets at the start. Covie veteran Brian took 2 whilst Spaceman Aresh took 1, to 
have Warringah at 3/13 after 4 overs. But then it went downhill as the next batsman who according 
to youngn’s Angus Dowey and Nick Tillack, was too big and strong to be fit for 4th grade - I 
somewhat agreed. He belted a 42 ball century, using the short side of Longueville Oval to guide the 
Men in Green to a 7 wicket victory. I have no more comments on Warringah. 
 
The final game of the year was against North West Sydney in a T20. We were sent in to bat, and 
whilst we didn’t have David Warner or Glen Maxwell to hit sixes every over, North West Sydney 
definitely did. We posted a modest 9-119 after 20 overs, with Ollie Zannino and Angus Dowey 
smashing a 30 run opening partnership after 4 overs. However, despite our young courage, the 
North Sydney batsman took heave from ball one, with their skipper belting me for a couple of 
boundaries early in the opening overs. They chased our score down in 12 overs - not because we 
were not competent bowlers, but because they just kept hitting sixes every over.  
 
Aresh ‘Kevin Spacey’ Ostowari was the star for the next game after the Christmas and New Year 
Holidays. Having not taken a wicket at all in the season so far, he took a Michelle against North 
West Sydney, to EVERYONE’S surprise. I remember coming back to Longy and telling Charlie 
Skipkin of the news, and he was aghast. I am not sure on how he responded to that. The same sort 
of reactions came about from Nick ‘The Rock’ Johnston, and Julian ‘Fair Dinkum’ Luke. A 
GREAT catch was taken by Nick Tillack, of which still amazes me to this day. He dove forward, 
with the ball coming in off a powerful aerial cover drive low on Nick. I reckon that’s worth 
nominating for a KFC Classic Catch.  
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The subsequent game against Auburn was one of the lowest points of my season. It was not because 
of our players, or the opposition. It was because I had discharged myself from the hospital only the 
night before from a severe gastro attack which was still eating away at my insides. I wasn’t able to 
do the covers or find someone else to replace the captaincy. Nevertheless I still came in, not 
wanting to let the team down and just in case we could snare a sneaky win as Auburn were one 
place in front of us…2nd last that is. We were sent in to bat, much to my delight as I needed the 
bathroom every 10 minutes or so. When I did come in to bat however, I retired after 3 balls having 
nearly dropped a large loaf on the way back to the grandstand. It was our worst loss, as we posted 
98 on the board, and Auburn chased it down in 8 overs, no wickets lost. I then got Tommy C to give 
me a lift back to the hospital where I remained for the next 4 days.  
 
After recovering we played Macquarie Uni, which was another disappointment as we had 7 and 2 
players respectively for that two day game. Yes …2. All our juniors had to go back to their school 
cricket as the holidays were over. What happened to ‘play school cricket during the week’? 
Anyways, even when we fielded with two players, it still took Mac Uni 14 overs to chase down the 
30 or so runs they needed for the outright win. We even took 3 wickets! Let’s just forget about that 
game and never speak of it again. 
 
The final game however was a lot better. We had 11 players, we bowled well and fielded well. The 
Pennant Hills batsmen definitely knew we were a young side and took us for granted early on, as 
they lost 6 quick wickets for 40 runs. However, after drinks we became lopsided with our fielding 
and a strong partnership brewed for about 200 runs. In the end, they were 8 for 290 after 50 overs, 
with Aresh Ostowari picking up 2 of those quick wickets. In my opinion we didn’t lose the game as 
the final game of the season represented what we have to learn for next season: to stay strong and 
not fall back when things are looking good for us. We need to stay hungry all the time, even when 
we’re full.  
 
Overall, it was definitely a great year and I wouldn’t take any of it back. I hope to captain the same 
boys and men who fought with me till the very end of the season. I can’t wait to see more juniors 
grow with the club. Special mentions to a few of the standout juniors: Ollie Zannino, Nick Tillack, 
Angus Dowey, Ryan McElduff, James Armstrong and the Shaw Brothers. 
 
 
Neel Shah 
4th Grade Captain 
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Fourth Grade – 2013/2014 at a glance  

 

RND HOME TEAM AWAY TEAM 

1  

Georges River 

9/201(dec) B Saunders 64 M Ellis 42* BA Scott 4/50  

and 0/11  

Lane Cove 

56 P Kennedy 5/9 L Byron 3/17  

and 155 P Spruce 40 G Scott 36  

2  

South Sydney 

169 N George 60 C Doughan 34 BA Scott 6/24 J Shaw 4/46  

and 1/92(dec) C Doughan 67*  

Lane Cove 

84 N George 6/26  

and 7/51 J Goswami 3/12  

3  

Lane Cove 

223 S Sidhu 71 P Thakur 40 BW Cox 5/42  

and 6/61  

Mt Pritchard-Southern Districts 

166 BW Cox 67 BA Scott 5/62 SA Campbell 3/18  

and 155 SA Trevena 70 BA Scott 4/81  

4  

Lane Cove 

62 A Mahajan 6/9  

and 43 A Mahajan 7/14  

Burwood Briars 

4/212(dec) A Hodgess 104* D Urquhart 41  

5  
Epping 

3/179 A Nicoletti 81* N Cox 76  

Lane Cove 

177 N Shah 88 A Nicoletti 6/54  

6  
Strathfield 

216 S Sandhu 60 N Shah 3/35 L Hearne 3/39  

Lane Cove 

92 N Shah 42* C Orampadu 4/33  

7  
Lane Cove 

182 O Zannino 56 N Shah 38 J Wood 3/18  

Warringah 

3/187 B Lewis 111* J Fraser 37*  

8  
Lane Cove 

9/112(cc) N Shah 31  

North West Sydney 

6/115  

9  

North West Sydney 

9/294(cc) K Pathirane 120 A Luan 41 A Macic 32 A Ostowari 

5/50  

Lane Cove 

64 J Macdonald 3/14  

10  
Lane Cove 

168 T Carnaffan 51 H Hilliar 3/18  

Lindfield 

4/169 J Goldston-Morris 44* J Levy 33*  

11  
Lane Cove 

99 S Alam 4/16 N Sandanam 3/8 R Noori 3/30  

Auburn 

0/105 J Bell 66*  

12  

Lane Cove 

184 N Shah 37 JD Armstrong 34 P Grimble 3/33 L Wilson 3/39  

and 67 L Wilson 6/34 H Singh 3/26  

Roseville 

9/258(dec) N Dhinda 87 MM Davoren 72 O Dhadge 3/43 

and 2/149(dec) N Miller 75*  

13  

Macquarie University 

4/99(dec) M Rasotra 34*  

and 2/32  

Lane Cove 

91 A Burford 5/30 S Bolton 3/29  

and 39 S Bolton 4/13 A Burford 3/18  

14  

Pennant Hills 

7/276(cc) S Akbari 109* M Gade 48 J Andersen 38* H Shaw 

3/56  

Lane Cove 

114 MB Jackson 3/23 A Tanveer 3/36  
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Fourth Grade – Batting 

 

  Innings NO 100 50 Ducks H/S Runs Average Catch Stump 

N Shah 12 1 0 1 1 88 325 29.55 10 - 

O Zannino 6 0 0 1 1 56 100 16.67 1 / 3 wk 4 

J Armstrong 7 0 0 0 0 34 89 12.71 0 - 

S Sidhu 2 0 0 1 0 71 86 43.00 0 - 

G Scott 5 0 0 0 1 36 71 14.20 0 - 

A Srivastava 6 0 0 0 2 22 69 11.50 1 wk 0 

A Dowey 6 0 0 0 0 18 61 10.17 0 - 

P Thakur 3 0 0 0 0 40 55 18.33 1 - 

S Shaeih 8 1 0 0 2 22 54 7.71 1 - 

B Scott 10 6 0 0 0 26* 52 13.00 3 - 

P Spruce 4 0 0 0 0 40 52 13.00 3 / 1 wk 0 

T Carnaffan 1 0 0 1 0 51 51 51.00 1 - 

S Campbell 4 1 0 0 0 27 48 16.00 0 - 

B Haughton 8 3 0 0 1 13 48 9.60 0 - 

Y You 6 0 0 0 1 18 46 7.67 0 - 

O Dhadge 6 1 0 0 0 24 43 8.60 1 - 

J Shaw 5 0 0 0 1 26 42 8.40 2 - 

S Willoughby 6 0 0 0 1 19 42 7.00 1 / 5 wk 0 

M Schaafsma 2 1 0 0 0 24 41 41.00 0 - 

J Shah 13 1 0 0 5 12 34 2.83 1 - 

R Su 2 0 0 0 0 20 29 14.50 0 - 

S Arudpragasam 3 0 0 0 0 11 29 9.67 0 - 

J Lloyd 2 0 0 0 0 24 28 14.00 0 - 

S Carnaffan 1 0 0 0 0 26 26 26.00 0 - 

N Sharples 1 0 0 0 0 21 25 25.00 0 - 

M Doherty 2 0 0 0 0 15 24 12.00 0 - 

R McElduff 1 0 0 0 0 23 23 23.00 0 - 

S King 1 0 0 0 0 21 21 21.00 1 - 

B Dempsey 2 0 0 0 0 18 21 10.50 0 - 

A Cowell 1 0 0 0 0 19 19 19.00 1 - 

G Sundstrom 1 0 0 0 0 19 19 19.00 1 - 

H Shaw 4 1 0 0 1 9* 17 5.67 1 - 

A Ostowari 6 1 0 0 0 7 15 3.00 0 - 

B Kirubakaran 7 1 0 0 1 4 15 2.50 0 - 

A Sidhu 2 1 0 0 0 13* 14 14.00 1 - 

N Tillack 3 1 0 0 1 7 13 6.50 0 - 

C King 2 0 0 0 0 8 13 6.50 0 - 

A Carre 2 0 0 0 1 13 13 6.50 1 - 

V Halasagi 3 0 0 0 0 8 12 4.00 0 - 

A Bray 4 0 0 0 2 7 12 3.00 4 - 

D Manescu 5 3 0 0 0 3* 9 4.50 3 - 

D Simmons 4 0 0 0 2 7 9 2.25 0 - 

O Young 1 0 0 0 0 8 8 8.00 0 - 

C Reed 2 0 0 0 0 6 8 4.00 1 - 

O Forde 3 0 0 0 0 4 8 2.67 0 - 

J Shaw 4 1 0 0 0 5 8 2.67 0 - 

G Lawson 2 2 0 0 0 3* 4 N/A 0 - 

A Gissing 2 0 0 0 0 3 4 2.00 0 - 

L Hearne 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 1.00 0 - 

U Patel 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0.00 0 - 

S Sinha 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0.00 0 - 

A Gerrand 4 0 0 0 4 0 0 0.00 0 - 
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Best Partnerships  

1  53 v Georges River S.Willoughby (19), P.Spruce (40) 

2  62 v Southern Districts M.Schaafsma (24), P.Thakur (40) 

3  35 v Georges River G.Scott (36), S.Campbell (27) 

4  26 v Southern Districts M.Schaafsma (17*), S.Sidhu (15) 

5  41 v Epping J.Shah (4), N.Shah (88) 

6  65 v Southern Districts S.Sidhu (71), S.Campbell (10) 

7    
8    
9  28 v South Sydney J.Shaw (26), S.Arudpragasam (11) 

10  26 v Georges River B.Scott (26*), A.Gerrand (0) 

 

Fourth Grade – Bowling 

 

  Overs Maidens Runs Wickets 5 w I 10 w M Average Best Strike Economy 

B Scott 107.1 23 375 22 2 0 17.05 6/24 29.23 3.50 

N Shah 90 1 318 17 0 0 18.71 3/35 31.76 3.53 

A Ostowari 30 0 158 8 1 0 19.75 5/50 22.50 5.27 

O Dhadge 32 0 166 6 0 0 27.67 3/43 32.00 5.19 

J Shaw 21.2 3 121 5 0 0 24.20 4/46 25.60 5.67 

S Campbell 19 3 68 4 0 0 17.00 3/18 28.50 3.58 

H Shaw 24 1 161 4 0 0 40.25 3/56 36.00 6.71 

B Kirubakaran 32.3 0 185 4 0 0 46.25 2/35 48.75 5.69 

L Hearne 9 0 39 3 0 0 13.00 3/39 18.00 4.33 

C King 15.3 1 52 3 0 0 17.33 1/52 31.00 3.35 

O Forde 14.1 0 67 3 0 0 22.33 2/40 28.33 4.73 

A Sidhu 17 2 76 3 0 0 25.33 2/46 34.00 4.47 

J Armstrong 33.2 0 203 3 0 0 67.67 1/26 66.67 6.09 

A Carre 4 0 38 2 0 0 19.00 2/38 12.00 9.50 

A Bray 13 2 58 2 0 0 29.00 1/8 39.00 4.46 

S King 3 0 0 1 0 0 0.00  18.00 0.00 

S Sidhu 3 2 3 1 0 0 3.00 1/3 18.00 1.00 

D Manescu 0.4 0 4 1 0 0 4.00 1/4 4.00 6.00 

P Spruce 8 4 15 1 0 0 15.00 1/15 48.00 1.88 

O Zannino 5 0 29 1 0 0 29.00 1/17 30.00 5.80 

G Lawson 10 0 49 1 0 0 49.00 1/21 60.00 4.90 

C Reed 8 0 54 1 0 0 54.00 1/39 48.00 6.75 

A Gerrand 7 0 58 1 0 0 58.00 1/35 42.00 8.29 

A Gissing 8 0 0 0 0 0 N/A  N/A 0.00 

S Carnaffan 10 1 31 0 0 0 N/A 0/31 N/A 3.10 

A Srivastava 28 3 97 0 0 0 N/A 0/38 N/A 3.46 

A Dowey 6 0 23 0 0 0 N/A  N/A 3.83 

D Simmons 15.1 2 64 0 0 0 N/A 0/5 N/A 4.22 

N Tillack 9 0 41 0 0 0 N/A  N/A 4.56 

J Shaw 4 0 23 0 0 0 N/A  N/A 5.75 

S Shaeih 16 0 95 0 0 0 N/A  N/A 5.94 

V Halasagi 4 0 26 0 0 0 N/A  N/A 6.50 

U Patel 2 0 18 0 0 0 N/A 0/18 N/A 9.00 

Y You 5 0 49 0 0 0 N/A  N/A 9.80 

B Haughton 3 0 33 0 0 0 N/A  N/A 11.00 

S Arudpragasam 3 0 40 0 0 0 N/A  N/A 13.33 

G Scott 1 0 14 0 0 0 N/A  N/A 14.00 

J Shah 1 0 22 0 0 0 N/A  N/A 22.00 
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Fifth Grade Report: 
 
 
It was a long, long year for the Lane Cove 5th Graders this year. With a record reading 3 Wins, 2 
Ties and 13 Loses many would say that it was also an unsuccessful year. However, in true Muppets 
fashion we will choose to look at it as a year of building for the future. What else can you say when 
an 11 year old wins the bowling award for the year! 
 
We had many highs and way too many lows in 5th grade this year, but on a positive note here a few 
of the up lifting moments of the year. 
 

• Jonty Webb, all of 11 years of age, taking 17 wickets to take out the years bowling award. 

• 3 magnific tons brought up by some of the older generation in the club:  

o Daryl Webb, 105 against North West Sydney on a steaming afternoon at 

Castlewood. 

o Matt Rogers, 104* on an even hotter day against Lindfield 

o Matt Fanning , 110 also against Lindfield. 

• Chasing down 274 against Linfield in 36.4 overs.  Achieved by the two majestic 100’s by 

the two Matt’s above. They shared in a 161 run partnership which is also the highest 

partnership for any wicket in 5th grade for Lane Cove. 

• Defending 95 Mt Pritchard at Tantallon the following week. 

• Watching Pushkar, get knocked over twice on 49. 

• Paul “Chewy” Bakker hitting a six off the last ball to tie the twenty20 game. 

• Aiden Gerrand’s 10 ducks for the year including 7 on the trot. 

As can be seen wins were a little hard to come by this year, however, it was the development of the 
juniors that was the major achievement of the year. With us old blokes starting to retire, move 
away, drop off with other commitments and general physical inability to back up week after week, a 
great emphasis was put into bringing up our junior ranks into 5th grade to give them a taste of senior 
cricket. Players such as Jonty Webb, Max Rogers, Rhys Fletcher, Sam Fanning, Angus Carre, 
Mitchell Crayn, Adam Sidhu, Will, Tom and Geordie Bremner and Sean O’Farrell, all stepped up 
well above their age group to get a taste of senior cricket. Hopefully they all learnt a lot and this 
first taste will inspire them to play for Lane Cove for many years to come. A special thanks to 
people like Brendon Hood, Steve Crayn, Daryl Webb and Stan Sidhu for help organising these 
juniors and enabling us to hopefully develop these potential future hi grade senior players. 
 
A special note must also be made about our now former Skipper, Steve “Neville” Campbell. After a 
number of years great service, Fat Skip has now hung up the boots and become a house husband in 
New York, New York. Apparently it is a great town and the big man is enjoying many of fellow 
Covie Schooner’s donuts. The big Skip’s shoes are extremely hard to fill as most players generally 
like getting involved in the action and not just leaning on the fence in the shade at deep cover. 
 
 
Andrew Bray 
5th Grade Stalwart 
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 Fifth Grade – 2013/2014 at a glance 

 

RND HOME TEAM AWAY TEAM 

1  Lane Cove Mt Pritchard-Sthn Districts 

2  
Lane Cove 

9/160(cc) S Crayn 56* BS Hood 32 B Skinner 3/23  

Burwood Briars Gold 

9/160 J Haikin 56* P Sinclair 3/19  

3  
Lane Cove 

172 P Sinclair 59* A Cowell 38 SP Bugeia 6/21  

Georges River Stingrays 

201 J Barrett 80 S Jasper 36 A Bray 4/25 P Bakker 4/36  

4  
Lane Cove 

190 D Webb 68 P Thakur 49  

RHH Sydney Pirates 

3/193 J Summers 72* T Mystakas 39 L Singh 39*  

5  Auburn Lane Cove 

6  

Roseville 

194 A Hughes 53 S Dudani 32 SP Rangarajan 4/25 J Webb 

3/10  

Lane Cove 

138 SP Rangarajan 50 N Chellappah 33 a Sharma 3/20  

7  

North West Sydney 

7/277(cc) D Fordham 71 J Robertson 45 JR Chaney 33 M 

Cook 30 J Frei 30 G Bremner 4/22  

Lane Cove 

9/247 D Webb 105 NI Sharples 34 SA Martin 3/20  

8  
Lane Cove 

1/43  
Warringah Green 

9  
Lane Cove 

10/127 B Broyd 52 B Manenti 5/18  

Sydney 

6/209(cc) P Nirmalendran 66 JT Weragoda 51 B 

Manenti 45 P Thakur 3/21  

10  
Burwood Briars Maroon 

8/184 M Towells 47 M Taberner 40  

Lane Cove 

5/219(cc) SP Rangarajan 79 BS Hood 55* P Thakur 40 

M Taberner 3/30  

11  

Uni NSW 

7/236(cc) AJ Brown 67 A Xu 64 RK Sharma 48 AS 

Sukumar 31  

Lane Cove 

134 AJ Carre 40 SP Rangarajan 38 K Kishor 3/20 A 

Gnyawali 3/37  

12  

South Sydney 

6/230(cc) BD Harford 89 C Pook 59* S Harford 30 R 

Fletcher 3/42  

Lane Cove 

134 BS Hood 45* J Goswami 3/19 S Thampapillai 3/36  

13  
Warringah White 

6/116(cc) AJ Carre 4/26  

Lane Cove 

8/116(cc) J O'Sullivan 3/15 I Thompson 3/16  

14  
Lane Cove 

7/173(cc) M Rogers 83*  

Georges River Sharks 

8/197(cc) M Simpson 43 T Heslehurst 36 T Aggett 35  

15  
Lindfield 

2/274(cc) T Mears 85 BR Scott 79* A Mitchell 74  

Lane Cove 

4/278 M Fanning 110 M Rogers 104*  

16  
Lane Cove 

95 M Fanning 39  

Mt Pritchard-Sthn Districts 

90 R Fletcher 3/15  
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17  
Burwood Briars Gold 

2/148 S Brennan 58 J Haikin 37* N Maher 34*  

Lane Cove 

8/147(cc) S Fanning 68* M Fanning 59  

18  
Georges River Stingrays 

6/295(cc) A Willmore 128* SP Bugeia 87 P Murali 3/47  

Lane Cove 

87 BS Hood 48* SP Bugeia 5/18  

19  Auburn Lane Cove 

20  
RHH Sydney Pirates 

8/263(cc) L Singh 114 A Khan 52 C Smith 41 J Webb 4/32 

Lane Cove 

9/122 M Rogers 31 G Bremner 30 A Upadhyay 3/14  

21  North West Sydney Lane Cove 

22  
Lane Cove 

157 NI Sharples 41 SA Campbell 30 NH Healey 4/18  

Warringah Green 

2/160 M Brock 41 LE Kerr 38  
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Fifth Grade – Batting  
 

  Innings NO 100 50 Ducks H/S Runs Average Catch Stump 

D Webb 12 0 1 1 1 105 310 25.83 1 - 

B Hood 10 3 0 1 1 55* 247 35.29 3 / 1 wk 0 

M Rogers 8 2 1 1 3 104* 235 39.17 4 - 

S Rangarajan 6 0 0 2 0 79 225 37.50 0 - 

M Fanning 4 0 1 1 0 110 219 54.75 0 - 

P Thakur 8 0 0 0 1 49 134 16.75 4 - 

A Carre 5 0 0 0 0 40 110 22.00 2 - 

N Sharples 4 0 0 0 0 41 99 24.75 3 wk 0 

S Fanning 3 1 0 1 0 68* 93 46.50 0 - 

B Broyd 6 2 0 1 1 52 85 21.25 0 - 

P Bakker 5 2 0 0 0 22 71 23.67 1 - 

S Crayn 2 1 0 1 0 56* 68 68.00 1 - 

A Bray 11 2 0 0 2 23 66 7.33 0 - 

P Sinclair 3 1 0 1 0 59* 61 30.50 1 - 

P Spruce 5 1 0 0 1 27* 52 13.00 0 - 

A Cowell 4 0 0 0 0 38 48 12.00 0 2 

R Fletcher 6 0 0 0 0 17 42 7.00 0 - 

S Campbell 3 1 0 0 1 30 38 19.00 0 - 

G Bremner 3 0 0 0 1 30 34 11.33 1 - 

N Chellappah 1 0 0 0 0 33 33 33.00 0 - 

J Webb 10 4 0 0 2 8 28 4.67 0 - 

M Thomas 3 0 0 0 1 21 26 8.67 1 2 

T Berry 1 0 0 0 0 21 21 21.00 0 - 

K Fletcher 2 0 0 0 0 12 19 9.50 0 - 

R Sheather 3 0 0 0 0 9 18 6.00 1 - 

P Murali 3 1 0 0 0 6* 14 7.00 0 - 

A Gerrand 9 0 0 0 4 4 14 1.56 2 - 

K Deepak 2 0 0 0 0 10 11 5.50 0 - 

T Willoughby 1 1 0 0 0 10* 10 N/A 0 - 

S Arudpragasam 4 2 0 0 0 3* 8 4.00 0 - 

B De Caria 1 0 0 0 0 7 7 7.00 0 - 

P Gough 1 0 0 0 0 7 7 7.00 0 - 

K Desouza 1 1 0 0 0 6* 6 N/A 0 - 

W Bremner 2 0 0 0 1 6 6 3.00 1 - 

A Sidhu 1 0 0 0 0 5 5 5.00 0 - 

J Shaw 1 0 0 0 0 5 5 5.00 0 - 

J Unwin 2 0 0 0 0 3 5 2.50 1 - 

M Rogers 7 1 0 0 4 4 5 0.83 0 1 

C Frankish 1 0 0 0 0 4 4 4.00 0 - 

T Bremner 1 0 0 0 0 4 4 4.00 0 - 

U Patel 3 1 0 0 2 4* 4 2.00 0 - 

M Crayn 2 1 0 0 1 3* 3 3.00 0 1 

H Shaw 2 0 0 0 1 2 2 1.00 0 - 

J Shaw 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0.00 1 - 

T Mackay 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0.00 0 - 

S O'Farrell 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0.00 0 - 
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Best Partnerships  

1  94 v Burwood Maroon P.Thakur (40), S.Rangarajan (79) 

2  161 v Lindfield M.Fanning (110), M.Rogers (104*) 

3  53 v RHH Sydney D.Webb (68), B.Hood (21) 

4  41 v Burwood Maroon B.Hood (55*), C.Frankish (4) 

5  73 v Georges River Sharks M.Rogers (83*), R.Fletcher (17) 

6  104 v NW Sydney D.Webb (105), N.Sharples (34) 

7  34 v Sydney B.Broyd (52), A.Gerrand (4) 

8    
9    

10    
 

Fifth Grade – Bowling 
 

  Overs Maidens Runs Wickets 5 w I 10 w M Average Best Strike Economy 

J Webb 47 1 283 17 0 0 16.65 4/32 16.59 6.02 

R Fletcher 45.4 4 230 10 0 0 23.00 3/15 27.40 5.04 

A Bray 47 1 276 9 0 0 30.67 4/25 31.33 5.87 

S Rangarajan 33 4 129 7 0 0 18.43 4/25 28.29 3.91 

A Carre 25 1 146 6 0 0 24.33 4/26 25.00 5.84 

P Bakker 29 3 174 6 0 0 29.00 4/36 29.00 6.00 

P Murali 21 1 100 5 0 0 20.00 3/47 25.20 4.76 

B Broyd 50 3 248 5 0 0 49.60 2/31 60.00 4.96 

G Bremner 20 2 92 4 0 0 23.00 4/22 30.00 4.60 

P Thakur 29 3 157 4 0 0 39.25 3/21 43.50 5.41 

S Crayn 16 3 39 3 0 0 13.00 2/27 32.00 2.44 

A Sidhu 9.4 0 40 3 0 0 13.33 2/23 19.33 4.14 

P Sinclair 20 2 84 3 0 0 28.00 3/19 40.00 4.20 

A Gerrand 38 0 276 3 0 0 92.00 1/19 76.00 7.26 

J Unwin 13 0 65 2 0 0 32.50 2/43 39.00 5.00 

H Shaw 10.1 0 69 2 0 0 34.50 2/23 30.50 6.79 

S Campbell 23 2 76 2 0 0 38.00 1/12 69.00 3.30 

S Arudpragasam 25 1 151 2 0 0 75.50 2/36 75.00 6.04 

J Shaw 5 0 24 1 0 0 24.00 1/24 30.00 4.80 

G Sundstrom 8 0 35 1 0 0 35.00 1/35 48.00 4.38 

T Mackay 8 0 35 1 0 0 35.00 1/35 48.00 4.38 

D Webb 6.1 1 38 1 0 0 38.00 1/13 37.00 6.16 

W Bremner 11 0 92 1 0 0 92.00 1/39 66.00 8.36 

K Desouza 4 0 13 0 0 0 N/A 0/13 N/A 3.25 

P Spruce 14 2 52 0 0 0 N/A 0/10 N/A 3.71 

C Frankish 6 0 24 0 0 0 N/A 0/24 N/A 4.00 

N Sharples 2.1 0 9 0 0 0 N/A  N/A 4.15 

S Fanning 10 1 45 0 0 0 N/A 0/8 N/A 4.50 

N Chellappah 6 0 28 0 0 0 N/A 0/28 N/A 4.67 

U Patel 12 0 62 0 0 0 N/A 0/2 N/A 5.17 

T Bremner 4 0 27 0 0 0 N/A 0/27 N/A 6.75 

M Thomas 8 0 59 0 0 0 N/A 0/10 N/A 7.38 

T Willoughby 3 0 23 0 0 0 N/A  N/A 7.67 

T Berry 3 0 24 0 0 0 N/A  N/A 8.00 

K Deepak 3 0 26 0 0 0 N/A 0/26 N/A 8.67 

J Shaw 3 0 26 0 0 0 N/A 0/26 N/A 8.67 

B De Caria 2 0 27 0 0 0 N/A 0/27 N/A 13.50 
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Frank Gray Shield Report: 

 
 
There were some very promising signs in what, on the whole, was a considerable improvement for 
Lane Cove’s Frank Gray Shield Side. Despite managing only the one win across the 7-game season, 
we managed to compete strongly in 5 of the 7 games, and improvement was made in almost all 
areas from previous seasons. 
 
Our season kicked off with a game against Mac Uni, after days of heavy rain, and we were greeted 
with a deck which would best be described as ‘barely playable’. In light of this, the toss was going 
to be crucial, and it was not a favourable result for the Coves as we were sent in to bat. Missing a 
few players, we fought hard on the low and slow deck to scrap a defendable total together, led by 
Kiran Dindayal with 22. The conditions made it difficult to gain any momentum however, and we 
were bowled out in the 42nd over for 98. As the deck dried during the break, and batting became 
considerably easier, the task became more difficult. The side showed good discipline in bowling 
good areas, and staying up and about in the field, though in the end the result went against us. 
 
Round 2 saw us host Roseville, a side we fancied our chances against, particularly with a couple 
more ins for the side. We were sent in to bat, and looked set to reach a good total at 3/52 before the 
all too familiar middle-order collapse saw us reeling at 9/78 before scrapping to 96. A second total 
of under 100 was frustrating, but we knew that with the bowling attack we had, it was not beyond 
defending. After a few quick wickets and tight bowling from Charlie Hipkin and Liam O’Hare in 
the middle of Roseville’s innings, there was still a chance with two new batsmen in at 5/60. Some 
lucky batting unfortunately saw Roseville home however. Not the start to the season we had hoped 
for. 
 
Round 3 saw us put together our strongest team of the season against Burwood, a side with several 
first and second graders, and one who had experienced a lot of success recently. A sharp and intense 
warm-up was an ominous sign, as we put together what was easily the best all-round performance 
from a Frank Gray side I have seen since playing at the club. Winning the toss on a good looking 
Tanty deck, Oliver Young and Sean Carnaffan strode out to the crease to start us off. The next 15 
overs was simply awesome, as both Ols and Sean took Burwood’s attack apart, smashing a 150 run 
opening stand, in what was just shy of a club record for an opening stand in Frank Gray. Both the 
openers easily passed half-centuries, with Ols falling only a few boundaries short of a century. The 
platform set by the openers was built on by the middle order batsmen, with discipline shown to 
ensure we stuck to the job, and batted out the 50 overs for a total of 246. The most complete batting 
performance I had seen, and one which we will hopefully be able to look back on as the benchmark 
in coming seasons. Despite our solid total, we knew Burwood had some very solid batsmen, and we 
recognised we would have to follow up the batting with a strong bowling and fielding performance 
to ensure we got the cookies. The fielding was sharp in the early overs, though no breakthrough to 
speak of. Charlie bowled well, and eventually got a breakthrough to set the ball rolling. In stepped 
Liam with one of the most dominant bowling spells I have seen in a long time. Within 3 overs, he 
had his 5-fa, bowling the perfect line and nipping the ball both ways off the deck. In the process he 
comprehensively bowled 3 Burwood batsmen, including their Captain and their best bat. With solid 
support from Alec Cornelius, who bowled extremely well throughout the season for us, Burwood 
had slumped to 8/57 and victory looked inevitable. A hard slog for the final two wickets, and some 
burglary from the Captain resulted in a 130-run bonus point win for the Coves, putting our season 
back on track, and giving us some momentum heading into the final round before the break.  
 
South Sydney away was the next task for the young Coves. Souths, like us, had been steadily 
improving as a side over the last couple of years; however we felt we certainly had their measure 
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with the talent across our side. Sending Souths in on a typical lifeless Alan Davidson deck looked 
the right decision early as solid bowling efforts again from Cornelius, Charlie and Liam saw Souths 
struggling at 8/120 after almost 40 overs. Will Daly bowled superbly in the middle overs, 
completing his 10 overs at a frugal economy rate, and also picking up a couple of important 
wickets. One Souths batsmen was able to get on top of the bowlers, ending up with 82 as the final 
wicket to fall, however we had done well to contain the Souths to 156 all out. The reply started off 
very well, with Ols and Sean picking up where they left off the week before, sending the wayward 
Souths opening bowlers to all parts. On came the ‘dangerous leggie’. Sending down some of the 
slowest arm balls I have seen, several of our batsmen managed to get themselves out in an 
embarrassing period of 10 or so overs that saw us slump to 8/90 odd. The Captain and Cornelius 
were left with the task of steadying the ship, and Cornelius showed significant discipline to bat 
within himself and tap the ball around for singles regularly. The partnership saw the Coves to 
within 8 runs of victory before Cornelius unfortunately fell after a very solid innings. In came 
Charlie Hipkin, who looked good from the outset. With two runs needed, Charlie feathered an edge 
to the Souths keeper, who took a sharp chance up at the stumps to give Souths the victory. It was a 
heartbreaking loss for the Coves, as we were in the box seat for the majority of the game, but fell 
just short in the end. The batting from our lower order however must be commended, as we got far 
closer than looked likely at 8/90. 
 
Rounds 5 and 6 were tough for the Coves, with many players unavailable over the January period. 
Several younger players were asked to step up, and did so valiantly, however the tough opposition 
in Warringah and Georges River proved too strong. Special mention to Will Daly who was given 
captaincy duties against Warringah, and led strongly, scoring a tough half century to ensure the 
Coves set a respectable total.  
 
The final round against Mount-Pritchard at home summed up the story of the season for the team. 
We batted first, and started solidly at the top thanks largely to Ols and Sean. A shaky middle order 
collapse, followed by a slight recovery from the lower order got us to a respectable, although 
slightly below par total. We bowled and fielded well, and fought hard to take the 10 wickets needed, 
but in the end, we didn’t have enough runs to play with, and fell a few wickets short of taking out 
the win. 
 
Despite the win-loss record, I saw substantial improvements from the boys, both individually, and 
as a team. Our bowling and fielding were particularly impressive, and gives us a solid platform to 
build from going into next season. A particular mention goes to Liam O’Hare, who was far and 
away the best of our bowlers, with some devastating spells throughout the season. He was 
supported well by Alec Cornelius and Charlie Hipkin, who both continue to improve as they get 
more experience. As is the story with most Covie teams, our batting continues to let us down, 
particularly during the middle overs, and is something we will need to improve on to compete come 
finals next season. Our two openers, Ols and Sean, were a shining light at the top of the order, and 
going forward we have the Burwood game as a perfect example for how good we can be as a side 
when everything clicks. Finally, Jarrod Rixon deserves a special mention as well, for taking the 
gloves for the entire season, and doing a consistent and reliable job. 
 
I look forward to taking it to the next level next season. 
 
 
Joe Scarcella 
Frank Gray Captain 
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Frank Gray – 2013/2014 at a glance  

 
 
Results incomplete. 
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Frank Gray – Batting 

 
 
Statistics incomplete. 
 
 
 

Frank Gray – Bowling 

 
 
Statistics incomplete. 
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APPENDIX 

 
CLUB RECORDS 

 

OFFICE BEARERS OF THE CLUB 
 

PRESIDENT: 

 

1904-1919 H.C. Catt 
1919-1937 J.W. Tomlin 
1937-1941 A.B. Campbell 
1941-1948 H.R. Alder 
1948-1961 M.M. Wilson 
1961-1968 J.B. Hollander 
1968-1982 J.F. Dettmann 
1982-1985 A. Harris 
1985-1989 P. Bullock 

1989-1990 B.A. Scott 
1990-1992 P.W. Watkins 
1992-1996 B.A. Scott  
1996-1999       I. Green 
1999-2000 A. Kelleher 
2000-2009    J.F. Lloyd 
2009-2010    G. Boyle 
2010-2013    B. Hood 
2013-  D. Naughton 

 

HONORARY SECRETARY: 

 

1904-1908 W.J. Hanley 
1908-1909 C.R. Cornwell 
1909-1912 W.J. Turner 
1912-1914 R.H. Henniker 
1914-1915 G.R. Dettmann 
1915-1919 W.J. Turner 
1919-1922 G.R. Dettman 
1922-1927 C.L. Fox 
1927-1929 J.B. Stack 
1929-1933 E.L. Tyler 
1933-1934 G.R. Dettmann 
1934-1935 A.S. Luke 
1935-1938 G.R. Dettmann 
1938-1940 M.M. Wilson 
1940-1942 J.B. Hollander 
1942-1946 M.M Wilson 
1946-1961 J.B. Hollander 
1961-1966 J.F. Dettmann 
1966-1968 A.R. Emmett 
1968-1970 K.D. Wark 
1970-1973 P.J. Rickey 
1973-1974 A.R. Emmett 
1974-1975 A.C. Cunningham 

1975-1976 A.R. Emmett 
1976-1978 A.C. Cunningham 
1978-1981 D.C. Magarey 
1981-1982 R.A. Blakeney 
1982-1985 D. Harris 
1985-1986 E. Petrie 
1986-1988 P. Sherwood 
1988-1990 P.W. Watkins 
1990-1991 S. Evershead 
1991-1992 I. Fairall 
1992-1993 B. Bennett 
1993-1995 J. Hill 
1995-1999 I. Fairall 
1999-2000 T. Shilton 
2000-2001      B. Richardson 
2001-2002      C. Granger 
2002-2005 S. Flynn 
2005-2006 G. Sundstrom 
2006-2007 J.D. Harpham 
2007-2009      G. Boyle 
2009-2012      G. Sundstrom 
2012-2013 S. Arudpragasam 
2013-  D. Bezer 
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HONORARY TREASURER: 

 

1908-1915 A.B. Campbell 
1915-1937 H.J. Scope 
1937-1940 E.L. Tyler 
1940-1941 J.B. Slack/G. Humphries 
1941-1942 M. Salier 
1942-1946 F.S. Hendy 
1946-1948 J. Dolman 
1948-1961 J. F. Dettmann 
1961-1968 G.S. Pownall 
1968-1969 S.W. Emmett 
1969-1970 I.D. Chalmers 
1970-1973 J. Gilbert 
1973-1974 B. Flemming/J. Goff 
1974-1975 J. Goff 
1975-1978 B.A. Scott 

1978-1982 N. Dettmann 
1982-1984 B.A. Scott 
1984-1985 P. Bullock 
1985-1986 D. Harris 
1986-1991 K. Best 
1991-1993 M. Tulich 
1993-1994 M. Staples 
1994-1995 J. Hayes 
1995-2000 G. Imhoff 
2000-2004       J. Sharp 
2004-2005 B. Hood 
2005-2006 J.D. Harpham 
2006-2008  C. Granger 
2008-2013  R. Higgins 
2013-  P. Bakker 

 

 

JUVENILE SECRETARY: 

 

1981-1982 A. Kelleher 
1982-1985 G. Schaper/R.A. Blakeney 
1985-1987 R.A. Blakeney 
1987-1988 J.McCormick 
1988-1990 M. Hood 
1991-1992 P. Watkins 
1995-1998 J. Hayes 

1998-2003 R. Weber 
2003-2008  J. Lloyd 
2008-2009  B. Hood 
2009-2011    T. Ryan 
2011-2013    M.Mahoney 
2013-  S. Crayn 

 

 

 

Lane Cove Cricket Club Premierships 

Municipal & Shires 

 

1st GRADE 

1923-24 
1925-26 
1926-27 
1927-28 
1938-39 
1939-40 
1945-46 
2011-12 

2nd GRADE 

1940-41 
1948-49 
1960-61 
1962-63 
1968-69 
1969-70 
1988-89 
2005-06 

 

3rd GRADE 

1969-70 
1970-71 
1973-74 

4th GRADE 

2011-12 

FRANK GRAY 

2006-07 
TIM CREER CUP 
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4000 RUNS 
 

Name: Inn N.O H.S Agg Avge 

J.F. Dettmann 621 52 195 12,995 22.84 
R.M. Metzler 588 102 157 12,375 25.46 
I. Hiddilston 407 34 152* 9,262 24.83 
J.B. Hollander 380 54 148 9,050 27.76 
K. Best 337 57 116 8,109 28.96 
C.A. Burgess 383 16 113 7,260 19.78 
J.F. Lloyd 377 24 158 7,253 20.55 
S.A. Butcher 279 19 169 6,181 23.77 
D. Naughton 235 27 162* 5,985 28.78 
B. Hood 285 36 225 5,844 23.47 
J.K. French 317 33 99 5,801 20.43 
A.B. Campbell 153 24 177 5,335 41.36 
P.K. Fitzgerald 257 27 145 5,172 22.49 
T. Beattie 226 29 152* 5,079 25.78 
G. Samuelson 264 18 118 4,584 18.63 
B.C. Wall 159 11 188 4,473 30.22 
C. McKay 228 20 114* 4,296 20.65 
D. Treweek 217 30 105 4,229 22.61 
H. Simmons 177 12 142 4,160 25.21 

C. Granger 210 22 144 4,111 21.87 

  
 

400 WICKETS 

 

Name: Overs Maidens Runs Wickets Avge 

B.A. Scott 6,787 1,476 21,431 1,108 19.34 
J.F. Dettmann 3,608 338  14,752 1,011 14.59 
J. Dolman 2,539 268 8,665 836 10.36 
G.R. Dettmann 2,303 236 9,395 738 12.73 
A.C. Cunningham 2,012 198 8,647 528 16.38 
H. Kallas 2,350 583 7,641 507 15.07 
T. Cunningham 1,839 272 6,580  471 13.97 
P. Preston 2,293 403 7,469 464 16.10 
B. Richardson 2,442.3 358 8,225 429 19.17 
R.E. Pym Snr 1,580 213 6,098 420 14.52 
P. Wilson 1,738 268 7,422 414 17.93 
T. Holt 2,158 404 7,000 411 17.03 
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50 DISMISSALS BY A WICKETKEEPER 
 

Name: Caught Stumped Total 

A. Emmett 110 49 159 
K. Wark 108 49 157 
P. Ginns 125 18 143 
J.N. Harpham 114 7 121 
G. Moorhead 108 10 118 
K. Best 104 11 115 
S. Flynn 93 21 113 
R. Frazer 76 26 102 
P.J. Fitzgerald 85 16 101 
P.K. Fitzgerald 86 15 101 
A. Kelleher 104 1 105 
A. Maxwell 82 14 96 
P. Brett 84 3 87 
S. Willoughby 71 13 84 
A. Arkey 61 18 79 
T. Naughton 66 7 73 
D.R. Magarey 55 6 61 
J. Gray 50 10 60 
P. Mees 49 10 59 
H.J. Clark 26 27 53 
 

 

MOST RUNS IN A SEASON 

 

A.B. Campbell  1,012 runs  1923-24 

  
 

MOST WICKETS IN A SEASON 

 

G.R. Dettmann 106 wickets 1930-31 

 

 

HIGHEST INDIVIDUAL SCORE 

 

B Hood 225 runs, 5th Grade 1996-97 

P Cross 202*, 1st Grade 2008-09 
 

 

MOST RUNS IN “A” SHIRE 
 

 Inn NO HS Agg Average 

J B Hollander  371 53 148 8,723 27.43 
 
 

CENTURY IN EACH INNINGS OF A MATCH 
 
A B Campbell  104 not out and 103 not out 1931-32 
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HIGHEST TOTAL BY A TEAM 
 
A Shire vs Epping 602 runs 1936-37 
 

RECORD PARTNERSHIP 
 
D C Reid (165) and C L Fox (163) 276 runs 1925-26 
 
MOST DISMISSALS BY A WICKETKEEPER IN A SEASON 
 
A. Kelleher – 40 1997-98 
 

MOST CATCHES BY A FIELDSMAN 
 

C Burgess 17 catches C Shire 1963-64 
J  R Mullins 18 catches C & S  1966-67 
D Naughton 25 catches 1st Grade & U24’s 2004-05 
 
MOST CENTURIES IN A SEASON 
 

I Russell  5 A Shire 1965-66 
 
RECORD PARTNERSHIPS CLUB 

 

• Denotes not out / unbroken 
 

1st 273 M Punch 175 A Southcott 124* 2004-05 
2nd 276 D Reid 165 C Fox 163 1925-26 
3rd 186 R Huxley 112 A Harris 94 2001-02 
4th 256* P Sherwood 161* J Pym 107* 1984-85 
5th 263 J Hollander 148 R Metzler 138 1956-57 
6th 199 B Arnall 139 A Maxwell 120 2011-12 
7th 205 T Beattie 152* T Cunningham 72 1967-68 
8th 129 R Metzler 88 E Browne 55 1954-55 
9th 111 A Maxwell 167 S Willoughby 22 2005-06 
10th 112 P Wilson 73 W Sinclair 26* 1966-67 
 

RECORD PARTNERSHIPS IN A SHIRE 
 

1st 221 A Murphy 122 K Best 103* 1984-85 
2nd 276 D Reid 165 C Fox 163 1925-26 
3rd 186 R Huxley 112 A Harris 94 2001-02 
4th 256* P Sherwood 161* J Pym 107* 1984-85 
5th 263 J Hollander 148 R Metzler 138 1956-57 
6th 153 B Sheidow 127 C Fox 53 1930-31 
7th 148* T Beattie 91* P Wilson 59* 1970-71 
8th 129 R Metzler 88 E Browne 55 1954-55 
9th   77 G Dettmann 48* C Cane 46 1930-31 
10th 112 P Wilson 73 W Sinclair 26* 1966-67 
       
RECORD PARTNERSHIPS IN B SHIRE 
 

1st 273 M Punch 175 A Southcott 124* 2004-05 
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2nd 174 C McKay 113 I Davidson 78 2004-05 
3rd 159 P Flemming 101 P Ginns 59* 1991-92 
4th 134 B Fleming 129* I Coupland 45 1972-73 
5th 149 J Colgan 102 J Pogonoski 63 1996-97 
6th 136 G Wark 75 J Dettmann 51 1969-70 
7th 205 T Beattie 152* T Cunningham 72 1967-68 
8th   89 P Ginns 56 M Mitchell 68* 1991-92 
9th 105* M Stone 68* C Robertson 43* 2004-05 
10th   95 J Scarcella 100* N Absalom 14 2011-12 
 

RECORD PARTNERSHIPS IN C SHIRE 

 

1st 193 J Lloyd 158 J Lees 66 2002-03 
2nd 202 J Lloyd 126 A Krishnaswamy 85 2002-03 
3rd 149 P Rickey 92 S Edwards 54 1969-70 
4th 207* G Breusch 116* A Kelleher 100* 1980-81 
5th 178 T Beattie 125* N Dettmann 66 1979-80 
6th 153 C Burgess 113 P Rickey 54 1964-65 
7th 133 J Fellows 95 C Burgess 81 1964-65 
8th   81 P Sherwood 90 R Chard 18* 1973-74 
9th 111 A Maxwell 167 S Willoughby 22 2005-06 
10th   77 N.Trumbull 69* L.Putnam-Gray 33 2009-10 
 

RECORD PARTNERSHIPS D SHIRE 
 

1st 149 P Miller 151 B Knowles 20 1984-85 
2nd 103 J.Lloyd 88 O.Fisher 64 2007-08 
3rd 178 K Clarke 120 G Scott 103* 2006-07 
4th 162 B McVicar 103 R Maclaine 52* 1984-85 
5th 195* B Dibden 102* A Vaughan 101* 2002-03 
6th 199 B Arnall 139 A Maxwell 120 2011-12 
7th 163 J Lloyd 95 P Tompsett 75 2008-09 
8th 104 P.Tompsett 49 J.Clarke 54 2009-10 
9th   53 P Wilkins 37 M Tzikas 12* 1992-93 
10th   69 R Metzler 77* A Szabo 44 1982-83 
 

RECORD PARTNERSHIPS FRANK GRAY SHIELD 
 

1st 153* G Sundstrom   78* M Mackenzie   49* 2003-04 
2nd   86 P Brett 44 M Mackenzie 46 2006-07 
3rd 142 M Mackenzie 64 D Naughton 77 2006-07 
4th 125 P Nirmalendran 54 J Rixon 109 2012-13 
5th   67 P Brett 93 J Bates 27 2006-07 
6th 116* J Bates   73* A Maxwell   38* 2006-07 
7th   32 J Bates 22 A Maxwell 19 2006-07 
8th   78 S Dunn 

J Standing 
90 
45 

P Sinclair 
S Willoughby 

21 
18 

2009-10 
2010-11 

9th   56 S Dunn 90 L Putnam-Gray 25 2009-10 
10th       
HAT TRICKS 

These do not appear to have been recorded before 1930 but since then are: 
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G R Dettmann A Shire 1935-36 
J N Campbell A Shire 1939-40 
J F Dettmann (twice) B Shire 1940-41 
J Norton B Shire 1940-41 
J M Emmingham C & S 1946-47 
W Magson B Shire 1946-47 
J F Dettmann A Shire 1948-49 
J Dolman (twice) A Shire 1948-49 
F Manc C & S 1949-50 
J F Dettmann A Shire 1951-52 
B Ames Gordon B 1953-54 
R E Pym (Snr) B Shire 1955-56 
G Lind Gordon A 1955-56 
A Cunningham B Shire 1956-57 
W Duff A Shire 1956-57 
J Currie B Shire 1956-57 
R Hinwood B Shire 1957-58 
W Duff A Shire 1957-58 
H Kallas B Shire 1960-61 
P Chilton C & S 1961-62 
J F Dettmann B Shire 1962-63 
J R Mullins C & S 1962-63 
H Garvan C & S 1962-63 
T Cunningham A Shire  1963-64 
E B Miles C & S 1964-65 
B Temple-Smith C & S 1964-65 
T Beattie A Shire 1966-67 
J Blaikie A Shire 1966-67 
T Cunningham B Shire 1966-67 
D Jones C Shire 1966-67 
S Edwards Gordon A 1967-68 
P Wilson A Shire 1969-70 
J McIlwraith Gordon A 1970-71 
T Beattie A Shire 1970-71 
K Olliver C & S 1971-72 
H Kallas A Shire 1972-73 
L Carter C Shire 1975-76 
H Kallas A Shire 1976-77 
D Harris B Shire 1980-81 
B McVicar A Shire 1981-82 
B McVicar D Shire 1984-85 
J Wallace D Shire 1991-92 
M Skipper 4th Grade 1995-96 
A Dodds 4th Grade 2002-03 
I Davidson 2nd Grade 2004-05 
O Fisher 4th Grade 2004-05 
C Robertson 3rd Grade                                   2006-07 
I Davidson 2nd Grade 2009-10 
P Nirmalendran 2nd Grade 2012-13 
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The hat tricks by J F Dettmann in 1951-52 against Burwood (6 for 3) and 1962-63 against 
Sutherland (8 for 24) and in 1969-70 by P Wilson against Roseville consisted of four wickets with 
successive balls. 
 
The hat tricks by J F Dettmann and “Peter” Norton in 1940-41 were in the same innings. 
 
500 RUNS IN A SEASON 
 
1923-24 A B Campbell 1012 1964-65 J Dettmann 535 
1924-25 A B Campbell 582 1964-65 R Metzler 511 
1925-26 C L Fox 658 1964-65 I Russell 527 
1926-27 D C Reid 658 1965-66 I Russell 816 
1926-27 A Campbell 654 1965-66 J French 517 
1926-27 N V Smith 607 1966-67 I Russell 607 
1927-28 A B Campbell 616 1966-67 R Metzler 626 
1927-28 L Jacob 577 1966-67 J Goff 513 
1928-29 S A Butcher 603 1967-68 J French 593 
1930-31 A B Campbell 721 1967-68 I Russell 509 
1931-32 A B Campbell 665 1968-69 I Russell 633 
1932-33 B C Sheidow 507 1968-69 L Frankish 501 
1932-33 B C Wall 558 1970-71 P Fitzgerald 544 
1933-34 H Simmons 757 1977-78 K Best 590 
1934-35 B C Wall 612 1980-81 F Paterson 524 
1935-36 H R Alder 503 1980-81 G Breusch 610 
1936-37 B C Wall 662 1984-85 B McVicar 751 
1937-38 G Andrews 607 1984-85 J Pym 621 
1940-41 J F Dettmann 698 1984-85 K Best 578 
1942-43 M Salier 659 1986-87 D McLean 662 
1942-43 B C Wall 503 1988-89 D Stepto 542 
1947-48 J B Hollander 513 1990-91 R McEvilly 512 
1949-50 J F Dettmann 648 1992-93 G Easy 565 
1951-52 I Hiddilston 539 1993-94 A Kelleher 533 
1952-53 R M Metzler 647 1993-94 D Johnson 526 
1952-53 J B Hollander 517 1993-94 H Macdonald 569 
1953-54 R M Metzler 693 1997-98 C Wiseman 651 
1955-56 J B Hollander 513 1997-98 C Granger 505 
1955-56 G Haddon 579 2001-02 D Naughton 527 
1956-57 I Hiddilston 517 2002-03 J Lloyd 603 
1956-57 J B Hollander 742 2004-05 D Naughton 535 
1957-58 I Hiddilston 649 2005-06 C Granger 542 
1957-58 J Dettmann 507 2005-06 D Naughton 535 
1957-58 C Burgess 617 2005-06 A Maxwell 512 
1958-59 I Hiddilston 631 2006-07 C Granger 583 
1960-61 R Metzler 571 2007-08 P Cross 633 
1961-62 R Metzler 508 2008-09 P Cross 637 
1962-63 I Hiddilston 584 2008-09 B Hood 637 
1962-63 J Potter 698 2008-09 A Southcott 517 
1962-63 I Hiddilston 582 2010-11 R Gallichan 680 
1964-65 B Gunn 654 2012-13 D. Naughton 524 
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300 RUNS IN A FRANK GRAY SEASON 
 

2004-05 D Naughton 376  
2005-06 P Brett 311  
2006-07 D Naughton 535 Frank Gray Shires Record 
 
 

50 WICKETS IN A SEASON 
 

1923-24 G R Dettmann 80 1949-50 J Dettmann 57 
1923-24 L Bloomfield 65 1949-50 J Dolman 75 
1923-24 H Scope 55 1950-51 J Dolman 79 
1924-25 N H Fox 54 1951-52 J Dolman 70 
1924-25 H W Fraser 63 1951-52 J Dettmann 55 
1924-25 G R Dettmann 56 1952-53 J Dolman 50 
1927-28 G R Dettmann 63 1953-54 R Hinwood 50 
1927-28 L Jacob 70 1956-57 R Hinwood 50 
1928-29 G R Dettmann 66 1957-58 R Hinwood 54 
1930-31 G R Dettmann 106 1957-58 W Duff 50 
1930-31 W Grant 50 1958-59 A Cunningham 50 
1930-31 A Murray 56 1961-62 W Duff 50 
1931-32 C Murray 64 1966-67 R Pym (Jnr) 50 
1932-33 G R Dettmann 65 1966-67 P Wilson 54 
1932-33 C Murray 62 1967-68 P Wilson 62 
1933-34 A McClintock 51 1969-70 P Wilson 59 
1934-35 R Potts 51 1969-70 T Cunningham 69 
1935-36 G R Dettmann 91 1975-76 M Fitzgerald 60 
1935-36 R Butcher 56 1975-76 A Harris 55 
1938-39 J Campbell 95 1976-77 A Cartwright 51 
1938-39 J Dolman 53 1976-77 W Massey 50 
1939-40 J Campbell 95 1977-78 B Scott 50 
1940-41 J F Dettmann 69 1984-85 B McVicar 70 
1940-41 J H Norton 51 1997-98 C Wiseman 50 
1940-41 F S Hendy 68 1999-2000 T Holt 52 
1945-46 J Dolman 70 2002-03 P Cruden 50 
1945-46 J Dolman 63 2002-03 S Lees 53 
1948-49 J Dettmann 62 2012-13 C Bezer 54 
 

 

20 WICKETS IN A FRANK GRAY SEASON 

 

2004-05 B Richardson 22  
2004-05 T Holt 20  
2006-07 M Mackenzie 29 Frank Gray Shires Record 
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BEST BOWLING 
 

There have been 94 recorded instances of bowlers taking seven wickets in an innings.  Of these, the 
best were Lionel Bloomfield (7-7 in 1923-24), Bruce Ames (7-9 in 1953-54) and Dick Pym (7-19 
twice in one game in 1965-66) and Ian Fairall (7-27 in 1990-91 & 7-9 in 1994-95). 
 

10 WICKETS IN AN INNINGS 
H J Scope 10 for 21 C & S 1917-18 
 

9 WICKETS IN AN INNINGS 
W Duff 9 for 31 B Shire 1961-62 
W Bryan 9 for 17  B Shire 1957-58 
I Nash 9 for 27 D Shire 1995-96 
T Holt 9 for 54 1st Grade 2002-03 
 

8 WICKETS IN AN INNINGS 

B C Wall 8 for 65 A Shire 1933-34 
G Andrews 8 for 38 B Shire 1933-34 
G R Dettmann 8 for 19 A Shire 1935-36 
G Starke 8 for 50 A Shire 1935-36 
G R Dettmann 8 for 63 A Shire 1935-36 
G R Dettmann 8 for 37 A Shire 1935-36 
R E Pym 8 for 17 Gordon A 1954-55 
G Lind 8 for 30 Gordon A 1955-56 
J Mottee 8 for 68 B Shire 1955-56 
P Fellows 8 for 25 A Shire 1960-61 
J F Dettmann 8 for 24 B Shire 1962-63 
G Dawson 8 for 65 C Shire 1966-67 
P Wilson 8 for 79 A Shire 1966-67 
P Wilson 8 for 38 A Shire 1969-70 
P Wilson 8 for 80 A Shire 1969-70 
W Edwards 8 for 32 Gordon A 1969-70 
K Chard 8 for 42 C Shire 1972-73 
T Dagg 8 for 66 C Shire 1972-73 
T Cunningham 8 for 53 C Shire 1973-74 
D Eade 8 for 38 C & S 1974-75 
K Birdsall 8 for 17 C Shire 1975-76 
J Jeffrey 8 for 63 C Shire 1975-76 
J H Dettmann 8 for 45 C Shire 1975-76 
D Eade 8 for 22 C & S 1975-76 
D Eade 8 for 40 C & S 1975-76 
R Massey 8 for 67 C Shire 1976-77 
B Scott 8 for 40 C Shire 1977-78 
H Kallas 8 for 58 A Shire 1978-79 
K Chard 8 for 48 C Shire 1979-80 
R Bruun 8 for 59 C Shire 1985-86 
B Bennett 8 for 48 B Shire 1990-91 
A Hejtmanek 8 for 36 D Shire 1991-92 
G Sanderson 8 for 52 Gordon C Grade 1996-97 
S Lees 8 for 43 D Shire 2002-03 
M.Mackenzie 8 for 32 U24s 2006-07 
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13 OR MORE WICKETS IN A MATCH 
 

R E Pym (Snr) 14 for 38 C Shire 1965-66 
H J Scope 14 for 41 A Shire  1923-24 
B Scott 14 for 100 C Shire 1977-78 
G. Sanderson 14 for ? 5th Grade GDJCA 1996-97 
K Chard 13 for 13 C Shire  1972-73 
A Chapman 13 for 74 Gordon Juniors 1965-66 
A Hejtmanek 13 for 93 D Shire 1991-92 
G Sanderson 14 for 98 Gordon C Grade 1996-97 
T Holt 13 for 89 A Shire 2002-03 
 

BATSMEN WHO HAVE BATTED THROUGH INNINGS 
 

1923-24 C.L. Fox  (B) 79* v Lane Cove A 
1931-32 A.B. Campbell (A) 104* v Western Suburbs 
1931-32 H. Simmons (B) 104* v Balmain 
1933-34 A.B. Campbell (A) 115* v Burwood 
1936-37 H. Simmons (A) 112* v Ryde 
1995-96 A. Ashe (D) 48* v Auburn 
2009-10 A. Southcott 2nd  66* v Macquarie Uni 
 
MORE THAN 50 CATCHES (EXCLUDING WICKET KEEPING) 

Before 1948-49 these were not recorded and since then, in some years, the catching statistics have 
been omitted from team records. The following figures show the number of catches actually 
credited to each player, the figures in the middle column being the number of seasons in which the 
players played but for which no catching record is available. 
 

JF Dettmann 13 149 G Pownall 2 63 
D Naughton 0 142 J Hill 1 62 
RM Metzler 6 141 R McIlwraith 1 62 
BA Scott 0 127 H Kallas 2 61 
I Hiddilston 11 125 C McKay 0 61 
JF Lloyd 0 121 JB Hollander 11 60 
JR Mullins 7 114 B Richardson 0 60 
CA Burgess 6 105 I Davidson 0 59 
L Arambewela 0 102 H Garvan 7 58 
T Cunningham 1 94 K Chard 0 58 
P Preston 2 91 S Myers 0 58 
A Cunningham 3 89 G Schaper 0 58 
JH Dettman 0 88 D Treweek 0 58 
T Holt 0 88 A Southcott 0 57 
K Best 0 86 P Wilson 2 57 
JK French 4  85 D Harris 0 56 
B Hood 0 84 G Humphries 0 56 
T Beattie 1 75 R Rickey 0 56 
G Sundstrom 0 75 G Samuelson 5 54 
A Cartwright 0 71 J Goff 1 53 
T Pearce 2 69 G Cornelius 0 52 
I Russell 1 66 C Granger 0 51 
P Rickey 0 64 G Boyle 0 51 
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BATSMEN WHO HAVE SCORED 150 IN AN INNINGS 
 

B Hood 5th 225 
P Cross 1st Grade 202* 
B McVicar D 197 
J F Dettmann B 195 
K Levy GA 189 
B C Wall A 188 
A B Campbell A 177 
D Johnson C 176 
M Punch 2nd Grade 175 
S A Butcher A 169 
I Russell A 167 
A Maxwell 3rd Grade 167 
H MacDonald GC 166 
D C Reid B 165 
H Van Heerdon 2nd Grade 164* 
C L Fox B 163 
D Naughton 1st Grade 162* 
P Sherwood A 161* 
S Williams C 161* 
J Lloyd C 158 
R M Metzler B 157 
B C Wall A 155 
D C Redi A 154 
J F Dettmann B 153* 
I Hiddilston A 152* 
I Russell A 152* 
T Beattie A 152* 
R M Metzler A 151 
P Miller D 151 
B Hood 4th Grade 150* 
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TEAM SCORES OVER 400 
 

1936-37 A v Epping 602 (180 minutes) 
1927-28 A v St George 474  
1931-32 B v Ryde 430  
1936-37 B v N Districts 410 (9 wickets) 
2002-03 C v S Districts 402 (4 wickets) 
2004-05 2nd v Lindfield 406 (4 wickets) 
 
FASTEST CENTURIES 
 

1948-49 M Wilson CS 100 v Barker Old Boys 28 minutes 
1952-53 C A Burgess WK 106 v Wanderers 36 minutes 
2006-07 D Naughton 1st        100* v Georges River 34 balls 
 
BATSMEN WHO HAVE SCORED 1,000 RUNS IN A SEASON 
 

1920-21 A B Campbell CS 1031 
1923-24 A B Campbell A 1012 
 
25 OR MORE DISMISSALS IN A SEASON BY A WICKET-KEEPER 

Date Name Grade Catches Stumpings Dismissals 

2006-07 T Naughton 1st / U24 38 6 44 
1997-98 A Kelleher 1st 40 0 40 
1995-96 P Fleming 1st/2nd 30 2 32 
2002-03 P Brett 1st/ 2nd/ U24 29 1 30 
1996-97 A Kelleher 1st 29 0 29 
2001-02 S Flynn 1st/2nd/U24  26 3 29 
2005-06 T Naughton 2nd/3rd/4th/U24 28 1 29 
1971-72 P K Fitzgerald A 21 7 28 
2004-05 P Brett 1st/U24 27 1 28 
1951-52 R McGrath A 17 10 27 
1991-92 S Corcoran D 21 5 26 
1972-73 P K Fitzgerald A 23 3 26 
1996-97 G Moorhead 4th 25 1 26 
1995-96 G Moorhead 4th 25 1 26 
2003-04 P Brett 1st/ U24 25 1 26 
2011-12 JN Harpham 1st 25 1 26 
1931-32 G Shaw A 12 13 25 
1983-84 K Best A 20 5 25 
1993-94 P Rayner GC 21 4 25 
2008-09 S Willoughby 2nd / 3rd 20 5 25 
2012-13 P Mees 2nd 24 1 25 
 

 

 

 



 

  
50 

INDIVIDUAL CENTURIES 

Since the beginning of the Shires competition in the 1923-24 season 262 have been recorded. In the 
following list, the legend is: 
 

A (1st) Shire  (A) (1st)  Gordon District A Grade  (GA) 
B (2nd) Shire   (B) (2nd)  Gordon District B Grade  (GB) 
C (3rd) Shire  I (3rd)  Gordon District B Reserve Grade (GBR) 
D (4th) Shire   (D) (4th)  Gordon District C Grade  (GC) 
TCC (5th) Shire – Tim Creer Cup  Willoughby-Kuringai Association (WK) 
      Northern Suburbs Cricket Assoc. (N) 
      City & Suburban   (CS) 
      Not Out    * 
 

1923-24    
A B Campbell A 177 v Gordon 
A B Campbell A 151  
C L Fox A 140  
A B Campbell A 100 v Gordon 
C L Turner B 124 v Petersham 
    
1924-25    
A B Campbell A 123*  
D C Reid A 107  
A Collins B 108  
    
1925-26    
H J Scope A 110  
D Chidgey A 108*  
D C Reid B 165  
C L Fox B 163  
R Brodie B 141  
    
1926-27    
D C Reid A 154  
A B Campbell B 113  
H J Scope B 113  
    
1927-28    
H Buckley A 133*  
A B Campbell A 131  
R Brodie A 102*  
L Jacob B 115  
N Smith B 108  
    
1929-30    
C L Turner A 115  
L J Tayler B  117*  
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1930-31    
B C Sheidow A  109* v Petersham 
A B Campbell A  112* v Waverley 
B C Sheidow A 127 v Gordon 
A B Campbell A 106  
H F Simmons B 102  
    
1931-32    
A B Campbell A 104* v Western Suburbs 
A B Campbell A 103* v Western Suburbs 
H F Simmons B 104* v Balmain 
F Tomlin B 103* v Ryde 
L J Tayler A 117 v Glebe 
H R Alder A 104 v North Districts 
F Tomlin B 119 v Ryde 
    
1932-33    
L J Tayler A 104 v North Districts 
S A Butcher A 103 v St George 
H F Simmons B 107 v Ryde 
    
1933-34    
B C Wall A 155 v Ryde 
B C Wall A 132 v St George 
A B Campbell A 115* v Burwood 
H F Simmons B 142 v Balmain 
C F Rowley B 120 v Balmain 
H F Simmons B 119 v North Districts 
H F Simmons B 116 v St George 
H F Simmons B 102 v Mosman 
    
1934-35    
B C Wall A 118 v St George 
B C Wall A   101*  
N Henniker B 103  
    
1935-36    
H R Alder A 137 v Randwick 
    
1936-37    
B C Wall A 188 v Epping 
S A Butcher A 169  
F A Limbert A 142 v Epping 
H F Simmons A   112* v Ryde 
B C Wall A 108 v Epping 
A F M Pratt A 104 v Epping 
E Burge B   127*  
C F Rowley B   114*  
G Stalgis B 100  
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1937-38 
V Taylor B 106 v Lindfield 
G Andrews B 106 v Lindfield 
V Taylor B 105 v Lindfield 
G Andrews B 104  
N Fisher B 100  
    
1938-39    
B C Wall A 101  
    
1939-40    
J B Hollander A 136  
E Burge A 124  
E Burge A 103  
H F Simmons A 100  
    
1940-41    
J F Dettmann B 195 v Ryde 
J F Dettmann B 126 v Epping 
J F Dettmann B 105 v Manly 
    
1941-42    
I Hiddilston A 100* v Epping 
    
1943-44    
M Saliera A 100*  
S A Butcher A 100*  
    
1946-47    
F Loughlan B 107* v Lindfield 
A Drewitt-Smith B 100* v University 
J Fox CS 108* v Old Aloysians 
    
1948-49    
H R Thorton B   125* v Epping 
H R Thorton B 107 v Burwood 
S A Butcher CS 113  
M Wilson CS 100 v Barker Old Boys 
 

1949-50    
S M Dunn A 145 v Roseville 
J F Dettmann A 104 v Roseville 
A Fellows B   139* v Lindfield 
A Leggatt B 114 v Lindfield 
    
1950-51    
J B Hollander A 118 v Roseville 
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1951-52    
J B Hollander A 138  
R M Metzler WK 112 v Roseville 
R M Metzler WK 106 v Artarmon Vets 
    
1952-53    
C A Burgess WK 106 v Wanderers 
L Clark WK 106 v Chatswood 
    
1953-54    
M Jones B 128 v Ryde 
R M Metzler GA 114 v Artarmon Vets 
R M Metzler GA 108 v Roseville 
R M Metzler GA 107 v Wanderers 
    
1954-55    
G Haddon GA 107 v Methodists 
B Ames N 101 v Clifton 
    
1955-56    
R M Metzler A 114 v Sutherland 
J B Hollander A 109 v Ryde 
J B Hollander A 101 v Lindfield 
F Dew B   134* v Ryde 
G Haddon GA   101*  
    
1956-57    
I Hiddilston A 152* v Roseville 
J B Hollander A 148 v Roseville 
R M Metzler A 138 v Roseville 
J F Dettmann A 102 v Bexley 
J B Hollander A   100* v Roseville 
A Willis B 101 v Auburn 
R M Metzler A 151 v Roseville 
 

1957-58     
I Hiddilston A 114 v Burwood 
I Hiddilston A   111* v Canterbury 
C A Burgess B 106 v Canterbury 
    
1958-59    
P K Fitzgerald A 145 v Roseville 
I Hiddilston A 125 v Burwood 
J F Dettmann A   103* v Uni Technology 
    
1959-60    
J F Dettmann B   153* v Pennant Hills 
R M Metzler B 125 v Bexley 
G S Pownall B 118 v Sutherland 
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1960-61    
G Samuelson A 126 v Canterbury 
P K Fitzgerald A 120 v Sutherland 
R A Potts B   114* v Sutherland 
R M Metzler B 108 v Epping 
R M Metzler B   100* v Ryde 
I Hiddilston A 102 v Ryde 
M Samuelson B 112 v Canterbury 
R A Potts B 109 v Ryde 
    
1962-63    
J G Potter A 112 v Burwood 
J G Potter A 106 v Epping 
J A Ward A   103* v Pennant Hills 
B Gunn A 101 v Auburn 
R A Jones B 123 v Bexley 
R M Metzler B 105 v Ryde 
R A Jones B 100* v Auburn 
    
1963-64    
I Hiddilston A 116 v Ryde 
I Hiddilston A 108 v Canterbury 
M Samuelson B 104 v Canterbury 
J F Dettmann B   102* v Roseville 
B Andrews CS   111* v Willoughby 
    
1964-65    
I Hiddilston A 123 v Roseville 
B Gunn A 117 v Sutherland 
P Wilson A 113 v Ryde 
B Gunn A 112 v Bexley 
B Gunn A  102* v Epping 
B Gunn A 101 v Lindfield 
J F Dettmann B 143 v Bexley 
D Field B 132 v Lindfield 
C A Burgess C 113 v Epping 
 

1965-66    
R Radford A 118 v Auburn 
I Russell A 137 v Ryde 
I Russell A   125* v Pennant Hills 
I Russell A 108 v Bexley 
I Russell A 106 v Sutherland 
I Russell A 102 v Lindfield 
K Levy GA 189 v Mosman 
I Chalmers GA 103 v Roseville 
J K French CS   100* v Manly Vets 
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1966-67    
I Russell A 167 v Roseville 
R M Metzler B 157 v Epping 
R Radford B 125 v Auburn 
S Follington CS 137 v Manly Vets 
A Cutler CS 110 v Manly Vets 
G Wark CS 103 v Uni of NSW 
    
1967-68    
T Beattie A   152* v Sutherland 
C A Burgess B 103 v Ryde 
P Rickey C 100 v Manly 
J Goff GA 141 v Artarmon Vets 
R Radford CS 108 v Mosman 
    
1968-69    
I Russell A 119 v Pennant Hills 
I Russell A 110 v Roseville 
L Frankish B 103 v Uni of NSW 
    
1969-70 
P McCann A 104 v Auburn 
R Radford B 124 v Burwood 
G Wark B 100 v Roseville 
P McCann C   113* v Epping 
    
1970-71    
P McCann A 102 V Lindfield 
T Pearce A 106 v Burwood 
T Beattie A 103 v Epping 
R McIlwraith A   101* v Ryde 
    
1972-73    
B Fleming B 129* v Epping 
R Rickey B 113* v Epping 
P K Fitzgerald CS 104 v Waverley 
 
1973-74    
R Rickey A 131 v Canterbury 
T Beattie A 102 v Pennant Hills 
    
1977-78    
C Logan A 111 v Wentworthville 
K Best A 101 v Bexley 
T Pearce B 106 v Lindfield 
A Swan C 124 v South Districts 
G Ball C   101* v Lindfield 
    
1978-79    
P J Fitzgerald A 119* v Macquarie Uni 
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1979-80    
A O’Neill B 103* v Roseville 
T Beattie C 125* v Canterbury 
    
1980-81    
F Paterson A   125* v Bexley 
F Paterson A 109 v Macquarie Uni 
F Paterson A   105* v Lindfield 
R Howard B 108 v Pennant Hills 
M Scully C   104* v Warringah 
G Breusch C   116* v Canterbury 
A Kelleher C   100* v Canterbury 
    
1981-82   
R Maclaine A 101 v Macquarie Uni 
A O’Neill A  100* v Canterbury 
M Mitchell B 109 v Epping 
J Matthews A 114 v Wentworthville 
J Pym A 104 v Bexley 
    
1983-84    
S Ross B ,100* v Macquarie Uni 
D Treweek C 104 v Lindfield 
    
1984-85    
P Sherwood A   161* v Pennant Hills 
A Murphy A 122 v Canterbury 
A Murphy A   114* v Lindfield 
J Pym A   107* v Pennant Hills 
K Best A   103* v Canterbury 
J Pym A   102* v Epping 
M Scully C 127 v Epping 
B McVicar D 197 v Auburn 
P Miller D 151 v Baulkham Hills 
B McVicar D 113 v Epping 
B McVicar D 103 v Epping 
    
1985-86    
R McEvilly B 118 v Macquarie Uni 
    
1986-87    
D McLean A 135 v Roseville 
K Best A 116 v Strathfield 
S Ross B   128* v Canterbury 
S Williams C   161* v Lindfield 
D McLean D   131* v Epping 
    
1987-88    
J McCormick D 109 v Epping 
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1988-89    
J Howarth B   107* v Bexley 
D Stepto B   103* v Pennant Hills 
D Stepto B 103 v Lindfield 
D Stepto B  102 v Bexley 
    
1989-90 
J Marinovich C 100 v Strathfield 
    
1990-91    
L Della A 130 v Canterbury 
D McLean A 127 v Epping 
A McLean B   104* v Lindfield 
B Bennett B 102 v Strathfield 
K Buckley C   106* v Epping 
D Treweek C   100* v Pennant Hills 
P K Fitzgerald D   100* v Strathfield 
    
1991-92    
S Roberts A 100 v Canterbury 
P Lloyd B   131* v Roseville 
P Dodd B 111 v Baulkham Hills 
P Flemming B 101 v Strathfield 
K Phillips D 123 v Pennant Hills 
    
1992-93    
P Campbell A 131 v Pennant Hills 
K Best A   102* v Lindfield 
P Campbell A 101 v Baulkham Hills 
M Tulich C 115 v Pennant Hills 
 

1993-94    
A Kelleher A 143 v Holroyd 
D McLean A 101 v Auburn 
D Johnson C 176  
A Roberts C   103*  
D Johnson C 101  
D Treweek D 105  
A Love D 103  
G Easy D 101  
R Gobee D 100  
H McDonald GC 166 v Lindfield 
H McDonald GC 101 v Hackers 
    
1994-95    
J Lloyd B 129 v Auburn 
P Flemming B 100 v Baulkham Hills 
G Easy C 129 v Auburn 
P Rayner D 119 v Holroyd 
    
    



 

  
58 

1995-96 
A Kelleher 1st 115 v  Auburn 
D Stepto 1st 100 v  Epping 
M Wood 3rd   119* v  Bexley 
J Christodoulakis 4th 131 v  Baulkham Hills 
G Brown 4th 140 v  Macquarie Uni 
A Ashe 4th 111 v  Auburn 
A Wood 4th 114 v  Macquarie uni 
P Mogan GC   105* v  Roseville 
    
1996-97    
M Cook 2nd 125 v Epping 
J Colgan 2nd 102 v Macquarie Uni 
A Wood 2nd 100* v Baulkham Hills 
J Pogonoski 3rd 135* v Bexley 
J Twomey 3rd 120* v Auburn 
C Brown 4th 137 v Baulkham Hills 
T Hall 4th 116* V SES 
B Hood GC 225 V Lindfield 
    
1997-98    
C Granger 3rd 117 Pennant Hills 
S Rogers GC 116 West Pymble Colts 
S Rogers GC 100 Forest Old Boys 
H McDonald GC 101 Forest Old Boys 
 
1998-99    

R McEvilly 1st 106* Roseville 
P Campbell 2nd 104 Lindfield 
G Paul 4th 145 Macquarie Uni 
S Myers U24s 117* Roseville 
    
2000-01    
J Lloyd 1st 116 Pennant Hills 
H McDonald 4th 114 Holroyd 
    
2001-02    
R Huxley 1st 112 Warringah 
A Southcott 2nd 113 Macquarie Uni 
S Stewart 4th 120 Strathfield 
    
2002-03    
H Van Heerdon 2nd 164* Epping 
T Hinton 2nd 104 Lindfield 
J Lloyd 3rd 158 Southern Districts 
J Lloyd 3rd 129 Epping 
B Dibden 4th 102* Auburn 
A Vaughn 4th 101* Auburn 
L Hardy GBR 111* Kirribilli 
B Habgood GBR 101 Old Ignatians 
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2003-04    
G Sundstrom 2nd 118 Roseville 
R McEvilly 2nd 106 Macquarie Uni 
B Hood 2nd 102 Pennant Hills 
J Hinton 2nd 100* Burwood 
    
2004-05    
D Naughton 1st 131 Southern Districts 
A Harris 1st 114* Lindfield 
D Naughton 1st 110 Georges River 
M Punch 2nd 175 Lindfield 
A Southcott 2nd 124* Lindfield 
C McKay 2nd 113 Georges River 
A Southcott 3rd 102* Southern Districts 
I Davidson GB 134* North Shore CC 
S Lees GB 107 West Pymble 
    
2005-06    
D Naughton 1st 144 Burwood 
A Maxwell 3rd 167 South Sydney 
K Clarke 4th 117 Roseville 
B Hood 4th 102* Georges River 
    
2006-07    
D Naughton 1st 100* Georges River 
C McKay 2nd 114* Georges River 
C Granger 3rd 144 South Sydney 
K Clarke 4th 120 Southern Districts 
G Scott 4th 103* Southern Districts 
D Webb TCC 139* Lindfield 
    
2007-08    
P Cross 1st 107 Macquarie Uni 
I Skinner 2nd  104 Auburn 
C McKay 2nd  100* South Sydney 
M Warren 3rd 124 Georges River 
A Harley 4th 138 Epping 
S Iyer 4th 102* Pennant Hills 
N Papastamatis TCC 103 Pennant Hills 
    
2008-09    
P Cross 1st 202* Macquarie Uni 
I Phelps 3rd 118 Warringah 
L O’Connor 3rd 102* Warringah 
B Hood 4th 150* Roseville 
O Fisher 4th 116 Lindfield 
S Iyer TCC 101* Roseville 
I Phelps TCC 101 Burwood 
    
2009-10    
B Arnall 1st 126* Southern Districts 
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G Smith 1st 114 South Sydney 
J Camarsh 1st 113 South Sydney 
S Mantarro 4th 118 Burwood 
B Dempsey 4th 103* Lindfield 
    
2010-11    
R Gallichan 1st 147 Epping 
R Gallichan 1st 119 Pennant Hills 
R Gallichan 1st 102* Roseville 
P Gallichan 1st 101* South Sydney 
D Naughton 1st 100 Macquarie Uni 
D Naughton 2nd 100 Southern Districts 
    
2011-12    
R Gallichan 1st 119 Burwood 
R Gallichan 1st 110* NW Sydney 
J Scarcella 2nd 100* Warringah 
G Sundstrom 3rd 144 Macquarie Uni 
B Arnall 4th 139 Epping 
A Maxwell 4th 120 Epping 
P Ritchie 4th 100* Pennant Hills 
L Mead TCC 101 Macquarie Uni 
    
2012-13    
D Naughton 1st 162* Strathfield 
P Gallichan 1st 106* Burwood 
P Gallichan 1st 100* Roseville 
J Rixon U24s 109 Auburn 

 
2013-14    
D Naughton 1st 100* Burwood 
C Eve 1st 100* Macquarie Uni 
M Fanning TCC 110 Lindfield 
D Webb TCC 105 NWS 
M Rogers TCC 104* Lindfield 
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TROPHIES 

 
CLUBMAN AWARD 
 

1966-67 J Goff  1990-91 M Mitchell & J Lloyd 
1967-68 J Goff & P Wilson  1991-92 I Fairall 
1968-69 No award  1992-93 B Scott 
1969-70 T Cunningham  1993-94 J Hill 
1970-71 R Rickey  1994-95 J Hayes & J Lloyd 
1971-72 T Beattie  1995-96 J Lloyd 
1972-73 H Kallas & M Thomas  1996-97 I Green 
1973-74 R Rickey  1997-98 J Hayes 
1974-75 H Kallas  1998-99 J Lloyd & R Weber 
1975-76 A Harris  1999-00 N/A 
1976-77 A Harris  2000-01 B Hood 
1977-78 B Scott  2001-02 S Flynn & C Robertson 
1978-79 R Blakeney  2002-03 M Mackenzie 
1979-80 A Kelleher  2003-04 C Whitney 
1980-81 A Harris & G Schaper  2004-05 S Myers 
1981-82 M Mitchell  2005-06 G Sundstrom 
1982-83 M Metzler  2006-07 G Boyle 
1983-84 M Hallman & M Scully  2007-08 G Boyle 
1984-85 P Bullock & M Scully  2008-09 T Ryan 
1985-86 J Hill  2009-10 T Ryan 
1986-87 D Treweek & J McCormick  2010-11 G Sundstrom 
1987-88 K Best  2011-12 B Dempsey 
1988-89 M Mitchell & P Watkins  2012-13 S Crayn 
1989-90 K Best & P Watkins  2013-14 ? 
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THE CLUB CRICKETER AWARD 
 
1978-79 K Best 
1979-80 G O’Shea 
1980-81 F Paterson 
1981-82 K Best 
1982-83 J Pym 
1983-84 K Best 
1984-85 J Pym 
1985-86 B Scott, L Arambewela 
1986-87 D McLean 
1987-88 L Arambewela 
1988-89 M Mitchell, D Stepto 
1989-90 K Best 
1990-91 R McEvilly 
1991-92 S Roberts 
1992-93 A McLean, D McLean 
1993-94 A Kelleher 
1994-95 I Green 
1995-96 A Kelleher 
1996-97 S Sloane 
1997-98 C Wiseman 
1998-99 P Campbell 

1999-2000 S Myers 

2000-01 D Grant 

2001-02 D Naughton 

2002-03 J Lloyd, P. Cruden, S. Lees 

2003-04 S Dunn 

2004-05 D Naughton 

2005-06 J Bates 

2006-07 S Hunter 

2007-08 P Cross 

2008-09 P Cross, J Gayleard 

2009-10 G Smith 

2010-11 N Absalom, P Gallichan 

2011-12 T Holt 

2012-13 J Camarsh 

2013-14 ? 
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THE HIDDILSTON MEMORIAL SHIELD 

 
1985-86 B Bennett 2002-03 S Dunn 
1986-87 A McCormick 2003-04 M Scott 
1987-88 L Taylor 2004-05 S Willoughby 
1988-89 S Heher 2005-06 L Higgins 
1989-90 D Cook 2006-07 M Dean 
1990-91 B Hood 2007-08 F McKenna 
1991-92 B Hood 2008-09 J Musgrave 
1992-97 Not awarded 2009-10 C Spratt 
1997-98 C. McKay 2010-11 L Borg 
1998-99 M. Eggert 2011-12 Alex Sidhu 
1999-2000 T.McDonald 2012-13 M Crayn 
2000-01 M Mackenzie 2013-14 ? 
2001-02 T McDonald   

 
PLAYERS’ PLAYER AWARD 
 

2001-02 S Myers 

2003-03 P Cruden 

2003-04 S Dunn 

2004-05 D Naughton 

2005-06 T Holt 

2006-07 B Scott 

2007-08 P Cross 

2008-09 B Scott, J Gayleard 

2009-10 A Dodds 

2010-11 N Absalom 

2011-12 T Holt 

2012-14 Not awarded 

 
SHIRES AWARDS 

 

2004-05 JF Dettmann Legend of Shires Cricket Inductee 

2004-05 D Naughton 1st Grade Captain of the Season 

2004-05 D Naughton Frank Gray Player of the Season 

2005-06 JB Hollander Legend of Shires Cricket Inductee 

2005-06 T Holt 1st Grade Player of the Season (joint) 

2006-07 B Scott Legend of Shires Cricket Inductee 

2006-07 D Naughton Frank Gray Player of the Season 

2006-07 D Naughton Player of the Frank Gray Final 

2009-10 RM Metzler Legend of Shires Cricket Inductee 

2009-10 G Sundstrom 3rd Grade Captain of the Season  

2010-11 B Dempsey 4th Grade Captain of the Season 

2011-12 R Gallichan Player of the 1st Grade Final 

2011-12 B Dempsey 4th Grade Captain of the Season 
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CUMULATIVE STATISTICS 
 
 

Not updated for season 2013/14. 
 
 

 NAME INN NO RUNS WKTS RUNS WK  ST  CT 

N Absalom 45 21 170 141 1787     24 

H Ahmed 4 0 22 1 44     2 

A Alla 4 1 47 1 12     0 

A Allan 7 4 132 7 224     1 

R Aman 31 1 556 25 504     16 
D Amin  9 1 58 4 178     0 
J Anders 10 4 70 6 263     5 

P Anderson 9 2 38 16 365     1 

J Anstey 10 0 216 0 0     6 
M Arkinstall 17 1 219 0 0     8 
T Armstrong 19 3 441 1 49     12 
B Arnall 35 5 749 0 0     21 
S Arudpragasam 19 5 59 36 831     3 
M Atkinson  7 1 106 0 0 10 wk 2 st 0 

H Bachmann 6 0 126 0 0     0 

J Bachmann 25 0 333 26 581     2 

P Backhouse 43 3 523 90 1401 2 wk   9 

C Baillie 0 0 0 0 18     0 

S Baker 8 2 26 4 126     2 

J Baker 2 0 30 3 46     1 

P Bakker 5 1 16 5 181     3 
J Barker 85 12 582 11 359 4 wk   19 
A Barnes 16 2 103 11 121     5 
F Barrett* 1 0 3 1 7     0 

J Barry 20 0 433 13 358     2 

M Barry 32 10 235 47 1119   1 st 18 

A Barton 1 0 18 1 21     2 

J Bates 49 8 902 118 1808     15 

T Bayliss 46 2 602 1 142     6 

B Beaston 9 2 43 12 229     5 

I Bellamy 2 1 24 0 70     0 

T Berry 2 0 40 1 42     0 

M Bertrand 14 1 122 4 73     3 

C Bezer 93 36 491 263 3861     33 

L Borg 2 0 9 6 59     0 

D Boulter 10 1 98 10 167     2 
S Bourne  15 1 95 1 72     0 
G Boyle 166 8 2139 42 1062 5 wk   51 

A Bradshaw 15 1 328 6 246     2 

A Bray 14 3 161 12 250 1 wk 2 st 7 

T Bremner 7 1 91 3 33     2 

P Brett 127 15 2356 0 1 84 wk 3 st 29 
B Brown 5 1 90 0 0     3 
B Broyd 17 3 219 21 423     11 
M Burke 3 0 65 0 0 5 wk   0 
T Burn 1 0 14 2 24     1 
A Burns 2 0 51 0 0     0 

B Bye 3 0 40 3 84     1 

T Byrne 11 1 128 10 396     5 
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T Cachalia 22 1 311 1 29 5 wk 1 st 6 

B Caddey 1 0 4 0 0 1 wk 1 st 0 

W Callinan 1 0 61 0 20     0 

C Camarsh 51 2 955 107 1798     19 

J Camarsh 80 12 1440 117 2446     36 

N Campbell 2 1 116 0 0     0 

S Campbell* 76 10 944 43 833     18 

J Canlas 3 0 3 0 0     0 

S Carnaffan 5 0 18 0 0     4 

M Chase 2 1 5 0 10     1 

M Chauhan 6 2 62 5 72     0 

J Cheok 2 1 1 0 0     0 

B Chiarella 13 0 166 17 268     3 

A Clarke 1 0 7 0 0     0 

J Clarke 58 17 703 118 1807 2 wk   18 
K Clarke 65 3 1140 3 184 11 wk 2 st 9 
A Cornelius 6 2 66 12 254     0 
G Cornelius 73 6 1208 44 833     48 
S Cox 63 12 556 105 1762     25 
B Craig 18 1 207 15 342     4 
C Cramer 14 5 134 1 195     0 
L Criniti 5 1 54 0 0     0 
M Cross 24 7 387 7 149     3 
P Cross 30 2 1270 3 91 2 wk   15 
P Cruden 14 1 259 50 657     6 

A Cubbage 2 0 4 0 6     2 

B Curran 13 5 61 17 458     7 

J Curtin 9 1 83 13 205     4 

W Daly 26 1 273 16 390 5 wk   8 

B Dash 11 4 268 0 0     2 

I Davidson 165 21 3022 121 2477     58 

S Davies 1 0 0 2 38     1 

T Davies 1 0 14 0 0     0 

T Davoren 3 1 66 1 16     0 

H De Jong 3 1 11 2 51     0 

M Dean 33 5 414 0 79     13 

H Dekoning 1 0 30 1 14     1 

D Delaney 14 2 193 30 451     9 

B Dempsey 83 8 1452 6 174     44 

J Dempsey 36 3 432 47 1046     14 

B Dibden 18 1 439 8 150     2 

K Dindayal 41 3 474 30 421     9 

A Dodds 148 36 1998 293 4782     24 

M Doherty 74 3 753 11 182     15 

M Donegen 9 4 239 14 215     3 
T Dosen 6 1 10 0 5     1 
A Douglass 24 6 255 0 25     3 

S Dunn 109 18 1060 145 3474     27 

M Dwyer 9 3 94 11 218     4 

M Edwards 1 0 25 0 0     0 

N Edwards 2 1 1 4 38     0 

S Edwards 1 0 0 0 23     0 

M Eggert 55 2 489 55 1642     10 

A Ellison 1 0 2 0 0     0 

J Ephraums 7 0 31 0 0     2 

C Evans 1 0 32 1 16     0 
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C Eve 15 4 344 26 388     4 

C Fahey 1 0 5 3 58     0 

M Fahey 1 1 0 0 0     1 

B Favell 4 0 108 0 0     0 

B Fillingham 18 3 202 0 0 23 wk 2 st 0 

B Finnigan 8 1 56 1 13     1 

O Fisher 138 3 2456 51 1232     42 
W Fitzgerald  11 1 228 5 176     0 

S Flynn 92 15 933 10 130 93 wk 20 st 0 

C Fogarty 14 4 67 22 352     2 

S Forbes 2 0 22 1 49     1 

M Forster 22 4 470 9 189     9 

C Frankish 66 19 356 75 1884     19 
I Frankish  11 0 76 7 148     3 
A French 2 0 10 7 156     0 
D French* 45 8 706 0 0 29 wk 5 st 7 

F French 1 0 36 0 0     0 
B Fuller  24 3 221 0 7 13 wk   7 
J Gale 1 0 2 0 0     0 
P Gallichan 39 10 1107 8 279 3 wk   12 
R Gallichan 35 6 1179 56 1126     26 
P Gardner 9 1 32 6 220     1 
S Garry 8 2 81 0 16 10 wk 1 st 0 
J Gayleard 80 8 1268 38 609     40 
A Gerrand 13 1 10 8 300     3 
N Gerrand 1 0 0 0 0     0 
D Gill 4 2 13 3 87     1 

N Gleeson 9 0 30 6 160     3 

A Gluck 2 0 18 1 34     0 

G Gomes 4 1 23 3 46     6 
A Gordon 19 2 327 1 31     1 
C Granger 210 22 4111 14 418 1 wk   51 
P Guneratnam 9 0 111 0 21     0 
B Habgood 37 1 857 10 318 9 wk   9 
S Halfacre 8 0 66 11 227     0 
W Hall 6 0 101 7 193     0 
B Hancock 1 0 19 1 28     0 
L Handford 1 0 0 2 32     0 
L Hardy 52 4 1005 45 1018     14 
A Harley 28 1 413 0 87 13 wk 1 st 4 

A Harper 15 1 152 17 449     3 

JD Harpham 81 2 1359 2 46 15 wk   13 

JN Harpham 90 18 840 17 391 104 wk 7 st 8 

A Harris 48 3 1339 1 16     14 

B Harrison-Smith 4 1 31 0 17     2 

A Hawkins 16 0 64 0 0     1 

D Haylen 23 1 183 18 481     4 
R Hearne 3 0 29 2 120     2 

S Herden 12 2 239 11 163     0 

L Higgins 60 4 597 85 1754     16 

R Higgins 67 6 1172 1 52 1 wk   30 

J Hinton 86 10 1752 1 22     24 

T Hinton 45 1 676 5 163     10 

C Hipkin 14 1 96 17 408 2 wk   8 

Be Holland 1 0 31 0 0     1 

Br Holland 27 0 493 6 188     1 
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M Holmes 21 2 121 2 143     1 
P Holmes 2 0 58 0 24     2 
D Holt 3 0 2 2 44     0 
P Holt  10 3 17 6 115     0 

T Holt 178 37 2682 411 7000     88 

B Hood 275 33 5597 7 191 18 wk 2 st 81 
C Hoskins 33 1 322 2 77     4 

B Hunt 10 1 121 5 214     6 

S Hunter 39 6 584 102 1643     15 

A Hurley 5 1 147 4 93     0 

R Huxley 60 3 1381 37 880     18 
G Imhoff 68 27 308 129 2856     9 
F Iqbal 1 0 24 0 0     0 
S Isherwood 1 0 57 0 0     0 
S Iyer 4 2 245 0 0 2 wk   0 
A James 1 0 10 0 7     0 
D Johnson 1 0 53 1 38     0 
N Johnston 13 3 164 0 0 6 wk 4 st 0 
J Joseph 1 0 5 0 0 1 wk 2 st 0 

J Kadwa 39 1 576 40 929     3 

K Kapur 4 1 18 2 67     0 

S Karim 16 2 86 23 390     4 

P Keating 9 1 78 6 211 1 wk   1 

M Keevers 2 0 4 0 6     1 

L Kelleher 10 3 50 0 0     1 

D Kendrick 3 0 28 2 37     0 

C King 9 3 51 4 85     1 
G King 6 0 71 0 0     1 
S King 6 1 33 3 85     1 
A Knapp 47 6 799 3 163     12 
T Knapp 10 0 81 11 176     8 
M Koureas 0 0 0 2 53     0 
D Kraus 2 0 27 0 26     0 

A Krishnan 15 4 169 17 482     8 
A Krishnaswamy 86 4 1576 0 22     25 
S Kumar 1 0 8 0 0     0 

P Langtry 75 31 517 89 1970     28 
A Lees 6 1 143 0 0     0 
E Lees 3 0 63 3 123     1 

J Lees 7 0 79 4 156     1 
S Lees 27 3 766 52 900     10 
W Lewis 16 7 57 36 758     4 
C Lim 1 0 9 0 0     0 
J Lloyd 375 24 7225 13 382 19 wk 1 st 121 
J Luke 4 3 27 1 54     0 

H MacDonald 204 14 2525 184 2169     18 

T Mackay 2 1 103 2 39     0 

M Mackenzie 144 14 3052 169 3620     40 

M Magee 5 1 76 4 120     4 

A Malik 10 5 49 5 133     2 

P Mallyon 104 49 515 278 4768     22 

S Manley 4 0 97 8 119     2 

S Mantarro 51 3 987 0 0 6 wk 1 st 15 

J Marsh 1 0 10 0 0     0 

T Marshall 5 0 77 0 0     1 

A Maxwell 114 11 2437 19 372 78 wk 14 st 39 
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C McCraith 1 0 11 0 0     0 

T McDonald 104 22 1144 107 2302     30 

A McDonnell 3 0 17 0 0     1 

N McDonnell 13 1 197 0 0     2 

L McElduff 7 0 92 0 0 3 wk   2 

R McElduff 1 1 8 0 0     0 

S McElduff 1 0 15 0 0     1 

R McEvilly* 12 0 364 1 52     4 

J McGrath 2 0 1 0 18     1 

C McKay 228 20 4296 19 528     61 

F McKenna 0 0 0 3 10     1 

L Mead 2 0 117 0 0 1 wk   1 

P Mees 28 5 309 0 0 38 wk 5 st 0 

A Meggarity 8 1 16 8 231     0 

L Miletic 4 0 6 0 19     1 
B Millar 18 0 200 28 561     5 
B Miller 3 0 10 0 0     3 

C Miller 29 2 310 16 676     10 

G Minhas 8 2 29 4 110     1 

I Minhas 8 0 37 9 249     1 

J Molloy 18 5 35 43 765     2 

S Moore 21 3 175 24 521     9 
G Morrow 16 8 58 0 0     5 
P Morrow 15 2 218 2 11 8 wk 2 st 0 
A Mortimer 21 2 135 32 603     7 

C Myers 21 1 524 9 233     12 

S Myers 179 17 2998 183 4092     58 

D Nagy-Horty 6 1 68 8 255     1 

D Naughton 219 26 5721 127 2159     138 

T Naughton 32 9 349 0 0 66 wk 7 st 0 

J Nelson 3 2 52 3 50     0 

P Nirmalendran 36 10 497 59 1123     12 

A Noonan 17 0 197 0 0     3 

P O’Byrne 27 3 291 36 972     16 

L O’Connor 14 3 324 0 51     5 

P O’Farrell 3 1 24 0 0 1 wk   0 

L O’Hare 27 3 381 26 565 5 wk   13 

T O’Malley-Jones 7 3 62 3 21     1 

P O’Neill 2 0 21 0 0     0 
N Ogden 10 1 108 18 317     6 
J Painter 13 4 111 21 481     5 
N Papastamatis 29 5 557 14 504     10 
P Parbury 3 0 34 1 39     2 
J Pattanayak 11 1 337 12 269     4 
T Penman 1 1 65 0 0     0 
E Petrie 3 0 14 0 0     1 
I Phelps 82 6 1507 9 167     35 
J Phillips 1 0 14 3 30     0 
D Plank 7 1 10 7 232     1 
B Poder 58 12 279 56 1524     2 
D Poder 11 2 224 7 139     4 
M Potts 63 5 976 49 1218     13 
A Power 3 1 126 3 88     0 

K Pradeep 9 1 107 14 291     1 

C Preston 47 13 253 79 1596     14 

B Priest 7 1 144 0 22     0 
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M Punch 9 0 244 12 142     3 
L Putnam-Gray 50 14 527 104 2032     34 
R Pym (Jnr) 20 7 192 22 661     3 
T Pym 11 1 165 0 14     2 
C Rae 4 0 28 2 67     0 
P Rayner 30 3 602 42 975     7 

B Richardson 188 35 1681 419 8084     60 

S Rickard 15 2 214 7 261     3 
N Rindani 6 1 88 0 0     0 
P Ritchie 27 4 591 19 442     9 
J Rixon 35 5 663 11 238 18 wk 1 st 10 
M Rixon 52 5 672 8 218     19 
C Robertson 142 49 843 234 5543     27 
M Robinson 20 2 150 14 674     5 
S Rogers 72 4 899 21 529     5 
S Rowe 53 7 849 94 1701     21 
H Roxburgh 3 0 41 0 0     0 
J Ryan 11 5 35 0 0 1 wk   0 

N Sabine 44 10 283 74 1696     10 

J Salmond 3 1 14 1 39     0 
G Sansom-Sherwill 20 4 58 3 76     1 
I Sarfraz 9 4 24 42 382     3 
J Sargeant 27 6 130 42 953     10 
M Sawyer 2 0 41 0 11     1 
J Scarcella 37 4 489 72 1456     6 
T Scarfe 1 0 51 0 40     1 
M Schaafsma 57 6 850 4 59     11 
G Schaper* 13 2 123 0 0     2 

B Scott 456 166 3244 1108 21331     127 

G Scott 11 3 322 0 0 3 wk   6 

M Scott 10 2 233 4 183     4 

E Scrivens 69 4 894 3 121 7 wk 3 st 13 
Y Sharif 2 0 44 1 24     0 
N Sharma 7 1 118 0 0     1 

J Sharp 141 3 2021 20 534 2 wk 2 st 19 

N Sharples 47 7 775 19 494 8 wk 6 st 16 

R Shearer 1 0 8 0 0     1 

R Sheather 12 0 68 0 0     1 

J Shingler 7 2 117 11 214     0 

D Shotten 1 0 5 1 43     0 

Al Sidhu 8 2 36 8 248     0 

S Sidhu 14 1 244 2 14     6 

A Sierakowski 1 0 23 0 0     0 

D Simmons 6 0 3 3 58     1 

P Sinclair 47 9 562 53 1003 1 wk   17 

H Singh 1 0 0 3 32     1 

J Singh 8 2 70 13 285     5 

I Skinner 21 0 503 37 588     7 

R Skinner 29 2 375 4 85     11 

K Slade 22 5 152 58 1209     7 

P Slater 31 3 376 19 329     10 

S Sloane 2 0 24 1 27     0 

C Slocombe 1 0 0 0 0     0 
A Smith 4 0 76 4 91     1 
Ad Smith 5 0 71 2 43     1 
G Smith 84 8 1902 0 10 19 wk 3 st 18 
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M Smith 36 11 363 0 0 29 wk 16 st 0 
A Southcott 150 14 3257 39 579     51 
S Spencer 25 7 272 60 1228     5 
C Spratt 2 0 18 0 0     0 
G Spratt* 1 0 27 0 0     0 
P Spruce 48 4 628 0 19 21 wk 1 st 11 
J Standing 26 3 407 30 718     8 
S Stewart 86 14 1147 93 2265     20 

M Stone 47 6 947 1 64     26 

T Stone 17 1 257 25 371     6 

W Story 4 1 27 0 0     0 

S Stuart 2 0 17 0 0     1 

J Studds 17 2 360 0 27 5 wk 1 st 3 
S Sundar 2 0 35 0 23     0 

G Sundstrom 185 20 3288 90 1312 1 wk 1 st 74 

A Szabo* 2 0 38 0 0     0 

T Tait 24 9 256 36 816     11 

O Tatham 11 2 15 0 30     1 

D Taylor 44 5 575 0 0 30 wk 8 st 0 

T Terrell 1 0 0 0 0     0 

P Thakur 54 6 605 39 680     9 

D Thompson* 1 0 74 0 0     0 

M Thomson 2 0 12 3 64     0 
S Tippireddy 25 2 431 6 124 3 wk 2 st 7 

B Tompsett 110 9 1339 14 370 3 wk   45 

P Tompsett 73 7 995 36 1149     20 
B Tolj 17 6 36 33 58     1 
D Toms 26 0 485 3 44 6 wk   6 
P Tran 11 3 96 20 305     4 
N Trumbull 45 5 444 82 1828     12 
M Tunwell 8 0 59 0 0     2 

M Turner 27 1 314 20 771     0 
H Twomey 18 0 454 2 78     3 
J Twomey* 52 1 956 2 34     22 
M Tzikas* 41 11 437 81 1241     12 
J Unwin 3 0 19 4 49     0 
H Van Heerden 16 2 526 1 11     1 
M Varidel 4 0 53 3 114     0 
A Varkey 34 1 626 1 65     2 

S Varkey 45 5 541 1 159     9 
A Vaughan 26 6 407 21 790     2 
J Verco 22 3 86 0 0 11 wk 2 st 2 
B Vo 10 2 36 0 0 7 wk 2 st 0 

J Warn 15 7 34 15 399     4 

M Warren 35 1 761 0 0     4 
A Watkins 13 0 170 12 335     2 

N Way 60 11 770 4 64 13 wk   10 

D Webb 49 5 1377 3 45     33 

J Webb 1 0 0 0 0     0 

M Westacott 10 0 105 4 143     2 

C Whitney 42 10 686 81 1457     18 

G Wiblin 2 1 10 0 73     0 

B Wickramaratna 2 0 59 0 0     0 

D Wiffin 5 0 47 0 45     6 

M Wilmott 3 0 11 0 0 1 wk 1 st 0 
S Willoughby 71 7 863 2 19 62 wk 12 st 5 
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T Willoughby 76 24 350 53 1282 6 wk 1 st 23 

C Wing 18 2 450 0 0     7 

J Woodhams 12 7 47 12 354     3 

B Wright 74 4 1411 3 154     20 

M Wright 2 1 60 1 9     0 

R Wright 1 1 0 0 10 2 wk   0 

O Young 10 2 172 0 0     4 

 
 
* Statistics missing from previous spell(s) at the club. 
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Under 9’s Reports: 
 
Under 9 Haddin 
 

Well the Lane Cove Haddin Under 9’s had a great year season 2013/2014 with a good mix of boys 
that played last season and some starting their cricketing careers this season. Haddin Under 9’s won 
10 Games with 3 losses so a fantastic result for the season. The boys all played with great cricket 
spirit, teamwork and good sportsmanship to make their family and the Lane Cove Cricket Club very 
proud. Over the 13 games played there were some great results by the boys, with some tight 
matches against Gordon, Mosman, Lindfield and very strong results against St Ives, Mosman and 
some of our Lane Cove teams. And one Hat Trick for the season, which went to Lachlan Burgan, 
Round 6 (Saturday 16th November) Vs Mosman Blue at Mowbray Public School (3 for 0 off 1 
Over) 

The kids improved each week with our Wednesday training sessions being both enjoyable and 
worthwhile, and as a coach it was great to see the kids work so hard over the Christmas Holidays 
and come back much improved from all the backyard cricket games and practice. 

We saw the two Lachie’s (Lachlan Burgan and Lachlan Murray) rise up as very handy ‘All 
Rounders’ through the season with some strong hitting when it was needed and great bowling with 
good speed and accuracy, not to mention great fielders. Also impressive was the triple threat of the 
older boys Darcy McIntosh, Max Wood and Ben Francis all combining together as batting pairs 
on several occasions to really push home the advantage with good runs and few dismissals, also 
improved their ‘Spin Bowling’ over the holiday period no doubt due to plenty of Twenty 20 Big 
Bash analysis. Of course who can forget the Alex Express, pure fast bowling at its best with great 
accuracy from Alex Lee-Young, pity Under 9’s don’t have LBW I’m sure there would have been 
plenty and always handy with the bat with the leg sweep one of his best shots. Ryan Oliver’s 
experience from last season came through with many handy innings with the bat and excellent 
fielding, especially off his own bowling to shut down the quick singles. Unfortunately Ryan missed 
the middle part of the season with a broken collarbone due to a Christmas holidays beach cricket 
mishap, but returned late in the season to finish with his mates. Some amazing improvement from 
the new boys throughout the season with Tom Gordon and Charlie Spence showing vast 
improvement on their bowling action and accuracy, with some great work wielding the bat too and 
Charlie having some big hits towards the end of the season. Samuel Scott returned from the UK to 
play with LCCC again and fit right in, great with the wicket keeping gloves, solid as a rock 
defensively and quick between wickets it was great to have him back with LCCC. Jack 

Thompsons bowling improved greatly, and taking his lap speeds from the pool to the cricket pitch 
to be one of the fastest running between wickets. The “David Warner” fielders of the team were 
definitely Jake Ryan and Toby Garvey, with lightning speed in the outfield and great catching and 
throwing they were fantastic and their bowling and batting improvement over that holiday break 
was great. Also a special thank you to Campbell Buchanan our unofficial 12th Man for helping out 
when we were short on players, hopefully we will see Cammy sign up next year to continue his 
great work. 

It was great to see all the kids enjoy themselves at the LCCC Presentation day at ‘the Diddy’ 
Sunday 23rd; the boys were excited to receive their LCCC Medals, trophies, and certificates. 

Special thanks, especially Peter Burgan for all the help on the field, Grant Ryan and Derek Scott our 
fantastic scorers and all the parents who helped with game day and training throughout the year. 

Matthew Oliver, Andrew Gordon 
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Lane Cove Haddin under 9 Coaches 
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Under 9’s Reports: 
 
Under 9 Hughes 
 

At the beginning of the season a number of Team Hughes had only just picked up a cricket bat and  
ball.  What the team lacked in technique, it made up for in dedication, raw skill and a willingness to 
learn the game.  While there was lots of hard work we also had great fun, won 7 games and had a 
number of highlights including: 
 
Ricky McGuigan’s catch will go down in the annals as a scorcher; the Cannon Boys, always 
competitive, had a great season with Josh bowling fast and Will scoring lots of runs and taking out 
our batting award; Alex Weston was great behind the stumps; Hugo Rimmer taking wickets and 
clocking up extreme speed; Zach Duncan for his unplayable bowling ; Alex Morris for his elegant 
batting technique; Sam Ashby who was rock solid as an opening batsman; Daneil Christolis for an 
amazing first over in his cricket career; Sam Martin who consistently scored runs every innings; 
Luke Hiltzinger whose enthusiasm was infectious; Oscar Tentij for his original but effective 
bowling action; Will Linke for his line and length bowling and who took out the bowling award.  
By the end of the season all players had enjoyed their cricket and had developed their skills.  
 
Congratulations to Sam Ashby who got the most improved award and Alex Morris who took out the 
spirit of cricket award. 
 
Thanks to our coach Neil Weston for his patience and guidance. We are deep in contractual 
negotiations to secure him for next season.   
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Under 9’s Reports: 
 
Under 9 Pattinson 
 

The boys had a terrific season by any measure. Losses were rare and wins plentiful. In my first 
season as coach, I was blessed with an experienced and highly capable Manager in Dan Robbins, 
and a very talented group of players. After receiving sage advice from the Master himself (Harry 
Sekzenian), the structure and playing style came together like clockwork and every Saturday 
morning was 2 hours of fun in the sun. 
 
Matty Cass kept wickets with aplomb all season and was a constant buzz of activity and energy. 
Billy Rogers and Hugo Biddle (two true Superstars in the making) formed our most productive 
batting pair. Their punishing shot making and manic running between the wickets, produced many 
match winning totals. Charlie Robbins, Will Brown, Oliver Galvin and Matty Cass also piled on 
plenty of runs, often with shots that aren't even in the book!. Charlie, Oliver, Hugo, Billy, Will 
Stevens, Callum Mitchell, Will Brown, Daniel Holland and Joel Alexander-Easaw stood out as a 
fearsome strike bowling attack. Well.... at least until for some reason, many of them decided it was 
more fun to bowl spin! Special mention must go to Callum who always ran in with a huge smile on 
his face. Perhaps because he was getting away with bowling 5 out of 6 as no-balls but still taking 
wickets! 
 
Another big part was the emphasis we put on improving the skills each week. Special mentions 
must go to Rian Cobb, Jayden Saldanha, Will Stevens and Joel. Rian in particular, was never really 
content with his performances and would often tell me he could have done this or that better. The 
fact was, he contributed strongly each week and I couldn't have been happier with his efforts. Will, 
Joel and Jayden are very quiet kids by nature and all improved markedly as the season went on. 
Particularly Joel, who's laser like bowling, was a sight to behold. 
 
I'd personally like to thank all of the Parents who played their part as umpires, scorers, gear 
stewards, assistant coaches and all round vocal support. We couldn't have done it all without 
everyones help. Thanks again to all of the boys and I sure we're all looking forward to next season. 
 
Stuart Holland – Coach 
Dan Robbins – Manager 
 
 
Batting award - Billy Rogers 
Bowling award - Oliver Galvin 
Fielding award - Matty Cass 
Most Improved award - Will Stevens 
Spirit of Cricket award - Joel Alexander-Easaw 
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Under 9’s Reports: 
 
Under 9 Siddle 
 

 
 

The performance of U9 Siddle was fantastic, with the team going through the season undefeated 
which was a rare and great achievement. We had a group of 12 boys from various schools (Jack 
Cooper, Finn Dundon, Harry Dundon, Joshua Kingston, Lachlan Lal, Angus Mackay, Curtis 
McLeod, William MacMahon, Oliver Schliebs, Milan Sharma, Lachlan Shaw and Corey Twining) 
who came together at the start of the year. 

There was a mix of experience, with several backing up from the prior year and some new to the 
game, however it was evident from the outset that we had a very competitive group who were eager 
to learn. It was pleasing to see all the boys develop their game over the course of the year, with 
improvement being shown over all facets of the game. By the end of the year new friendships had 
developed, with the boys showing a great team spirit, but more importantly, also having a lot of fun 
along the way. There were many great individual performances over the season which we won’t 
mention here, but no doubt each team member can think back and remember something they did 
that made a difference during the season either with the bat, ball or in the field. 

Thanks to Brendan and Craig for the expert tuition provided over the course of the year and to Peter 
for his unwavering support with managing the team, assisting with coaching and providing his all 
round experience with developing Team Siddle. 

Also a special thanks to all the parents, we realise the efforts you all go to get the kids to training 
and the games each Saturday, and all the help you provided to ensure things ran smoothly be it with 
scoring, umpiring, helping strap on pads, pack kits and providing oranges. We know the kids loved 
playing for the audience and appreciate all the support they get. 

Congratulations to all the boys on such a successful year and we look forward to seeing you all 
again next season. 
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Under 9’s Reports: 
 
Under 9 Starc 
 

Our debut LCCC cricket season was a triumph of courageous cricketing skills, last gasp victories 
and extreme weather resilience. 
 
On courageous cricketing skills, batsmen Sam, Niki, Lachlan and Will delivered us a bounty of 
hard-earned runs. Special mention to younger brother James G who personified Team Starc courage 
with the bat! On the fielding side, Dan, Ethan and Walker pressed the opposition with keeping 
gloves and infielding. Special mention to Alex for some amazing stump hit throws from distance. In 
the bowling department, Hugo terrorised the opposition (notice no Dad’s volunteered to face Hugo 
in the nets!) with commendable support from Liam, Daniel and James S. 
 
In terms of victories, Team Starc’s season was defined at the ‘Wrestle at Waverton’ match where 
the iphone calculator’s had to go to the decimal place to measure our last ball win over Lindfield! 
 
In terms of extreme weather, from the ‘monsoon at Cammeray’ fixture to perpetual rain threats to 
training Team Starc stood resolute. And speaking of perseverance against the odds, a massive 
thanks from all the parents to Super Coaches Damian and Brendan and training assistant Ange. 
Damian’s skills development of Team Starc was a perfect mix of inspirational learning, positivity 
and good humour. Brendan’s one-on-one motivational player chats were both thoughtful and kind, 
and made a huge impact on each young member of Team Starc. Ange’s Wednesday afternoon 
enthusiasm most appreciated by all. 
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Under 11’s Reports: 
 
Under 11 McGrath 
 

The 2013-14 season saw many of the boys come back together with confidence and high 
expectations.  However, it was a season of two contrasting halves.  In the first half of the season we 
won only one game but in the second half of the season, we only lost one game.  The best run home 
from any team in the competition. All the boys improved immensely and their winning habit in the 
back half of the season taught them what can be achieved if you play together as a team – especially 
in the fielding department which was fantastic all year. 
 
Alex Gowthorp 

Alex has shown a great technique for a top order batsman and he played a number of important 
innings with some solid scores. Both his batting and bowling have improved enormously. Alex only 
played 10 games but still took 8 wickets with a best of 3 wickets for 6 runs. 
 
Daniel Chick 

Daniel is a great all-rounder and a valuable member in any team. Daniel was Mr. Consistency 
behind the stumps and proved the difference between our team and the opposition on many 
occasions. Daniel’s contribution to the team was far greater than his statistics would suggest, never-
the-less, he still ended the season with an impressive 6 wickets, 3 catches and a high score of 22. 
 
David Talifero 

David was another newcomer this season and made tremendous strides over the course of the 
season. David played some important knocks for his team, sometimes at the top of the order and 
sometimes in the lower order. David showed a fantastic attitude to the game and to his team which 
ultimately earned him the Spirit of cricket award. Well done on your first season of cricket David. 
 
Jack Nelson 

A critical member of the team making contributions in all facets of the game, a genuine all-rounder. 
Jack likes to play the pinch hitter role and scores runs quickly. Jack has the ability to, and often 
does, swing matches in his teams favour. Jack has one of the more interesting celebrations when 
taking a wicket. It’s a celebration we saw often as Jack took 13 wickets in the season at an 
impressive average of 9.9 runs per wicket. 
 

James Engeman 

This was James’ first season and his development was great to watch. By the end of the season he 
was looking very comfortable at the crease and was unlucky with a few run outs. James’ bowling 
also improved massively and his 3 overs in the cup final only went for 7 runs. 
 
Justin Cooley 

Justin showed a fantastic application and commitment to cricket this season. This was Justin’s first 
season and his improvement was nothing short of amazing. Justin ultimately won the most 
improved player award, which was no mean feat as there were a number of very strong candidates. 
Justin took a very credible 7 wickets in the season and played some good innings, especially in the 
second half of the season. 
 
Kieran Miller 

Kieran is a solid contributor to his team, scoring important runs and being fairly economical when 
bowling. Kieran ended 3rd in the batting averages with an average of 19.  
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Liam McDonnell 

It had to be the “catch of the season”! Liam’s catch against Roseville was brilliant. Liam also 
played one of the most brave and determined innings against St Ives Ponting where we eventually 
fell 4 runs short but thanks to Liam we got really close.  
 

Max Berry 

Max only played 8 matches yet made some good contributions, particularly with his bowling. Max 
took 5 wickets in 8 games with an average of 15. 
 

Nicias Walsh 

Nicias made some very good contributions despite this being Nicias’ first season. Nicias is a very 
handy batsman and bowler but made his biggest impact as a fielder. He saved a lot of runs and took 
4 catches and this earned Nicias the fielding award. 
 

Peter Ogborne 

Peter has a fantastic technique with both batting and bowling. The runs will come for Peter as his 
confidence grows. Peter’s bowling was very good all season and always a reliable option to dry up 
the runs. 
 
Robbie Mueller 

This was Robbie’s first season of cricket and his improvement was phenomenal. A tall bowler 
generating awkward bounce. Robbie was unlucky not to get more wickets, particularly in the 
second half of the season. Robbie also made a good contribution in the field taking 3 catches.  
 
Remi Cunningham 

Remi had a tremendous season with the bat and time and time again, played a vital role in setting 
good team totals. Remi was only out 3 times the whole season and ended with the top batting 
award. Remi’s batting average for the season was a massive 63.3. Remi is a more-than-useful 
bowler, at times bowling unplayable spin. Remi was very unlucky not to take more wickets 
throughout the season. 
 
Yash Samant 

Yash had a very impressive season topping the bowling averages and finishing second in the batting 
averages. Yash took 14 wickets at an average of 6.9. He ended the season with a batting average of 
46.8. A great season Yash. 
 
Awards for the 2013/2014 season went to: 
  
Best Batsman – Remi Cunningham 
Best Bowler – Yash Samant 
Best Fielder – Nicias Walsh 
Most Improved – Justin Cooley 
Spirit of Cricket – David Talfero 
  
Thanks to our umpires in Laurie Cunningham, Gordon Ogborne and Brendan Hood and a special 
mention to all the parents who helped make the season most enjoyable. 
 
 
Antony Gowthorp & Andrew Miller (Co-Coaches) 
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Batting  

  Innings NO 100 50 Ducks H/S Runs Average Catch Stump 

R Cunningham 12 9 0 0 1 27* 190 63.33 0 - 

Y Samant 11 7 0 0 0 36* 187 46.75 2 - 

J Nelson 13 4 0 0 3 26* 107 11.89 2 / 1 wk - 

A Gowthorp 10 4 0 0 1 20* 100 16.67 1 - 

K Miller 11 6 0 0 0 19* 95 19.00 2 - 

R Mueller 10 4 0 0 0 16* 57 9.50 3 - 

D Chick 7 2 0 0 2 22* 43 8.60 1 / 2 wk - 

P Ogborne 11 2 0 0 4 11 38 4.22 2 - 

J Cooley 12 6 0 0 4 9* 35 5.83 1 - 

N Walsh 12 7 0 0 3 10* 34 6.80 4 - 

D Talifero 10 4 0 0 3 9 31 5.17 0 - 

M Berry 6 0 0 0 0 11 25 4.17 0 - 

L McDonnell 12 6 0 0 1 6* 24 4.00 1 - 

J Engeman 11 6 0 0 3 10 23 4.60 0 - 

 
Bowling 

  Overs Maidens Runs Wickets 5 w I 10 w M Average Best Strike Economy 

Y Samant 34 3 96 14 0 0 6.86 3/6 14.57 2.82 

J Nelson 36 1 129 13 0 0 9.92 2/2 16.62 3.58 

A Gowthorp 27 1 87 8 0 0 10.88 3/6 20.25 3.22 

J Cooley 25 0 107 7 0 0 15.29 1/4 21.43 4.28 

D Chick 22 1 82 6 0 0 13.67 2/10 22.00 3.73 

J Engeman 29 1 104 6 0 0 17.33 2/6 29.00 3.59 

N Walsh 35 1 124 6 0 0 20.67 2/6 35.00 3.54 

M Berry 19 0 78 5 0 0 15.60 2/16 22.80 4.11 

R Cunningham 34 2 108 4 0 0 27.00 2/14 51.00 3.18 

K Miller 33 0 141 4 0 0 35.25 1/6 49.50 4.27 

L McDonnell 31 1 173 4 0 0 43.25 2/17 46.50 5.58 

R Mueller 24 0 104 3 0 0 34.67 2/7 48.00 4.33 

P Ogborne 31 4 107 3 0 0 35.67 1/3 62.00 3.45 

D Talifero 25 0 191 0 0 0 N/A 0/8 N/A 7.64 
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Under 11’s Reports: 
 
Under 11 Warner 
 

The Under 11 Warner team can credit their enjoyable season to their competitive instincts, raw 
skills and the commitment, diligence and knowledge of their loyal coach, Damian Ward. 
 
Warner finished the season towards the lower end of the table but this was mainly due to player 
shortages early 2014. In addition, three potentially easier games were not completed due to rain 
interruptions. However we regularly rated among the comp leaders in several categories, such as 
wickets lost (we averaged less than five a game) and runs against (we restricted sides on average to 
less than 100 runs). So from that perspective, team Warner performed admirably. 
 
A massive extension of gratitude goes to coach Damian for his tireless efforts with the team every 
Tuesday afternoon and Saturday morning. Rarely did a day go by when Damian wasn’t thinking 
about the team and how he could introduce new concepts to engage the boys. His dedication to the 
role was without peer, opting to continue leading the team into 2014 despite his son joining a 
private school and thereby having to leave the competition. What a tremendous gesture, one the 
parents will never forget. 
 
On the field the players responded quickly to Damian’s teachings and advice. He could read a game 
so well and this transpired to good adaptability out in the centre. Indeed the team was very blessed 
to have a mentor of such calibre, and his wise counsel will hold them in good stead for years to 
come. 
 
All boys can feel proud that they displayed resilience in their batting several times during the 
season. There were some wonderful innings amongst the top order, but just as equally magnificent 
displays among the lower order, where gritty defensive showings were required. 
 
The clear standout performer amongst the batsmen was Miles Ward, who swept all before him on 
the batting charts until he sadly left us at year’s end. Miles amassed a stunning 172 runs over 9 
innings, only being dismissed the once. Within that tally he struck an impressive 25 boundaries with 
some of those shots likely to be remembered by onlookers for some time to come, such was the 
power behind them. There is little doubt Miles would’ve taken out the NSJCA batting medal had he 
completed the season. Well done Miles for a great season with the bat! 
 
Besides Miles, Hugh & Daniel deserve mention for scoring over 150 runs, only being dismissed on 
50% of occasions. Charlie also found some form late in the season, with several good innings, while 
Ollie & Sam were both very handy with the bat. Finally, Lucas, Matt and Bassy were clear 
improvers over the season, each top scoring in the final round of games, producing classy displays. 
 
Within the bowling ranks, there were many successful spells during the season, and some notable 
improvements in both style and economy. Roman topped the wicket-takers with consistent displays 
throughout 2013, while Tom averaged over a wicket per game during the same period. Both Charlie 
and Daniel can lay claim to several fiery spells, the latter once taking 3 wickets in six balls to 
remove three top order batsmen. Will deserves credit for dismissing a couple of handing batsmen 
late in the season when the team desperately needed a wicket. 
 
In the field, all players progressed and adapted to the faster style of play in the u11 format. Hugh 
was memorable, fielding regularly at fine leg, and rarely letting a ball past him. He has a very fast 
re-gather and throw action, often restricting to a single many a decent shot to square. 
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All in all an enjoyable season for team Warner. Thanks again to coach Damian for his valuable 
insights, patience and commitment, also to the parents for all their help and to the boys for their 
infectious enthusiasm and never-ending desire to learn. 
 
Craig 
Manager, U11 Warner 
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Batting 

 

  Innings NO 100 50 Ducks H/S Runs Average Catch Stump 

H McLeod 12 5 0 0 1 27* 182 26.00 2 - 

M Ward 10 8 0 0 1 26* 172 86.00 2 - 

D Beattie 11 5 0 0 0 25* 154 25.67 2 / 1 wk - 

C Marwedel 12 3 0 0 1 25* 126 14.00 0 - 

S Hensel 12 6 0 0 1 25* 98 16.33 1 / 1 wk - 

O Bayliss 12 2 0 0 3 18 74 7.40 0 - 

M Crayn 2 2 0 0 0 28* 56 N/A 1 wk 3 

L Parsons 10 3 0 0 1 8 32 4.57 2 - 

S Ranasinghe 11 3 0 0 4 16 32 4.00 0 - 

R Sadiq 8 3 0 0 2 9* 25 5.00 2 - 

W Austin 1 0 0 0 0 16 16 16.00 0 - 

T Lacey 8 4 0 0 2 4* 12 3.00 3 - 

Q McMahon 1 0 0 0 0 6 6 6.00 0 - 

M Sidhu 1 0 0 0 0 6 6 6.00 0 - 

M Bell 6 2 0 0 1 3 6 1.50 0 - 

W Colman 3 1 0 0 1 4 5 2.50 0 - 

M Colman 2 0 0 0 0 1 2 1.00 0 - 

L McDonnell 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0.00 0 - 

C McLeod 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0.00 0 - 

 

Bowling 

 

  Overs Maidens Runs Wickets 5 w I 10 w M Average Best Strike Economy 

R Sadiq 24 0 119 8 0 0 14.88 2/7 18.00 4.96 

T Lacey 24 1 85 6 0 0 14.17 2/14 24.00 3.54 

D Beattie 26 3 91 6 0 0 15.17 3/7 26.00 3.50 

O Bayliss 30 2 132 5 0 0 26.40 1/3 36.00 4.40 

L Parsons 27 1 134 5 0 0 26.80 1/1 32.40 4.96 

C Marwedel 30 3 122 4 0 0 30.50 2/18 45.00 4.07 

H McLeod 32 2 124 4 0 0 31.00 1/3 48.00 3.88 

M Ward 19 3 52 3 0 0 17.33 1/1 38.00 2.74 

S Hensel 25.4 3 83 3 0 0 27.67 1/9 51.33 3.23 

W Colman 6 0 36 2 0 0 18.00 1/4 18.00 6.00 

M Bell 19 0 99 2 0 0 49.50 1/7 57.00 5.21 

S Ranasinghe 29.2 4 130 2 0 0 65.00 1/3 88.00 4.43 

M Sidhu 3 2 3 1 0 0 3.00 1/3 18.00 1.00 

Q McMahon 2 0 9 1 0 0 9.00 1/9 12.00 4.50 

L McDonnell 2 0 5 0 0 0 N/A 0/5 N/A 2.50 

S Allsopp 3 0 9 0 0 0 N/A 0/9 N/A 3.00 

W Austin 3 0 9 0 0 0 N/A 0/9 N/A 3.00 

M Crayn 4.2 0 20 0 0 0 N/A 0/6 N/A 4.62 

M Colman 4 0 27 0 0 0 N/A 0/4 N/A 6.75 

C McLeod 3 0 28 0 0 0 N/A 0/10 N/A 9.33 
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Under 12’s Reports: 
 
Under 12 Gilchrist 
 

This was the season that started with many new faces as it was the first Sat Arvo season for the 
Gillies.  For some of the kids it was their first season of cricket, whilst they had all played a form of 
cricket, back yard, beach, street etc. this was their first for many with the whites on.  By the 
conclusion of the season all had shown obvious improvement. 
 
Everyone has played their part in making this a team, all have contributed in a game, all have 
opened the batting, been last man, bowled only 2 overs in a game, kept wicket and fielded where 
they didn’t want to.  We didn’t win many games but the boys all kept turning up (no choice 
anyway) and kept smiling.  The reward for this effort was winning the last 2 games of the season, 
culminating in a well-deserved victory in the plate final.  I would like to note all of the kids as 
follows: 
 

• Ollie for his general knowledge of the game and rubbing my nose in the ashes victory. 

• Charlie, for the way he accepted every bad decision that seemed to go his way,  

• Brendon, for turning up every week and going out to bat. 

• Sophie, for always trying, and for putting up with her dad!! 

• Marcus Lal, for always smiling and accepting the decisions 

• Jack Stone, for making fielding look like fun 

• Sam Austin, boy I love his reaction when he gets out!! 

• Nikhil, for loving his cricket and enjoying playing in the team, cricket can be fun 

• Dan, always trying his best, wanting to win 

• Will G, for always trying to stop the ball, with his legs!! 

• Sam L, always smiling and always wanting to bat, 

• Marcus for always playing with a huge smile on his face 

This was a great year for the Lane Cove U12 Gilchrist team. 
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Batting 

 

  Innings NO 100 50 Ducks H/S Runs Average Catch Stump 

N Ahluwalia 15 9 0 2 0 60* 400 66.67 6 - 

M Lal 15 6 0 0 3 32* 142 15.78 2 - 

S Austin 12 2 0 0 0 30* 136 13.60 4 - 

D Oliver 13 3 0 0 4 31* 109 10.90 5 / 1 wk - 

S Lee 11 3 0 0 1 31* 108 13.50 2 / 2 wk - 

W Green 14 3 0 0 5 33* 101 9.18 1 - 

J Stone 12 2 0 0 2 30* 70 7.00 2 - 

W Austin 4 1 0 0 0 20 51 17.00 3 - 

S Oliver 9 3 0 0 2 14* 44 7.33 1 - 

C Cooper 12 1 0 0 2 11 44 4.00 0 - 

M Morris 9 2 0 0 4 11 32 4.57 3 - 

O Dwyer 13 4 0 0 4 10 29 3.22 1 - 

B Woodburn 10 3 0 0 4 6* 17 2.43 0 - 

L Lal 2 1 0 0 1 12* 12 12.00 0 - 

D Beattie 1 0 0 0 0 12 12 12.00 0 - 

H McLeod 1 1 0 0 0 3* 3 N/A 0 - 

C McLeod 1 0 0 0 0 3 3 3.00 0 - 

M Sidhu 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0.00 0 - 

F Farquharson 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0.00 1 - 

J Cooper 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0.00 0 - 

 

Bowling 

 

  Overs Maidens Runs Wickets 5 w I 10 w M Average Best Strike Economy 

S Austin 35 5 150 14 0 0 10.71 3/9 15.00 4.29 

N Ahluwalia 39 6 144 10 0 0 14.40 2/1 23.40 3.69 

D Oliver 32.4 6 128 9 0 0 14.22 2/2 21.78 3.92 

S Lee 34 2 140 7 0 0 20.00 3/5 29.14 4.12 

B Woodburn 31 1 185 6 0 0 30.83 1/5 31.00 5.97 

W Green 36.5 0 222 6 0 0 37.00 2/11 36.83 6.03 

W Austin 17.3 1 75 5 0 0 15.00 1/5 21.00 4.29 

J Stone 33 1 201 5 0 0 40.20 2/25 39.60 6.09 

M Morris 25.2 2 107 4 0 0 26.75 1/8 38.00 4.22 

S Oliver 27 0 151 4 0 0 37.75 2/20 40.50 5.59 

C Cooper 30.1 1 165 4 0 0 41.25 1/8 45.25 5.47 

O Dwyer 32 0 178 4 0 0 44.50 1/5 48.00 5.56 

M Lal 39 0 238 4 0 0 59.50 1/5 58.50 6.10 

D Beattie 2 0 6 1 0 0 6.00 1/6 12.00 3.00 

M Sidhu 3 0 11 1 0 0 11.00 1/11 18.00 3.67 

F Farquharson 3 0 16 1 0 0 16.00 1/16 18.00 5.33 

H McLeod 3 0 20 1 0 0 20.00 1/20 18.00 6.67 

C McLeod 3 2 1 0 0 0 N/A 0/1 N/A 0.33 

J Cooper 2 0 14 0 0 0 N/A 0/14 N/A 7.00 

L Lal 2 0 17 0 0 0 N/A 0/17 N/A 8.50 
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Under 12’s Reports: 
 
Under 12 Watson 
 

Under 12 Watson had a strong third season together winning the Cup final of the U12 Saturday PM 
Division 2 competition. The team welcomed three new players; Elliot Wheeler, Ethan Cook and 
Harrison Hayes. For Ethan and Harrison it was their first season of cricket with both boys 
improving significantly as the year progressed. 

The team’s strength was its batting, finishing the season with a run tally of 2,269, the highest of any 
team in the competition. This batting performance was spearheaded by Quinlan McMahon (316 
runs @ 63), Lachlan Hatton (227 runs @ 32) and Tom Cubis (208 runs @ 26) who consistently 
crafted patient innings. These boys were strongly supported by Kiefer O’Brien (198 runs), Elliot 
Wheeler (187 runs) and Harry Snell (170 runs). Best Batsman was awarded to Lachlan Hatton for 
his ability to score runs at a high strike rate and deliver big scores under pressure. Kiefer O’Brien, 
Luke Cass and Liam Whelan all deserve special mentions for their significant batting improvement 
this season.  

The bowling attack was spearheaded by Elliot Wheeler (who won Best Bowler with 11 wickets @ 
11), Quinlan McMahon (9 wickets @ 16) and Tom Cubis (8 wickets @ 15). These three were 
supported by fast, intimidating bowling from Max Mayes and Harry Snell. As evidence of a true 
team effort; Ethan Cook, Joe Ruddick, Kiefer Obrien, Harrison Hayes, Liam Whelan, Max Mayes 
and James Greenup all took over 5 weeks each for the season. Luke Cass developed nicely as the 
team’s sole off spinner. 

The team's fielding efforts were led by Quinlan McMahon (awarded Best Fieldsman) and Elliot 
Wheeler. Harry Snell, Max Mayes, Joe Ruddick and Kiefer O’Brien proved very capable outfielders 
with good ground speed, strong arms and reliable hands. Both Tom Cubis and Luke Cass did 
outstanding jobs as wicket keepers. The team’s final game was blessed with exceptional catches 
from Ethan Cook and James Greenup as well as several run outs from Joe Ruddick and Max Mayes. 

The award for Most Improved went to Kiefer O’Brien who enjoyed a breakthrough year with his 
batting from improved technique, increased feet movement and better shot selection as well as 
making great strides in his fielding efforts. Luke Cass, Liam Whelan, James Greenup, Lachlan 
Hatton and Harrison Hayes all deserve special mentions for the significant improvements they all 
made in their games over the season. 

Our Spirit of Cricket award went to Luke Cass who is quickly growing into a keen student of the 
game. Luke approached both training and games enthusiastically with the right mix of fun and 
focus. Other players who were also worthy of this award include Ethan Cook and Harrison Hayes. 

In conclusion, Under 12 Watson had another fun and successful season together which hopefully all 
the boys enjoyed and will return for the next season.  

Finally just a quick thank you to all the parents who helped through the season in various roles. 
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Batting 

 

  Innings NO 100 50 Ducks H/S Runs Average Catch Stump 

Q McMahon 14 9 0 0 1 34* 316 63.20 5 - 

L Hatton 13 6 0 0 0 37* 227 32.43 3 - 

T Cubis 12 4 0 0 2 33* 208 26.00 4 - 

K O'Brien 13 5 0 0 2 31* 198 24.75 0 - 

E Wheeler 11 5 0 0 0 32* 187 31.17 5 - 

H Snell 13 3 0 0 2 32* 170 17.00 1 - 

M Mayes 12 6 0 0 1 39* 126 21.00 1 - 

L Cass 13 8 0 0 3 32* 124 24.80 3 3 

J Ruddick 13 3 0 0 2 29 85 8.50 3 - 

L Whelan 9 5 0 0 1 27* 73 18.25 2 - 

J Greenup 14 5 0 0 4 20 71 7.89 1 - 

H Hayes 13 4 0 0 2 28* 60 6.67 0 - 

E Cook 9 2 0 0 4 4* 11 1.57 1 - 

P Strachotta 1 1 0 0 0 10* 10 N/A 0 - 

D McMahon 2 1 0 0 1 5* 5 5.00 0 - 

 

Bowling 

  

  Overs Maidens Runs Wickets 5 w I 10 w M Average Best Strike Economy 

E Wheeler 32 2 122 11 0 0 11.09 2/2 17.45 3.81 

Q McMahon 35 1 148 9 0 0 16.44 2/5 23.33 4.23 

T Cubis 27.3 2 117 8 0 0 14.63 3/2 20.63 4.25 

E Cook 17.4 0 152 7 0 0 21.71 2/10 15.14 8.60 

K O'Brien 24.1 1 123 6 0 0 20.50 2/11 24.17 5.09 

J Ruddick 22.2 1 123 6 0 0 20.50 3/4 22.33 5.51 

H Hayes 23 0 186 6 0 0 31.00 1/8 23.00 8.09 

L Whelan 20 1 100 5 0 0 20.00 2/3 24.00 5.00 

M Mayes 30 2 144 5 0 0 28.80 2/5 36.00 4.80 

J Greenup 27.2 0 171 5 0 0 34.20 2/16 32.80 6.26 

L Hatton 23 0 126 4 0 0 31.50 2/0 34.50 5.48 

L Cass 23 0 127 4 0 0 31.75 1/4 34.50 5.52 

H Snell 30 3 116 3 0 0 38.67 2/10 60.00 3.87 

D McMahon 4 0 22 0 0 0 N/A  N/A 5.50 

P Strachotta 1 0 6 0 0 0 N/A  N/A 6.00 
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Under 12’s Reports: 
 
Under 12 Waugh 
 

With eight team members still eligible for U11, the collective wisdom of the team was that 
achieving a middle of the table position at the end of the competition would be a respectable 
outcome. Making the Grand Final therefore confirmed an excellent season for all team members. 
 
The support from player’s parents for team management to pursue even opportunity for all players 
was rewarded as the highlights of the season were the contribution with both bat and ball by all 
players, and a steady significant improvement in skills and application.  
 
There were strong batting performances from Grattan Rutherford and Lachlan Roughley, with Riley 
Kennedy able to score quickly when required. Although Angus Gill was still eligible for U10 his 
batting displayed a level of skill that ensured his contribution to the team.  
 
On the bowling front Pierce Cole, Angus Gill and Grattan Rutherford secured the most wickets, 
with the miserly quartet of Dominic Adams, Liam McSweeney, Ollie Bayliss and Felix O’Brien 
securing a similar number of total wickets as the spearhead trio although with lower runs per over. 
As the season progressed Joel Plummer emerged as a bowler of choice with an improved line and 
length using his height to advantage and Cameron Hughes epitomised the even contribution with 
both runs and wickets through the season. 
 
The regular attendance by parents and their contributions through umpiring and scoring has no 
doubt contributed to the performances this season and also added to the enjoyment of all. Special 
thanks to Terry Kennedy for his time and commitment to the team and of course for his vocal 
support and encouragement on match day. It’s been a very successful and enjoyable season, and our 
thanks are also extended to the club officials in their contribution to our players. It is much 
appreciated. 
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Batting 

 

 PLAYER MAT INN NO 0S 4S 6S HS  RUNS AVE. 

1 Rutherford, Grattan 14 13 6 0 41  32* 280 40.00 

2 Roughley, Lachlan 15 14 12 0 28  33* 255 127.50 

3 Kennedy, Riley M 13 13 2 2 25  30* 185 16.82 

4 Gill, Angus 15 13 9 0 12  40* 154 38.50 

5 Cole, Pierce 14 14 8 1 15  19* 141 23.50 

6 Adams, Dominic 14 14 7 1 9 1 21* 136 19.43 

7 McSweeney, Liam 14 14 4 0 11  24 111 11.10 

8 O'Brien, Felix 15 14 5 1 6  20* 86 9.56 

9 Hughes, Cameron 15 11 5 2 10  30* 84 14.00 

10 Bayliss, Ollie 15 11 4 1 3  12 59 8.43 

11 Ward, Miles 5 5 2 1 9  30* 52 17.33 

12 Plummer, Joel 13 10 2 3 3  14* 41 5.13 

13 Howarth, Lachlan 1 1 0 0 2  11 11 11.00 

14 Beattie, Daniel 1 1 0 0   1 1 1.00 
 

 

Bowling 

 
 PLAYER MAT O M R W BBI AVE. STR. ECN. 

1 Cole, Pierce 14 42.2 3 168 13 2/1 12.92 19.54 3.97 

2 Rutherford, Grattan 14 35 1 132 11 2/11 12.00 19.09 3.77 

3 Gill, Angus 15 41 1 168 11 2/10 15.27 22.36 4.10 

4 Hughes, Cameron 15 39 3 163 9 2/15 18.11 26.00 4.18 

5 McSweeney, Liam 14 36 3 121 7 2/3 17.29 30.86 3.36 

6 Adams, Dominic 14 39.5 6 130 7 2/4 18.57 34.14 3.26 

7 O'Brien, Felix 15 39 1 151 7 2/14 21.57 33.43 3.87 

8 Bayliss, Ollie 15 42 2 163 7 2/11 23.29 36.00 3.88 

9 Plummer, Joel 13 34 1 189 7 2/8 27.00 29.14 5.56 

10 Roughley, Lachlan 15 38 1 144 5 1/4 28.80 45.60 3.79 

11 Kennedy, Riley M 13 30 1 135 4 1/4 33.75 45.00 4.50 

12 Ward, Miles 5 14 0 60 2 1/8 30.00 42.00 4.29 

13 Beattie, Daniel 1 2 0 15 0  NA NA 7.50 

14 Howarth, Lachlan 1 3 0 28 0  NA NA 9.33 
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Under 13’s Reports: 
 
Under 13 Chappell 

U13 Division 2 
 

 
 Manager – Toni Devine, Billy Rowe, Ryan Devine, Daniel Papangelis, Ben dal Maso, Jasper Walsh, Ayush Joshi and Tom Pittman.  

Insert:  Mackenzie Almond 

Absent:  Team coach:  Stephen Altham, Dhruvik Balsara, Will Armstrong, Jack Horgan, Hamish Sinclair, Luke Altham 

 

The 2013/2014 season proved to be a bit of a mixed one for the U12 Chappell Team.  We retained a 
lot of players from the 2012/2013 season, and lost a few.  We welcomed Jasper Walsh, Tom 
Pittman, Daniel Papangelis, Will Armstrong and Jack Horgan to the team under Coach Stephen 
Altham. 
 
The first match put the boys and coach on a high with a comfortable win against Lindfield Healy.  
Unfortunately we were punished by Ryde Hunters Hill Pirates the following week where a poor 
fielding performance let us down.  After that it was a mix of wins and losses until the end of the 
season. 
 
Jasper Walsh proved to be a reliable and steady opener for most of the matches, along with Jack 
Horgan for a vast majority of the time.  In regards to batting performances, Ben dal Maso, Ryan 
Devine and Jasper Walsh almost always contributed in the batting performance with the three of 
them finishing as 5th, 6th and 7th respectively on the league.   Ayush Joshi, Luke Altham and Daniel 
Papangelis also contributed regularly.  A notable great batting performance was in round eight 
against Lindfield Hussey where Ryan Devine scored 51 runs, Ben dal Maso 42, Ayush Joshi 35 and 
Will Armstrong 23.  Ryan Devine was given the “Best Batting” award this season. 
 
In regards to bowling, Luke Altham took a steady stream of wickets throughout the season and 
achieved 7th on the league with 14 wickets at 11.36 (and took the “Best Bowler” award), followed 
by Ayush Joshi who took 10 at 12.6.  Round nine saw Luke take three wickets against Gordon Blue.  
Mackenzie Almond and Jasper Walsh also helped throughout the season with a number of wickets.  
Fielding continues to be an area where most players could continue to improve with better 
concentration and focus and this is probably the area which let us down the most during the season.  
One notable exception was Dhruvik Balsara who gave an outstanding wicket keeping performance 
which won him the “Best Fielder” award for the team.  Jack Horgan also showed great 
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determination as our other wicket keeper.  Billy Rowe provided steady hands by taking a number of 
catches, and Hamish Sinclair’s bowling improved notably. 
 
There were two or three players who qualified for “Most Improved” during the season, and Tom 
Pittman was judged to have improved significantly throughout the year.  The Spirit of Cricket 
award was awarded to Jasper Walsh who performed well regularly, constantly tried to improve and 
showed great sportsmanship throughout the season. 
 
Unfortunately the weather was not kind to anyone in our division for the semi final weekend.  At 
that point we were fourth on the table and, unfortunately, a washout that weekend saw us out for the 
season.  Hopefully we can retain most of the team for next season and improve our fielding 
performance to work towards a better outcome for 2014/2015. 
 
Finally, it must be noted that the team had a supportive group of parents who not only got most of 
the boys to training twice a week, but attended games regularly and shared the duties.  Special 
thanks must go to umpires John Armstrong, Con Papangelis Vipul Balsara, Graham Rowe and 
Michael dal Maso.  Jon Devine, Peter Horgan, Dominic Walsh, Michael Almond and Martin 
Pittman all shared the scoring duties.  Last but not least, special thanks to Stephen Altham for all the 
time and effort going into coaching the boys and providing two training sessions per week for most 
of the season. 
 



 

  
93 

Batting 
 PLAYER MAT INN NO 50S 0S 4S 6S MINS HS RUNS 

AVE. STR. 

1 dal Maso, Ben 15 14 5 0 0 33 9 382 42* 277 30.78 108.2 

2 Devine, Ryan M 13 13 4 1 2 42  385 51* 257 28.56 99.6 

3 Walsh, Jasper 15 14 4 0 0 27  338 41* 252 25.20 108.6 

4 Joshi, Ayush 14 13 4 0 0 21 1 212 35* 168 18.67 105.7 

5 Altham, Luke 15 13 5 0 1 17  222 37* 154 19.25 77.8 

6 Papangelis, Daniel 14 13 3 0 1 15 7 121 35* 123 12.30 101.7 

7 Armstrong, William 11 9 3 0 0 9  112 23 102 17.00 76.1 

8 Rowe, Billy 14 12 2 0 1 13  89 24 91 9.10 107.1 

9 Horgan, Jack 13 12 1 0 1 9  143 21 87 7.91 75.0 

10 Balsara, Dhruvik 14 12 3 0 3 11  102 15* 81 9.00 75.0 

11 Pittman, Thomas 13 11 2 0 1 5  105 26 78 8.67 91.8 

12 Sinclair, Hamish 10 8 3 0 0 3  46 15* 35 7.00 79.5 

13 Farquharson, Flynn 1 1 1 0 0 3 1 55 35* 35 NA 67.3 

14 Almond, Mackenzie 13 6 2 0 2 5  29 30* 33 8.25 150.0 

15 Farquharson, Hugo 1 1 0 0 0 2  10 11 11 11.00 73.3 

16 Beattie, Daniel 1 1 1 0 0   15 3* 3 NA 17.6 

17 Rutherford, Richard A 1 1 0 0 1   1 0 0 0.00  

 
Bowling 

 PLAYER MAT O M R W 
BBI AVE. STR. ECN. 

1 Altham, Luke 15 48.2 9 159 14 3/12 11.36 20.71 3.29 

2 Joshi, Ayush 14 47 11 126 10 2/8 12.60 28.20 2.68 

3 Almond, Mackenzie 13 23 1 120 7 2/1 17.14 19.71 5.22 

4 Walsh, Jasper 15 45.2 8 155 7 2/5 22.14 38.86 3.42 

5 Armstrong, William 11 22 1 103 6 2/10 17.17 22.00 4.68 

6 Rowe, Billy 14 29.2 1 104 6 2/6 17.33 29.33 3.55 

7 Pittman, Thomas 13 35.4 5 136 6 2/12 22.67 35.67 3.81 

8 Papangelis, Daniel 14 37 8 164 6 3/9 27.33 37.00 4.43 

9 dal Maso, Ben 15 38 2 165 6 1/3 27.50 38.00 4.34 

10 Devine, Ryan M 13 26 2 101 5 1/1 20.20 31.20 3.88 

11 Balsara, Dhruvik 14 18 1 91 3 1/1 30.33 36.00 5.06 

12 Horgan, Jack 13 20 1 93 3 1/2 31.00 40.00 4.65 

13 Farquharson, Hugo 1 4 0 8 2 2/8 4.00 12.00 2.00 

14 Sinclair, Hamish 10 18 1 97 2 1/8 48.50 54.00 5.39 

15 Altham, Isaac 1 2 0 11 1 1/11 11.00 12.00 5.50 

16 Rutherford, Richard A 1 2 0 5 0  NA NA 2.50 

17 Farquharson, Flynn 1 2 0 7 0  NA NA 3.50 

18 Beattie, Daniel 1 2 0 12 0  NA NA 6.00 
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Under 13’s Reports: 
 
Under 13 Smith 

U13 Division 1 
 
 

 
 
Back Row: Hamish Cressy, Lachlan Phillips, Will Hodgson, Carson Forrest, Michael O’Farrell, Will Tobin, Nick 
Plazas 
Kneeling: Harri Lee-Young, Isaac Saunders, Nick Loane, Adam Sidhu 
Exhausted: Mitchell Crayn 
Missing (but actually played): Sean O’Farrell 
 

Lane Cove Smith whilst maintaining its core of players from the 2012/13 season saw the departures 
of Adam McLean, Nick Radford and mid-way thru the season Josh Fish.  New additions to the team 
were Harri Lee-Young, Nick Plazas and Will Hodgson who joined us from the North Sydney club. 
 
Having won the Division 1 Championship in U11s and again in U12s, although in very different 
circumstances in those years, we were clearly the favourites and the team to beat in 2013.  The 
challenge was always one of whether the size of some of the other teams would get the better of us 
with so many of our team being underage players.  In fact only 3 players, Sean O’Farrell, Carson 
Forrest and Isaac Saunders were playing in their correct age group.  4 players (Mitchell Crayn, 
Adam Sidhu, Lachlan Phillips and Michael O’Farrell) were playing up 2 age groups. 
 
The season started with a close win over last year’s Minor Premiers, West Pymble Gold at Lofberg.  
Solid bowling by Adam Sidhu (3/11) and Carson Forrest (3/17) enabled us to keep West Pymble to 
8/122 in their pursuit of our modest 5/132. 
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The toughness of this competition was to show up in the second match against Ryde Hunters Hill 
whom we defeated by 1 run.  Having scored just 118 with Wil Hodgson (28no) and Sean O’Farrell 
(26) the only batsmen to get to double figures, we were under pressure immediately.  Very tight 
bowling by Will Hodgson 3/8, Adam Sidhu 3/14 and Michael O’Farrell (4 overs 1/6) enabled us to 
bowl them out 2 runs short of victory. 
 
A strong batting effort in our 3rd match against Lindfield Siddle enabled us to post 199, with Sean 
scoring 38no, Mitchell 35no and Adam 35.  Lindfield were able to be contained to just 4/173 but all 
the games were proving tight. 
 
Our 4th match was no exception.  With our batting misfiring and only Lachlan Phillips and Harri 
Lee-Young putting on runs we limped to a modest 9/128.  Again a strong bowling and fielding 
effort enabled us to bowl them out for 127.   
 
4 games, 4 wins, 2 by 1 run!   
 
The 5th game was a 7 run win over Lane Cove Clarke with Will Tobin (32no) and Sean O’Farrell 
(27) scoring the runs.  Carson’s 5 overs 3/17 did the damage with the ball. 
 
Round 6 saw us in a 2 day game against St Pius at Forestville.  Batting first we were struggling at 
9/126 off 28 overs before Sean O’Farrell and Lachlan Phillips united to put on 65 for the last wicket 
and enable us to bat out most of our overs.  We were able to put St Pius in and have them 3 wickets 
down at the end of day 1.  Day 2 we bowled them out for just 67 and went for the outright but good 
defensive batting saw them hold us out at 5/57. 
 
Round 7 we played Roseville at Gladesville and for the 7th time we batted first.  We put on a 
reasonable total at 7/139 with Adam Sidhu (36no) and Will Hodgson (27) the key contributors.  In 
what turned out to be a very close affair Roseville defeated Lane Cove by 2 wickets with 2 balls to 
spare.  Our first loss and a close one. 
 
Round 8 was washed out and Round 9 we played St Ives Haddin, one of the top sides.  We again 
posted a modest total of 5/135 at Burns Bay but narrowly lost by 2 wickets.  The 6 wickets we took 
for 4 runs certainly applied the screws and showed we would not give up without a fight but we just 
didn’t quite have the runs. 
 
Our last game before Xmas was a 20:20 against West Pymble and again we batted first – a common 
theme!  In a welcome return to some batting form we racked up an impressive 7/161 with most 
batsmen scoring runs off the 5 over maximum overs.  Mitchell’s 30 was the highlight. 
 
In our first match after the long Xmas break we defeated Ryde Hunters Hill, running down their 
total of 109 in 28 overs.  The next match was a 2 day game against Lindfield Siddle and we 
recorded the highest score for a Junior Lane Cove team on record at 8/383 off our 60 overs.  The 
standout innings was Hamish Cressey’s 73 off 49 balls with the last 43 coming off only 18 balls. 
Adam Sidhu, Harri Lee-Young, Carson Forrest and Nick Plazas all scored into the 30s and our last 
3 batsmen scored 118 runs.  It was a tremendous effort and by far our best of the season.  Day 2 we 
were hoping for an outright but against a resolute Lindfield side we were fortunate to bowl them out 
for 134 in the 50th over. 
 
We went into the last competition round against Lindfield Davis needing a win to secure outright 
first place.  It was not to be.  Again we batted first and ran up 7/162 with only Adam Sidhu (37no), 
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Harri Lee Young (28no), Will Hodgson (23no) scoring runs.  While we again applied pressure with 
the ball, especially towards the end to have them at 9/163, they won with 3 overs to spare. 
 
While we lost our last match, so too did West Pymble and as a result we finished the season as 
outright minor premiers.  An outstanding result in what was a very competitive division where in 
the last round the top 2 teams were defeated by the 7th and 9th placed sides. 
 
The first weekend of the finals was washed out and so as the No 1 side we went straight through to 
the Grand Final against the No 2 West Pymble side.  It was a worthy Championship match with the 
top 2 sides featuring.  We won the toss and batted again – amazingly we had batted first in 12/13 
matches we played this season!! 
 
We started well with Mitchell Crayn and Adam Sidhu getting us off to a good strong start before we 
lost Mitchell to a run out for 20 when we were on 60.  Sean got a life early and then shortly after 
Adam retired for a well earned 35no bringing Harri to the crease.  Sean and Harri steadily 
accumulated runs with a partnership of 68 off 73 balls, before Sean decided to retire himself (who 
does that??) on 26no.  Hamish Cressey scored a quickfire 15 off 12 balls and Harri retired on 36no.  
Lachlan’s 14 off 10 helped us close our innings at 3/180. 
 
We applied early pressure in the field but were never able to quite close them out and by drinks they 
were slightly ahead of us.  A fielding error where we had 12 players on the field saw us penalized 
14 runs which brought West Pymble well back into the game.  With 8 overs to go they needed 51 
runs off 48 balls.  A tense finale was ensured.  Fortunately in what would be the championship 
overs (26 thru 29) Adam and Carson bowled 4 overs for 4 runs and took 3 wickets.  There was no 
looking back from there and we went on to close out the game convincingly.  
 
A huge congratulations to Steve Crayn who has now coached these boys for the past 4 years and to 
3 Division 1 championships in a row.  Its Steve’s last season as coach and he goes out on top.  
Thank you also to Andrew Tobin who scored for us throughout the season.  Thanks also to Colin 
Hodgson, Glen Phillips, Pierre Plazas and Chris Saunders who umpired for us during the season. 
 
 
Best Batsman: Adam Sidhu 
Best Bowler: Adam Sidhu 
Best Fieldsman: Will Hodgson 
Most Improved: Nick Plazas 
Spirit of Cricket: Will Tobin 
 
 
John O’Farrell 
Manager 
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Batting Statistics  

 
 Player  MAT INN NO 0s 4s 6s Mins HS  RUNS AVE. STR. 

1  Sidhu, Adam 13 13 9 0 31   256 37*  262 65.50  71.2 

2  Cressey, Hamish C 11 10 2 0 25 1 144 73*  194 24.25  75.2 

3  Lee-Young, Harrison 12 11 7 0 26   156 36*  189 47.25  61.2 

4  O'Farrell, Sean F 11 10 2 1 26 2 189 38*  184 23.00  85.6 

5  Crayn, Mitchell 12 11 4 0 19   195 35*  183 26.14  72.0 

6  Phillips, Lachlan 11 11 4 1 13 1 157 38*  137 19.57  63.7 

7  Hodgson, William 12 10 2 1 18   103 28*  134 16.75  55.8 

8  Tobin, Will 11 10 3 0 15   76 32*  110 15.71  57.9 

9  Forrest, Carson 13 11 2 1 11   63 34  99 11.00  60.7 

10  Plazas, Nicholas 11 9 3 3 13 1 68 35*  95 15.83  58.3 

11  O'Farrell, Michael C 11 10 4 1 1   75 12  58 9.67  36.3 

12  Loane, Nicholas E 9 8 2 2 6 1 58 27*  55 9.17  56.1 

13  Saunders, Isaac 11 10 2 1 4   60 20  40 5.00  32.3 

14  Forrest, Harvey 4 1 1 0 3     20*  20 NA  95.2 

15  Fish, Joshua J 3 3 0 0 1   25 5  11 3.67  26.8 

 
 

 

Bowling Statistics 

 
 Player  MAT O M R W 5Wi BBI AVE. STR. ECN. 

1  Sidhu, Adam 13 60  7 235 23 0 3/11  10.22  15.65  3.92  

2  Forrest, Carson 13 59  13 144 14 0 3/17  10.29  25.29  2.44  

3  Hodgson, William 12 49  10 151 12 0 3/8  12.58  24.50  3.08  

4  Lee-Young, Harrison 12 37  2 154 9 0 2/10  17.11  24.67  4.16  

5  Plazas, Nicholas 11 33.2 4 123 8 1 5/21  15.38  25.00  3.69  

6  Tobin, Will 11 34  3 150 8 0 4/16  18.75  25.50  4.41  

7  O'Farrell, Sean F 11 27.4 3 100 6 0 1/4  16.67  27.67  3.61  

8  O'Farrell, Michael C 11 33  4 112 6 0 1/4  18.67  33.00  3.39  

9  Cressey, Hamish C 11 24  1 131 5 0 1/1  26.20  28.80  5.46  

10  Forrest, Harvey 4 8.2  2 24 2 0 2/10  12.00  25.00  2.88  

11  Fish, Joshua J 3 8  3 28 2 0 1/2  14.00  24.00  3.50  

12  Loane, Nicholas E 9 20  2 80 2 0 1/2  40.00  60.00  4.00  

13  Saunders, Isaac 11 22  0 108 2 0 1/2  54.00  66.00  4.91  

14  Phillips, Lachlan 11 30  3 133 2 0 1/4  66.50  90.00  4.43  

15  Sidhu, Matthew 1 2  0 10 0 0 0/10  NA  NA  5.00  
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Under 14’s Reports: 
 
Under 14 Rogers 

 

Another very strong season from our boys, many of whom have been together for four seasons now. 
We certainly played some very good cricket and on our day were (I believe) the strongest side in the 
competition. The eventual premiers, Gordon, would probably beg to differ but both times we played 
them we should have won, losing in the last over the first time when we had 10 men and mucking 
up a relatively easy run chase the second. On both occasions we were without our Shore contingent 
so unfortunately we didn't get the opportunity to face them at full strength. In any case it should 
have been a worthy final, however we lost a few games we should have won in the first part of the 
season meaning we were chasing points at the end, we finished a credible 3rd but due to our place 
on the ladder lost the semi on washout to a Mosman side we had beaten easily only two games 
previously.  
 
In the main the boys played good hard competitive cricket, this year we moved further towards 
more defined roles for each player (batsman, bowler, keeper, all rounder), in the main the boys (and 
the parents) handled this pretty well. I'd be the first to acknowledge that this: a) can be a challenge 
for all; and b) is very subjective. I thought the boys did a very good job of running themselves in the 
field, many opposing umpires and coaches commented positively to me on on this. Very quickly 
from the start of the season practically all of the on field decisions were being made by the boys, so 
in this regard I feel they progressed significantly. So much so that many of the messages I sent out 
proffering advice were politely (on occasion) disregarded…which is clearly a good thing! In terms 
of individual improvement, I'm not sure it was a great year for that, as almost everyone has had 
better individual seasons. That said, I do believe that each of the boys has made further progress as 
developing cricketers. The private schools played havoc with our team sheets each week and 
several boys, who played Saturday morning games for school, really struggled with tiredness (quite 
understandably) by the time the afternoon game came around.  
 
The awards: 
Our Batting Award went to Max who scored 237 runs at an average of 47.4 in 12 innings, 7 not outs 
and a highest score of 42*. Though not an exceptional season, Max had a very consistent one, only 
once falling for less than 10. Other notable performers with the bat were Hugo (196 @ 28 in 10 
innings, HS 33*), solid but not as dominant as last year, and Bas (181 @ 25.9 in 13 innings, HS 
30*) who opened the innings well. Harry may well have won the award had he been able to play 
more games (175 @ 58.5, HS 36*), Will Robinson (145 @ 48.3, HS 42*) the same. Sam, who 
joined us from the UK in January, showed his talent and quality and with a few more matches 
would have been challenging for this award too. Nick, Cameron and Jack all made valuable runs 
during the season. Though no one had a dominant season with the bat as in years past, it was 
pleasing to see that every player made a significant score at some stage during the season.  
 
Our Bowling Award went to Bas whose leg spin bowling delivered 19 wickets @ 10.32 with a best 
bowling of 4/9. Bas bowled consistently well all season and reaped the benefits of attacking 
bowling inducing many a false shot and stumping as the the batsmen failed to deal with the ball 
flighted above their eye line. Bas won the NSJCA award for the best bowler (strike rate) in our 
competition. Other notable contributors with the ball were Hugo (10 wickets @ 10.60, BB 3/26), 
including a few match winning spells and Jack's craftily flighted offies (10 wickets @ 10.80, BB 
3/5). Others like Flynn, Cameron, Nick and Richard bowled consistently well without always 
getting the wickets.  
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Our Fielding Award was won by Nick after taking 7 catches and effecting 2 run outs. Nick is a 
natural athlete with a great pair of hands and a strong arm who has been a consistent performer in 
the field for many years. Max had a good season behind the stumps taking 8 catches, effecting 8 
stumpings and 5 run outs, he won the NSJCA award for the best keeper in our competition. Special 
mention must go to Will Bremner who managed to take an amazing 8 catches in the 3 matches he 
played for us. Hugo, Sam, Cameron and Harry all fielded consistently well, taking their catches and 
making their saves. As a team, the fielding this year veered between exceptional and very poor, as 
always an area in which more improvement can be made.  
 
Our Most Improved Award was a difficult one, as a few players put their hands up, but in the end it 
was Joe Carter whose bowling and batting improved significantly through out the year, culminating 
a wonderful 38* against St Pius Red late last year. Joe's broken foot was great loss for the team and 
we know how disappointed he was. It was a great credit to him that he continued to come to the 
games and even the occasional training (on crutches) to support the team. Our Spirit of Cricket 
Award was also a tough one, with Thomas, Joe, Will Robinson and Harry all good candidates for 
their positive attitudes, in the end the Award went to Cameron Pascoe whose all round performance 
with bat, ball (regardless of where he was asked to bat or bowl) and in the field as well as his 
calmness and his "let's just get on with it" attitude made him a pleasure to coach. 
 
Many thanks to Michael Mahoney for managing and helping out with coaching, and Russ Feilen, 
Peter Hill and Malcolm Pascoe for shouldering the bulk of the umpiring and ground set up duties. 
Heartfelt thanks to our regular scorers, Simon Pitts, Janet Hill and Rob Rutherford who all 
performed this specialised task with aplomb. Special thanks to all the parents for their help and 
support and for making this another very enjoyable year. I reckon this will be the last year that 
many of these boys will play together under my tutelage, it has been both a privilege and a pleasure 
to coach them and I wish them well in their futures, cricketing or otherwise. 
 
Best regards, 
 
Matt Rogers 
 
 
U14 Rogers 2013/14 – 3rd: 
 
Best Batsman   Max Rogers 
Best Bowler   Bas Braham 
Best Fielder   Nick Hill 
Most Improved  Joe Carter 
Spirit of Cricket  Cameron Pascoe  
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Batting 

 

  Innings NO 100 50 Ducks H/S Runs Average Catch Stump 

M Rogers 12 7 0 0 0 42* 237 47.40 8 wk 8 

H Farquharson 10 3 0 0 0 33* 196 28.00 4 - 

S Braham 13 6 0 0 0 30 181 25.86 1 - 

H Lucas 6 3 0 0 0 36* 175 58.33 5 - 

N Hill 10 3 0 0 1 42* 154 22.00 7 - 

W Robinson 7 4 0 0 1 42* 145 48.33 0 - 

C Pascoe 11 6 0 0 1 32* 145 29.00 2 - 

J Feilen 10 3 0 0 2 32 124 17.71 1 / 2 wk 1 

F Mahoney 10 4 0 0 1 41* 109 18.17 1 - 

T Pitts 8 2 0 0 0 36 98 16.33 1 - 

J Carter 7 2 0 0 2 38* 68 13.60 1 / 1 wk - 

W Bremner 3 1 0 0 0 40* 64 32.00 8 - 

S Fanning 2 1 0 0 0 43* 54 54.00 3 - 

A Sidhu 1 1 0 0 0 43* 43 N/A 3 - 

M Moore 2 1 0 0 0 27* 28 28.00 0 - 

R Rutherford 7 3 0 0 1 15* 28 7.00 2 / 1 wk - 

R Haghi 1 1 0 0 0 2* 2 N/A 1 - 

R Graham 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0.00 0 - 

 

Bowling 

  

  Overs Maidens Runs Wickets 5 w I 10 w M Average Best Strike Economy 

S Braham 42 5 196 19 0 0 10.32 4/9 13.26 4.67 

H Farquharson 32.5 7 106 10 0 0 10.60 3/26 19.70 3.23 

J Feilen 22.2 3 108 10 0 0 10.80 3/5 13.40 4.84 

T Pitts 24 2 143 6 0 0 23.83 2/9 24.00 5.96 

C Pascoe 43 5 162 6 0 0 27.00 2/19 43.00 3.77 

J Carter 22 1 133 5 0 0 26.60 2/15 26.40 6.05 

F Mahoney 46.5 6 200 4 0 0 50.00 1/17 70.25 4.27 

S Fanning 5 1 13 3 0 0 4.33 2/11 10.00 2.60 

M Moore 8 2 23 3 0 0 7.67 2/9 16.00 2.88 

W Bremner 13 2 40 3 0 0 13.33 2/11 26.00 3.08 

R Rutherford 35 3 162 3 0 0 54.00 1/5 70.00 4.63 

A Sidhu 7 0 19 2 0 0 9.50 2/7 21.00 2.71 

H Lucas 18 2 69 2 0 0 34.50 1/8 54.00 3.83 

G Mellos 3.2 1 7 1 0 0 7.00 1/7 20.00 2.10 

R Haghi 7 1 24 1 0 0 24.00 1/2 42.00 3.43 

J Greenslade 3 0 11 0 0 0 N/A 0/11 N/A 3.67 

R Graham 4 0 16 1 0 0 16.00 1/16 24.00 4.00 

N Hill 23 3 125 1 0 0 125.00 1/4 138.00 5.43 

M Rogers 8 0 65 0 0 0 N/A 0/12 N/A 8.13 

W Robinson 16 3 93 0 0 0 N/A 0/4 N/A 5.81 
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Under 17’s Reports: 
 
Under 17 McCabe 

U16/17 Sunday AM Division 

 
The season for this team actually started with a number of players getting together for the first time 
to participate in the Kookaburra Cup in Canberra.  It was a great way to bring a new bunch of 
players together. 
 
After fielding joint Venture sides for the past two years with St Ives, Lane Cove was able to field a 
stand-alone Lane Cove team and indeed had to turn some younger players away.  The side was an 
amalgam of the Lane Cove players from the 2012/13 St Coves side together with the core of the 
U14/15 Healy side. 
 
The challenge for this age group is as always Rep cricket which is played on a Sunday.  With 7 of 
our players committing to representative cricket be it DCA or President’s Cup it was only very late 
in the season that we were able to field our strongest side. 
 
The team had an outstanding year and finished 3rd at the end of the regular season.  We won most of 
the games we should have and competed well against both Mosman and St Ives but were never 
quite able to put sustained pressure on either of those sides during the season to deliver the result we 
knew the boys were capable of. 
 
While our bowling and fielding were often our strength the batting on the big occasion faltered and 
ultimately a lack of runs was what cost us in the rain affected semi-final against Mosman at Rawson 
Park. 
 
To the boys credit they were in every game and could hold their heads up high.  There were a 
number of highlights: 
 

• Angus Dowey’s 77 with the bat against Roseville in Round 2 

• Ollie Zannino’s 65no against North Sydney at Tantallon in Round 4 

• Ryan McElduff and Will Bremner’s 98 run partnership against Mosman in Round 10 

• Manus Chauhan twice took 4/3, I Round 1 and Round 11. 

• Luke Robertson’s 4/2 in Round 8 

• Tom Silks 4/19 I Round 4. 

• Tom Flynn’s 4/23 in Round 10 and 3/19 in Round 2; and 

• Alex Chisholm’s 3/8 in Round 9. 
 
A big thanks to John Osborne for his help coaching on the day and to Mike Forde who ran training 
most Fridays at Riverview.  Thanks also to the various parents who helped with umpiring especially 
Steve Chisholm, Mike Forde and John Bremner.  A very big thanks also to Michael O’Farrell who 
came along and scored for us each week. 
 
Thanks and best wishes to James Armstrong and Jack Rose who due to their ages finish up this 
year.  We wish them well for the future.  For the remainder we look forward to having you back to 
go one better next year. 
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Finally a big thank you to Trent and the grounds staff at Lane Cove for continuously turning out 
one of the best turf wickets on the North Shore.  It was a pleasure to be able play and showcase this 
surface to other clubs. 
 
 
Best Batsman: Angus Dowey 
Best Bowler: Tom Flynn 
Best Fieldsman: Tom Flynn 
Most Improved: James Armstrong 
Spirit of Cricket: Will Bremner 
 
 
 
John O’Farrell 
Manager 
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Batting Statistics 

 
 Player  MAT INN NO 50s 0s 4s 6s Mins HS  RUNS AVE. STR. 

1  Dowey, Angus 8 8 2 1 1 32 3 96 77  219 36.50  119.0 

2  Zannino, Oliver 6 6 3 1 0 17 2 96 65*  163 54.33  100.0 

3  Armstrong, James D 11 9 2 0 0 11 1 99 32  129 18.43  78.7 

4  Bremner, Will 10 8 0 1 1 12 4 77 52  129 16.13  131.6 

5  McElduff, Ryan 4 4 1 1 0 11   166 62  122 40.67  72.6 

6  Flynn, Tom 12 10 2 0 1 9 1 61 26  120 15.00  101.7 

7  Robertson, Luke 11 10 1 0 1 8   106 32*  95 10.56  55.2 

8  Osborne, Tom 9 7 1 0 1 7   34 34  89 14.83  62.7 

9  O'Farrell, Patrick 5 5 0 0 0 12   59 42  73 14.60  146.0 

10 Rose, Jack 10 7 2 0 1 5   70 14  47 9.40  46.1 

11 Chauhan, Annay 7 7 2 0 2 2   8 15*  36 7.20  52.2 

12 Silk, Tommy 9 6 1 0 1 1   29 10  26 5.20  59.1 

13 Quin-Conroy, Tom 9 7 2 0 1 1   4 9  25 5.00  67.6 

14 Forde, Oliver 10 3 1 0 1 2     15  20 10.00  95.2 

15 Chauhan, Manus 6 5 1 0 0     12 9  20 5.00  38.5 

16 Hoffman, Charlie 4 3 1 0 0     18 6  11 5.50  64.7 

17 Desouza, Kevin 4 3 1 0 1     26 5*  10 5.00  47.6 

18 Flannigan, Luka 1 1 1 0 0     15 9*  9 NA  100.0 

19 Unwin, Joe 3 1 0 0 0 1   12 7  7 7.00  87.5 

20 Chisholm, Alexander 9 4 3 0 0     21 2  3 3.00  12.5 

 
 
 
 
Bowling Statistics 

 
 Player  MAT O M R W 5Wi BBI AVE. STR. ECN. 

1  Flynn, Tom 12 42.2 9 131 13 0 4/23  10.08  19.54  3.09  

2  Chauhan, Manus 6 20.4 2 64 9 0 4/3  7.11  13.78  3.10  

3  Robertson, Luke 11 27  2 138 8 0 4/2  17.25  20.25  5.11  

4  Forde, Oliver 10 30  5 100 7 0 2/9  14.29  25.71  3.33  

5  Chauhan, Annay 7 21  3 88 6 0 2/15  14.67  21.00  4.19  

6  Chisholm, Alexander 9 31  4 105 6 0 3/8  17.50  31.00  3.39  

7  Silk, Tommy 9 12.4 3 46 5 0 4/19  9.20  15.20  3.63  

8  Bremner, Will 10 22  1 101 5 0 2/23  20.20  26.40  4.59  

9  Desouza, Kevin 4 18  2 63 3 0 2/21  21.00  36.00  3.50  

10  McElduff, Ryan 4 10.2 0 81 3 0 2/25  27.00  20.67  7.84  

11  Quin-Conroy, Tom 9 6.3  1 44 2 0 1/9  22.00  19.50  6.77  

12  Osborne, Tom 9 8  0 51 2 0 1/9  25.50  24.00  6.38  

13  Rose, Jack 10 16  0 96 2 0 1/6  48.00  48.00  6.00  

14  Sidhu, Alex 1 3  0 10 1 0 1/10  10.00  18.00  3.33  

15  Unwin, Joe 3 9  1 43 1 0 1/20  43.00  54.00  4.78  

16  Armstrong, James D 11 12  1 52 1 0 1/7  52.00  72.00  4.33  

17  Hoffman, Charlie 4 13  0 73 1 0 1/14  73.00  78.00  5.62  
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SPONSORS 2013/14 

 
 

 
 

 

The Longueville Sporting Club 

 
gm@longuevillesportingclub.com.au 
(02) 9427 2210 
www.longuevillesportingclub.com.au 
 
Lane Cove Cricket Club is proud to make the Longueville 
Sporting Club its social venue of choice.  Various functions are 
held at the LSC during the season and the players can also be 
found there celebrating after each and every match during the 
season. 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Greg Chappell Cricket Centre 

 
gcccsydney@cricketcentre.com.au 
1800 777 023 
www.cricketcentre.com.au 
 
Lane Cove Cricket Club is delighted to announce a new 
partnership with the Greg Chappell Cricket Centre in North 
Sydney.  GCCC is Lane Cove’s exclusive supplier of cricket 
equipment and all Lane Cove members are entitled to a discount 
in the store. 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Absolute Executive Recruitment 

 
info@axr.com.au 
(02) 8243 1300 
www.axr.com.au 
 
Absolute is a leader in executive recruutment with a profile that 
has been established over 15 years via relationships with the key 
decision makers in major Australian and multinational 
companies.  AXR specialize in the engineering and accounting 
fields so make them your first port of call when looking to fill a 
position in either of those disciplines. 
 
 
 

 
 

 Holgate First National Real Estate 
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mail@holgate.com.au 
(02) 9427 4355 
www.holgate.com.au 
 
Holgate First National have been providers of first class 
property services specializing in the sale and management of 
residential and commercial properties within the communities of 
the Lower North Shore since 1964.  If you’re searching for a 
home in the local area, Holgate First National’s fine homes 
division can provide a property to suit your dreams. 
 

 

 

Zoti Sport 

 
sales@zotisports.com 
+ 852 3426 2182 / 83 
www.zotisports.com 
 
Zoti Sports was established in October 2006 offering sports 
clothing in a range of eleven sports.  They have fast become a 
well-established brand through supplying superior quality 
garments and providing a high quality of customer service.   
 
If your club or tournament would like to discuss working in 
partnership with Zoti, please contact them using the details 
above. 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

Proactive Graphics 

 
info@proactivegraphics.com.au 
 (02) 9211 0775 
www.proactivegraphics.com.au 
 
Proactive is a design, print and publishing studio where fast, 
excellent and meticulous service isn’t simply a promise – it 
embodies the spirit of everything they do.  Proactive delivers 
highly creative solutions developed to bring your strategic 
business goals to life. 
 

Storage King 

 
(02) 9420 2220 
www.storagelanecove.com.au 
 
Welcome to the largest self storage facility on Sydney's North 
Shore. We provide safe, clean, secure storage for your personal 
and business needs.  

  

 


